&y L&T IDPL

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 22" Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) of L&T INFRASTRUCTURE
DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED will be held through VIDEO CONFERENCING (‘VC’)JOTHER AUDIO
VISUAL MEANS (‘OAVM’) on Friday, 18" August, 2023 at 11:00 a.m. to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To consider and adopt:

a)

b)

the audited standalone financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31,
2023 and Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and

the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and the Report of the Auditors thereon
for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Pushkar Vijay Kulkarni (DIN 00090996), who retires by rotation and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Dip Kishore Sen (DIN-03554707), who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

By order of the Board of Directors
For L&T Infrastructure Development Projects Limited

Date: 18.07.2023 Ravi Masabattula

Place: Chennai Company Secretary
Notes:

1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide circulars dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 5, 2020,

9.

2/22 dated May 5, 2022 and other applicable circulars issued in this regard has directed to convene
the AGM through Video Conference or Other Audio Visual Means (“WC/OAVM’). In accordance with
this, the members will be provided with a link to join the meeting through VC/OAVM. The deemed
venue for the 22" AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company i.e. Mount Poonamallee Road,
Manapakkam, Chennai — 600089.

In terms of the MCA Circulars since the physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with,
there is no requirement of appointment of proxies. Accordingly, the facility of appointment of proxies
by Members under Section 105 of the Act will not be available for the 22" AGM. However, in
pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Act, representatives of the Members may be
appointed for the purpose of voting, for participation in the 22" AGM through VC/OAVM Facility.
Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives are requested to send to the
Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote
on their behalf at the Meeting through e-mail at ravim@Intidpl.com. For any queries related to the
AGM, you can write to the Company at the aforesaid e-mail ID.

Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM in accordance with the MCA Circulars, the route map,
proxy form, and attendance slip are not attached to this Notice.

The facility for joining the meeting shall be kept open at least 15 minutes before the time scheduled to
start the meeting and shall not be closed till the expiry of 15 minutes after such scheduled time.
Members can cast their vote by way of an email to the email id: ravim@Intidpl.com.

A copy of the Notice and Annual Report for FY 2022-23 shall be displayed on the website, of the
company i.e. https://portal.Intidpl.com.

Annual Report along with Notice of the AGM is being sent through e-mail to the members, and to all
other persons so entitled to receive the same under the Act.

Details of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the ensuing AGM of the Company are
provided in Annexure A of this Notice.
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Annexure A

Details of the Directors seeking Appointment/ Re-Appointment in the forthcoming AGM

on the Board

Name of Director Mr. Pushkar Vijay Kulkarni Mr. D.K. Sen
Date of Birth November 9, 1973 19.3.1956
Nationality Indian Indian
Date of Appointment January 31, 2020 July 13, 2020

India. Worked as CEO for more than 12
years in an Infrastructure Technology
Company and during his tenure
represented India at the International
Standards Org. His experience broadly
covers toll roads, and traffic systems
both from technology and operations
perspective. He has worked in several

marquee infrastructure projects
including — Bandra Worli Sealink,
Yamuna  Expressway, Nationwide

fastag system and Indore BRTS. He is
responsible for setting up CPPIB’s
infrastructure practice in India. He led
the CPPIB team that conceptualized
and helped create the first
Infrastructure Investment Trust (Invit)

Qualification Electronics Engineer with a |B.Tech (Hons) in Civil Engineering from IIT,
Management Degree from Jamnalal |Kharagpur, 1977 and MBA (PGDBM) from
Bajaj Institute of Management Studies | XLRI, Jamshedpur, 1986

Experience Served as Managing Director of Serco Mr. Dip Kishore Sen is Whole-time Director

and Senior Executive Vice President
(Development Projects), L&T. A Civil
Engineering graduate from IIT Kharagpur
and a Post Graduate in Business
Management from XLRI, Jamshedpur, prior
to joining L&T, Mr. Sen worked for 12 years
with reputed companies like M/s. Tata Steel,
Jamshedpur, M/s. Development
Consultants, Kolkata and was involved in a
turnkey EPC Transmission line project in
Malaysia. Under his leadership, several
major breakthroughs were achieved in the
Railways sector and has successfully
steered the business to bag prestigious
projects like Metro Express Project in
Mauritius & Dhaka Metro Project in
Bangladesh. Apart from his considerable
professional credentials, he is also a
member of the curriculum advisory
committee of Post Graduate course in
Infrastructure, IIT Kharagpur and the
Infrastructure Post Graduate course of
Narsee Monjee Institute of Management
Studies, Mumbai. He is also associated with
various industry organizations like the
Federation of Indian Chambers of
Commerce & Industry (FICCI), The
Confederation of Indian Industry (CII),
International Road Federation (IRF),
National Highways Builder's Federation
(NHBF), Indian Merchants' Chamber (IMC)
& Construction Federation of India (CFI).

Directorships in other
Companies

1. LTIDPL IndvIT Services Limited
2. Rewin Infrastructure Limited

L&T Power Development Limited
Nabha Power Limited

L&T Infrastructure Engineering Ltd

L&T Aviation Services Private Ltd
Raykal Aluminium Company Private Ltd
Larsen & Toubro Qatar LLC

Larsen & Toubro Oman LLC
Construction Skill Development Council

ONOOORWONE

of India
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9. L&T Special Steels and Heavy Forgings
Private Limited
10. L&T Metro Rail (Hyderabad) Limited
11. L&T Employees Welfare Foundation
Private Limited
12. L&T Welfare Company Limited

Memberships/ LTIDPL IndvIT Services Limited
Chairmanships of a) Audit Committee

Committees across b) Nomination & Remuneration
all Companies Committee

Committee

Committee

Projects Limited

c) Stakeholders Relationship and
Investor Relations and Grievance

d) Investment and Finance

e) Risk Management Committee
f) Projects Review Committee
g) CSR Committee

L&T Infrastructure Development

a) Audit Committee
b) Nomination & Remuneration

CSR Committee:
1. L&T Infrastructure Development
Projects Limited

Risk Management Committee
1. L&T Metro Rail (Hyderabad) Limited

Stakeholders Relationship Committee
1. L&T Metro Rail (Hyderabad) Limited

Committee
Shareholding in the Nil
Company
Relationship with Nil

Directors
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BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 22" Report and Audited Accounts for the year ended 31
March, 2023.

1. Financial Results / Financial Highlights

Rs. In crore

Particulars 2022-23 | 2021-22

Profit / (Loss) before depreciation, exceptional items & tax 75.09 61.94
Less: Depreciation & amortization 2.85 3.17
Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax 72.24 58.77
Less: Exceptional Items 54.06 100.58
Profit / (Loss) before tax 18.18 (41.81)
Less: Provision for tax 6.94 1.21
Profit/(Loss) for the year 11.24 {43.02)

2. State of Company Affairs

The Total Income for the financial year under review was Rs. 135.05 crore, as against Rs.128.27 crore
for the previous financial year, registering an increase of 5.29%. The profit before tax from continuing
operations, including extraordinary and exceptional items was Rs, 18.18 crore and the profit after tax
from continuing operations including extraordinary and exceptional items was Rs.11.24 crore for the
financial year under review, as against Rs. (41.81) crore and Rs. (43.02) crore, respectively for the
previous financial year.

Business Outlook;

Larsen & Toubro Limited (“L&T”) and CPPIB India Holdings Inc. (“CPP Investments™) own 51%
and 49% shareholding, respectively, in the share capital of L&T IDPL.

As part of corporate strategy plan, the Shareholders of the Company have decided to sell their 100%
equity to Epic Concesiones Private Limited (“Epic™) and accordingly, the Board of Directors at their
Meeting held on December 14, 2022, have approved the proposal io transfer their road business to
Epic and the transmission business to Infrastructure Yield Plus II (IYP-II}. Epic and I'YP-II (Investors)
are managed by Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited.

Epic Concesiones Private Limited is a Special Purpose Vehicle incorporated for the purpose of stake
acquisition and is 100% owned by Infrastructure Yield Plus II scheme of Infrastructure Yield Trust
managed by Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited.

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited has prior experience in operating road and transmission
assets under its Infrastructure Yield Plus | Fund through Sekura Roads and Sekura Energy platforms.

Further, as part of the said corporate strategic plan, the Board of Directors have also approved the sale
of 100% equity in LTIDPL IndviT Services Limited (LISL), the Investment Manager (IM) of
IndinfravIT Trust, to IndinfravlT Trust / unitholders of the Trust.

The Company is in the process of obtaining the required regulatory/statutory authorities’
permissions/approvals for the proposed stake sale as part of Conditions Precedents (CPs) agreed with
the Tnvestors.

%{&T infrastructure Development Projects Limited
Registered Office; 1% Floor, TCTC Building, Mount Pocnamallee Road, Manapakkam, P.B. No, 879, Chennai — 600 088, India.
CIN: UB5393TN2001PLCO48591 LE! No: 3358000XXGOBJIPSNIS08
Tel: +91 44 22526000 / 22528000E-mail: contactus@intidpl.com Web: www.Intidpl.com
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De-registration as Core Investment Company:

During the year under review, the Company made an application to Reserve Bank of India (RBI) for
voluntary de-registration of the Company as a Core Investment Company (CIC). The Company
satisfied the criteria of being declassified as CIC. On March 31, 2023, RBI issued an order cancelling
the certificate of Registration bearing No. N-07-00803 dated January 12, 2015, The Company is now
an unregistered CIC.

Statutory Disclaimer

RBI does not accept any responsibility or guarantee about the present position as 1o the Sfinancial
soundness of the Company or for the correciness of any of the statements or representations made or
opinions expressed by the Company and for discharge of liability by the Company.

Neither is there any provision in law to keep nor does the Company keep any part of the deposits with
the RBI and by issuing the Certificate of Registration (COR) to the Company, the Reserve Bank neither
accepts any responsibility nor guarantees for the payment of the deposit amount to any depositor.

Capital & Finance:

1. The Company has issued and allotted bonus shares during the year, as indicated below:

S. Name of Shareholder No. of shares @ Class of shares Date of
No Rs. 10/- each allotment
1. L&T 25500 Series | Compulsorily
I | 2. CPPIB India Private Convertible Preference | 12.1.2023
L 24500
Holdings Inc. Shares
1. L&T 25500 Series 2 Compulsorily
2 | 2. CPPIB India Private Convertible Preference | 12.1.2023
. 24500 .
Holdings Inc. Shares
1. L&T 25500 Series 3 Compulsorily
3 | 2. CPPIB India Private - Convertible Preference | 12.1.2023
; 24500
Holdings Inc. Shares

2. The Company has issued and allotted Rights shares during the year, as indicated below:

S.No. | Name of Shareholder Number  of | Class of shares Date of
shares (@ Rs. allotment
10/- each
1. L&T 37,000 Series 4 Compulsorily
| 2. CPPIB India Private Convertible Preference | 10.3.2023
Holdings Ing, 13,000 Shares

Capital Expenditure:

As at March 31, 2023, the gross fixed and intangible assets including leased assets, stood at Rs. 20.43
crore and the net fixed and intangible assets, including leased assets, at Rs. 10.80 crore. Capital
Expenditure during the year amounted to Rs. 3.56 crore.

Deposits:

The Company has not accepted deposits from the public and does not fall within the ambit of Section
73 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act™) and the Rules framed thereunder and the requisite returns
have Deen filed.
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Depository Svstem:

As on March 31, 2023, the shares of the Company are held in the following manner:

Equity shares:

62,95,21,664 equity shares @ Rs. 10/- each representing 100% of the Company’s equity paid up capital
are held in dematerialized form.

Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares:

2,00,000 Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares @ Rs. 10/- each representing 100% of the
Company’s Preference paid-up capital are held in dematerialized form.

Subsidiary/ Associate/ Joint Venture Companies:

a. Subsidiary Companies:

i) During the year, the Company has not been allotted any shares in its existing subsidiary
companies. However, a new sobsidiary REWIN INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
(CIN:U42201'TN2023PLC159009) was incorporated at Chennai on March 21, 2023,
wherein 10,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each were allotted to the Company
(including 6 equity shares of Rs. 10/- held jointly with six Nominees).

il}  Shares Sold/Transferred or Disposed of During the Year:

No shares were sold/transferred or disposed off during the year.

ity  Performance and Financial Position of Each Subsidiary/Associate and Joint Venture
Companies;

A statement containing the salient features of the financial performance of subsidiaries /
associate / joint venture companies and their contribution to the overall performance of
the Company is provided as Annexure 1 to the Annual Report.

b. IndinfravIT Trust:

During the year, the Company sold 3,75,61,677 units of Rs. 100/- each of Indinfravit Trust to
CPPIB Private Holdings (4) Inc. at a consideration of Rs. 521.95 crore.

Particulars of Loans Given, Investments made, Guarantees given or Security provided bv the
Company:

Since the Company is engaged in the business of developing infrastructure facilities through its
subsidiaries (SPVs), the provisions of Section 186 except sub-section (1) of the Companies Act, 2013
{Act) are not applicable to the Company. The details of loans given, investments made, and
guarantees/securities provided by the Company to its subsidiaries are given in the Note nos. 5, 6 and
42 to the standalone financial statements.

LParticulars of Contracts or Arrangsements with Related Parties:

All related party transactions during the year have been approved in terms of the Act. The Company
has in place Related Party Traisaction Policy with applicable guidelines thereunder. Details of material
Related Party Transactions as required under sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Act are provided in
Annexure 2 (Form AOC-2). There are no related party transactions that have conflict with the interest
of the Company.
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Amount to be Carried to Reserve:

The Company has transferred Rs. 2.26 crore to the statutory reserve for the year ended March 31, 2023.
The total Reserve under Section 45-IC of RBI Act is Rs. 100.59 crore.

Dividend:
The Directors do not recommend payment of dividend for the financial year 2022- 23,

Material Changes and Commitments affecting the Financial Position of the Company, between
the end of the Financial Year and the Date of the Report:

No material changes or commitments adversely affecting the financial position of the Company have
occurred/been made between the end of the financial year and the date of this Report.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Ouigo:

Conservation_of Energy and Technology absorption

In view of the nature of activities which are being carried on by the Company, Section 134(3)(m) of
the Act, read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 relating to conservation of
energy and technology absorption does not apply to the Company.

Foreign Exchange Farnings and Outgo

During the year, there has been no foreign exchange earnings and outgo.

Risk Management:

The Risk Management Committee comprises of Mr. Sachin Johri, Mr. P. S. Kapoor, Mr. R. G.
Ramachandran and Mr. P. G. Suresh Kumar.

The Charter of the Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities of
reviewing the existing Risk Management Policy, Framework, Risk Management Structure, Risk
Review Mechanism, Risk Authorisation and Escalation matrix and Risk Management Systems.

The Committee periodically reviews the risk status to ensure that executive management mitigates the
risks by means of a properly designed framework within the ambit of the Risk-Management Policy of
the Company.

Corporate Social Responsibility:

The Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) Committee of the Board of Directors comprises of the
following:

Ms. Vijayalakshmi Rajaram Iyer (Chairman)
Mr. Sudhakar Rao; and
Mr. D.J. Sen

During the year, one CSR Comnittee Meeting was held on July 18, 2022, through audio visual
means/video conferencing mode. All the Members of the said Committee were present in the Mesting.

The disclosures required to be given under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Ruile
8(1) of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 are given as Annexure
‘4’ to this report.
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The Chief Financial Officer of the Company has certified that CSR funds disbursed for the projects
have been utilized for the purposes and in the manner as approved by the Board.

The CSR Policy as approved by the Board of Directors is available on the website at www.intidpl.com.

Details of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel Appointed / Resigned during the Year:

Changes in Directors and KMP

The composition of Board of Directors of the Company as on March 31, 2023, stood as below:

Name Designation
Mr. R Shankar Raman Non-Executive Chairman
Mr. D. K. Sen Managing Director
Mr. Sudhakar Rao Independent Director
Ms. Vijayalakshmi Rajaram Iyer Independent Woman Director
Prof. A. Veeraragavan Independent Director
Mr. Pushkar Vijay Kulkarni Non-Executive Director (Investor Nominee)

The Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company as on March 31, 2023 are:

Name Designation
Mr. D. K. Sen Managing Director
Mr. Pramod Sushila Kapoor Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Ravi Masabattula Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Mr. D. K. Sen and Mr, Pushkar Kulkarni are liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

The Independent Directors of the Company have registered themselves on the Independent Director’s
Databank.

Mr. Pradeepta Kumar Puhan, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer resigned with effect from
August 10, 2022.

Mr. Ravi Masabattula was appointed as Company Secretary & Compliance Officer at the Meeting held
on October 21, 2022.

Number of Meetings of the Board of Directors

The Meetings of the Board are held at regular intervals with a time gap of not more than 120 days
between two consecutive Meetings.

During the year, six Board Meetings were held. All the Board Meetings were held throngh audio visual
means/video conferencing. The details of the Board meetings conducted during the year are given
below:

Date Board Strength No. of Directors Present
May 5, 2022 6 4
July 18,2022

October 21, 2022
December 14, 2022
January 20, 2023
March 16, 2023

SOV O | NS
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The Directors were duly provided with the Agenda and supporting documents and had participated
through audio/visual means. The roll call procedure was followed, and the proceedings of the Meetings
were recorded and preserved.

Information to the Board:

The Board of Directors has complete access to the information within the Company and its subsidiaries
which inter alia includes:

e Annual revenue budgets and capital expenditure plans.

»  Quarterly financials and results of operations.

e  Financing plans of the Company.

e  Minutes of the meeting of the Board of Directors, Audit Committee (AC), Nomination and
Remureration Committee (NRC), Risk Management Committee and IT Strategy Committee.

*  Any materially relevant default, in financial obligations to and by the Company.

®  Any issue which involves possible public or product liability claims of substantial nature,
including any Judgement or Order, if any, which may have strictures on the conduct of the
Company.
Development in respect of human resources.

»  Compliance or non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory nature or listing requirements and
investor service.

e Action Taken Report on the decisions taken by the Board or Board appointed Committees.

Presentations were made regularly to the Board/NRC/Audit Committee (minutes of Board, Audit
Committee and NRC are circulated to the Board), where Directors get an opportunity to interact with
senior management. Presentations .infer alia cover business strategies, management structure, HR
policy, quarterly, half-yearly and annual results, budgets, treasury, review of Internal Audit, risk
management, operations of subsidiaries and associates, etc.

Independent Directors have the freedom to interact with the Company’s management. Interactions
happen during the Board / Committee Meetings, when senior Company personnel make presentations
about performance of the Company. ‘

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors comprising of following members:

Name Designation

Mr. Sudhakar Rao Chairman (Independent Director)

Ms. Vijayalakshmi Rajaram Iyer Independent Director

Prof. A. Veeraragavan Independent Director

Mr. R Shankar Raman Chairman (Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Pushkar Vijay Kulkarni Non-Executive Director (Investor Nominee)

During the year, six Audit Committee meetings were held. All the Audit Committee Meetings were
held through audio visual means/video conferencing. The details of the meetings conducted during the
year under review are given below:

Date Strength of the Committee No. of members present
May 5, 2022 5 3
July 8, 2022 5 4

October 21,2022 5 5
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December 14,2022 5 4
Janvary 20,2023 5 5
Match 16, 2023 5 5

The Members were duly provided with the Agenda and supporting documents and had participated
through audio/visual means. The roll call procedure was followed, and the proceedings of the Meetings
were duly recorded and preserved. All the recommendations made by the Audit Commitiee were
accepted by the Board of Directors.

As per the provisions of Section 177(9) of the Act, the Company has an effective Vigil Mechanism
Policy for Directors and employees to report their genuine conceins.

The Company has a Vigil Mechanism policy in place to report concerns about unethical activities if
any, actual/suspected frauds and vielation of Company’s Code of Conduct. The policy provides for
adequate safeguards against victimisation of persons who avail the same and provides for direct access
to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. With effect from October 21, 2022, Mr. Ravi Masabattula
was appointed as the Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company and currently he is
the co-ordinator for Vigil Mechanism and responsible for receiving, validating, investigating and
reporting to the Audit Committee.

Members can view the details of the Vigil Mechanism policy under the said framework of the
Company on its website www.LntidpL.com.

Management Committec

The Management Committee comprises of Mr. D. K. Sen, Mr. R. Shankar Raman and  Mr. Pushkar
Vijay Kulkarni.

IT Strategy Committee

The Company has constituted an IT Strategy Committee consisting of 5 members with Ms,
Vijayalakshmi Rajaram Iyer as the Chairperson. An IT Strategy Committee meeting was held on July
23,2022, through audio visual means. All the members were provided with the Agenda and supporting
documents to attend the meeting. The Roles and Responsibilities of IT Strategy Committee is as per
Master Direction DNBS.PPD.N0.04/66.15.001/2016-17 dated 8 June 2017 is met with.

Company Policy on Director Appointment and Remuneration

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of Mr. Sudhakar Rao (Chairman), Ms.
Vijayalakshmi Rajaram Iyer (Independent Director), Mr. R. Shankar Raman (Non-Executive Director)
and Mr. Pushkar Vijay Kulkarni (Non-Executive Director, Investor nominee)

During the year, three Meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held. All the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings were held through audio visual means/video
conferencing. The details of the meetings conducted during the year under review are given below:

Date Strength of the Committee No. of members present
May 5, 2022 4 2
October 21, 2022 4 4
March 16, 2023 4 4
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The Members were duly provided with the Agenda and supporting documents and had participated
through audio/visual means. The roll call procedure was followed and the proceedings of the Meetings
were recarded and preserved.

The Committee had formulated a policy on Director’s appointment and remuneration including
recommendation of remuneration of the KMP and the criteria for determining qualifications, positive

attributes and independence of a Director and also for KMP.

Declaration of Independence

The Company has received declaration of independence as stipulated under Section 149(7) of the Act
from the Independent Directors confirming that they are not disqualified from continuing as an
Independent Director.

The Independent Directors of the Company have registered themselves with the data bank maintained
by Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (IICA). In terms of Section 150 of the Act read with Rule 6(4)
of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, all Independent Directors
are exempted from undertaking the online proficiency self-assessment test conducted by the TICA.

Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls

The Company has designed and implemented a process driven framework for Internal Financial
Controls (*IFC’) within the meaning of the explanation to Section 134(5)(e) of the Act. For the year
ended March 31, 2023, the IFC report was placed before the Audit Committee / Board. The Board is
of the opinion that the Company has IFC commensurate with the nature and size of its business
operations and is operating effectively and no material weaknesses exist.

The Company has a process in place to continuously monitor the same and identify gaps, if any, and
implement new and / or improved controls wherever the effect of such gaps would have a material

effect on the Company’s operations.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement:

The Board of Directors of the Company confirms that:

a) In the preparation of Annual Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2023, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures, if any.

b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a‘true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and of the profit of the Company for that
period.

¢) The Directors have taken proper-and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

d) The Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis.

e) The Directors have laid down an adequate system of internal financial control with respect to
reporting on financial statements and the said system is operating effectively.

f) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and were operating effectively.
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Performance Evaluation of the Board, its Committees and Directors:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board have laid down the manner in which
formal annual evaluation of the performance of the Board, committees and individual directors has to
be made.

It includes circulation of questionnaires digitally to all Directors for evaluation of the Board and its
Committees, Board composition and its structure, its culture, Board effectiveness, Board functioning,
information availability, etc. These questionnaires also cover specific criteria and the grounds on which
all directors in their individual capacity will be evaluated.

Further, the Independent Directors have met through audio visual means. The Directors conveyed their
suggestions to the Management. The Directors reviewed the performance of the Board, Committees,
and Individual Directors. The performance evaluation of the Board, Committees and Directors. was
also reviewed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors.

Compliance with Secretarial Standards on Board and Annual General Meetings:

The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries
of India on Board Meetings and Annual General Meetings.

Protection of Women at Workplace:

The Company has adopted a policy on Protection of Women‘s Rights at workplace in line with the
policy formulated by the parent compary, Larsen & Toubro Limited. This has been widely
disseminated. There were no complaints of sexual harassment received by the Company during the
year.

Consolidated Financial Statement;

Your Directors have pleasure in attaching the Consolidated Financial Statement pursuant to Section
129(3) of the Act and prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards prescribed by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India in this regard and audited by the Company’s Statutory Auditors.

Auditors Report:

The Auditors’ Reports on the standalone and consolidated financial statements for the financial year
2022-23 are unqualified. The Emphasis on Matters made by the Auditors are adequately covered in
the Notes to the said financial statements. The Notes to the accounts referred to in the Auditors’
Reports are self-explanatory and do not call for any further clarifications under section 134(3)(f) of
the Act.

Auditor:

The Company at the Twentieth Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on September 29, 2021 had
appointed M/s. Brahmayya & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Regn. no. 000511S) having their
registered office at 48, Masilamani Road, Balaji Nagar, Royapettah, Chennai — 600014, as Statutory

Auditors of the Company to hold office and conduct audit for a term of three consecutive years from
FY 2021-22 to FY 2023-24,

A certificate from the said audit firm has been received to the effect that they are eligible to act as
Auditors of the Company under Section 141 of the Act.



L&T Infrastructure Development Projects Ltd

24. Secretarial Auditor:

M/s Chitra Lalitha & Associates, Chennai, Partnership Firm with unique code no.P2021TN085400,
was appointed to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company for the financial year 2022-23, as
required under Section 204 of the Act and Rules thereunder. The secretarial audit report dated April
27,2023, to the Shareholders for the financial year 2022-23 is attached as ‘Annexure 3 ' to this Report.
The Secretarial Audit Report carries no qualifications.

25. Cost Auditor:

The Report of the Cost Auditor, Mr. K. Suryanarayanan, Cost Accountant (Membership No0.24946)
for the financial year 2021-22 was filed with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs on October 17, 2022.

The provisions pertaining to the Cost Audit is not applicable to the Company for FY 22-23.

26. Details of Significant & Material Orders Passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals:

During the year under review, the following orders were passed:

S.No. | Received Tax impact
from Issue involved in the order {Rs. In
crore)
1 Income 1. L&T IDPL paid buy back tax of Rs. 28.02 crore to the 39.78
Tax Income Tax Department on 14 November 2019 on

Department CCCPs bought back from CPPIB.

2. The same is reflected in 26AS statement also.

. While passing the assessment order for AY 2020-21, the
Income Tax Officer has not considered the buy back tax
paid by the company in his assessment order dated 30%
March 2023 which has resulted in a demand.

4. Filed rectification petition against the said order on 10
April 2023 and the issue has been taken up with the
Income Tax Officer who has agreed to consider the buy
back tax and pass the rectification order to drop the
demand. Awaiting rectification order.

2 High Court | 1. Narmada Infrastructure Construction Enterprises Ltd. NIL

of Madras (merged with L&T IDPL we.f. AY 2014-15) had
claimed income tax depreciation on Project Asset
namely bridge @25% as the rate applicable to Plant &
Machinery under the Income Tax Act.

2. The Income Tax Officer had granted depreciation @10%
in the assessment orders passed for the AY 2000-01,
2001-02 & 2002-03.

3. NICE had filed appeal before CIT(A) against the order
passed by the Income Tax Officer on the issue of
depreciation -

4. CIT(A) had allowed the appeal filed by NICE

5. Department filed appeal before ITAT against the order
passed by the CIT(A).

6. The ITAT had quashed the order passed by the CIT(A)
and retained the order passed by the Income Tax Officer.

7. NICE, filed appeal before the High Cowrt of Madras
against-the order passed by the ITAT.

8. The Hon’ble High Court of Madras dismissed the appeal
filed by NICE and confirmed the order passed by the
ITAT,

fwd
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S.No. | Received Tax impact
from Issue involved in the order {Rs. In
crore)

8. The Hon’ble High Court of Madras dismissed the appeal
filed by NICE and confirmed the order passed by the
ITAT.

9. Due to the lesser depreciation for the above Assessment
Years granted by the Income Tax Officer in the
assessment orders, carry forward losses to the
subsequent vears has declined. However, there is no tax
impact in the subsequent assessment years since NICE
availed deduction u/s 80IA of the Income Act 1961.

27. Annual Return

As per the provisions of Section 92(3) of the Act and Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, a copy of the Annual Return is available at
https://www.Intidpl.com/company/corporate-governance.

28. Other Disclosures:

o IBC: The Company has neither filed any application nor any proceeding is pending against the
Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016, during FY 2023.

¢ Reporting of fraud: The Auditors of the Company have not reported any instances of fraud
committed against the Company by its officers or employees as specified under section 143(12) of
the Companies Act, 2013,

o The details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time settlement
and the valuation done while taking oan from the Banks or Financial Institutions along with the
reasons thercof: The Company has not made any one-time settlement, therefore, the same is not
applicable.

Acknowledgement:

The Board of Directors wish to express their appreciation to all the employees for their outstanding
contribution to the operations of the Company during the year. Y our directors, take this opportunity to thank
financial institutions, banks, Central and State Government authorities, regulatory authorities, stock
exchanges and all the stakeholders for their continued co-operation and support to the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

D .Jkgwwa‘\;,,

p —————
R. Shankar Raman Dip Kishéfe Sen
Date : April 27, 2023 Chairman Managing Director

Place : DIN: 00019798 DIN: 03554707



AOC-1
Annexure 1
Statement containing the Salient Features of the Financial Statements of Subsidiaries / Associate Companies / Joint Ventures
for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023

A)  Subsidiaries

Equit
¥ Profit/ Profit / .

SN Na:;:e of Share | Reserve ~Total . (Loss) | Provisio | (Loss) Equity Total (Nos) o (.)f

. e . Total Sy e Investment | Turnove shares (Nos) - Equity Equity

. capita s & liabilitie before n for after
0 subsnldlary A surpius assets 4 ) r taxatio | taxation | taxatio held_b_y shares @ Share
* . ' ' L&TIDPL | Rs.10/~- each | Holding
(Rs. in n n
Cr)
(Rs.in crore) .

1 | AMTL 149.00 (37.63) | 119881 | 1198.81 10.41 311.29 52.72 - 52.72 1 14,89,99.900 | 14.90,00,000 99.99%
2 I KTL 192.60 454.31 2100 2100 10.79 193.74 77.67 - 77.67 | 19,25,99,992 | 19,26,00,000 99.99%
3 | PECL 30.00 | (333.18) 96.22 96.22 0.96 105.37 40.33 - 4033 1 3,00,46,604 | 3,00,46,606 95.99%
4 | PNGTL 169.10 | (168.33) 0.78 0.78 _ D24 - (0.11) - (0.11) | 12,51,34,000 | 16,91,00,000 74.00%.

5 | VBTL 43.50 125.91 173.44 173.44 37.26 - 4.89 0.83 4.06 | 43499998 | 4,35,00,000 99.99%
6 |L&TCTTL | 42.00 (40.54) 80.72 30.72 - - | (34.32) -1 (3432) | 4,19,99.900 | 4,20,00,000 99.99%
7 1L&TDTL | 28534 | (894.07) | 1736.07 | 1736.07 47.67 22843 | (210.32) - | (210.32) | 24,33,39,998 | .28,53.40,000 85.28%

8§ | L&TIRCL 37.16 (643) 1 107.87 107.87 - 18.92. 4.33 0.74 3.59 | 5,71,59,998 [ 5,71,60,000 99.99%
9 {L&TRVTL | 110.00 | (18823) 1 724.54 724.54 5.00 117.91 [ (1877 - | (18.77) | 10,99,99,900 [ 11,00,00,000 100%
10 | L&T SGTL | 80.54 | (734.07) | 145723 | 1457.23 1.95 23194 (17271 - | (17271 | 8,05,30,000 | 8,05.,40,000 99,98%
11 | L&TSRTL | 290.03 | (15822) | 985.1% 985.19 58.65 209.15 35.86 6.70 29.16 | 29,00,29.993 | 29,00,30,000 100%
i2 | L&TTIL 41.40 42741 | 528.19 528.19 33.76 59.70 59.05 15.13 43.93 | 3,05,36,000 | 4,14,00,000 73.76%
I3 | INDVIT 13.95 5.87 3512 35.12 14.74 39.05 5.28 1.23 405 1,39,50,007 | 1,39,50,007 100%
14 | WIPL 22.39 74.03 | 102.66 102.66 70.00 - {0.31) 1.75 (2.05) | 2,2392,800 | 2,23,92900 100%
15 | REWIN 100.00 0.05 1 100.07 100.07 - - 0.07 0.02 0.05 ] 6.99,99,994 | 10,00,00.000 100%

* Please refer to Annexure 5

» L&T HSTL - NCLT Order approving the Resolution Plan was pronounced on 26.8.2022. Order was filed with ROC on 20.9.2022. The project
documents and records were handed over to the Resolution Applicant — Kalyan Toll Infrastructure Limited

ASSOCTATES - NIL




B) Names OF SUBSIDIARIES WHICH HAVE BEEN LIQUIDATED OR SOLD DURING THE YEAR : L&THSTL
) Names OF ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES WHICH HAVE BEEN SOLD DURING THE YEAR : NIL

D} i. NAMES OF SUBSIDIARIES WHICH ARE YET TO COMMENCE COMMERCIAL OPERATION: NIL
ii. NAMES OF SUBSIDIARIES WHICH HAVE CEASED TOLLING OPERATIONS @
1. PNG Tollway Limited ceased tolling operations since April 2016.

2. L&T Chennai Tada Tollway Limited ceased tolling operations since June 2016.
3. The concession period of Vadodara Bharuch Tollway Limited concluded on March 17, 2022. The Toll collection ceased at 12 midnight on March

17, 2022,
E} NAMES OF ASSOCIATES / JOINT VENTURE WHICH ARE YET TO COMMENCE OPERATION: NIL

For and on behalf of the Board

R. Shankdr Raman Dip Kishore Sen
Chairman Managing Director
DIN: 00019798 DIN: 03554707

Date : April 27, 2023
Place : Mumbai



ANNEXURE 2
FORM NO. AOC-2
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related

parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Act including certain arm’s length transactions
under third proviso theveto (Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and

Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

There are no contracts or arrangements or transactions which are not at arm’s length basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis:

Name of | Nature of Nature of | Duration Salient | Date(s) of | Amount paid
Related (Relationship the terms approval | (Rs.)
Party transaction by the
Board
CPPIB Investor Sale of Sold on Terms and | 20.1.2023 | 5,22,50,73,902
Private Group Indinfravit | 28.2.2023 | conditions (consideration
Holdings units of the Rs.521,94,67,974
(4} Inc. Option + 50% stamp duty
Agreement Rs.3,91,460/- +
dated 20™ TCS Rs.
February 52,14,468/-)
2020,

Date : April 27, 2023
Place: Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board

Dl.

L JLMM“’

R. Shankar

Chall_man
DIN: 00019798

Dip Kishore Sen

Managing Director

DIN: 03554707
















Annexure 4
Annuat report on CSR Activities for the financial year 2022-23

[Pursuani to Rule 8 of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 read with
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013]

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy is approved as recommended by the Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee in compliance with provisions of Section 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013, Companies (Corporate Soeial Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and Schedule VII of
Companies Act, 2013.

The Key Objectives of this CSR policy would be to actively contribute to the social and economic
development of the communities in which we operate by taking up CSR activities falling under the
purview of Schedule V1I of Companies Act, 2013.

2. Composition of CSR Commiittee:

S.No.| Name of Director Designation / Nature of | Number of Number of
Directorship meetings of meetings of
CSR Committee/CSR Committee
held during the |attended during
year the year
1 Ms.  Vijayalakshmi | Chairperson 1 1
Rajaram Iyer (Independent Director)
2 Mr. Sudhakar Rao Member i 1
(Independent Director)
3 Mr. Dip Kishore Sen | Member 1 1
{Managing Director)

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved
by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.

htips://www.Intidpl.com/company/policies/

4. Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule
8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable

Not applicable for the year under review.

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 ard amount required for set
off for the financial year, if any
NIL

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 63,35,46,882/-

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 1,26,70,938/-

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous financial
years: Nil

(5
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(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7at+7b-7¢): 1,26,70,938/-

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

{Amount in Rs.)
Total Amount Unspent
Amount Total Amount transferred to Unspent Arpount transferred to any fund
Spent for CSR Account as per section 135(6) specified. under Schedule VII as per
the second proviso to section 135(5)
?11{3:;1&11 Amount Date of transfer Ezlgir?g Amount 5:;2 fc;f
21,39,500 1,05,31,438 April 29, 2023 - - -
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
Name of the| item [Loca |Location of the |Project | Amount [Amount {Mode | Mode of
Project from |l area project duration |Allocated |spentin | of [mplementa
the list [(Y/N (in for the the |{Imple tion
of ) months) | project |current jmentat | Through
activitie financia | ion [lmplementin
§in I Year |[Direct | g Agency
Schedul (Y/
e VIl to N)
the Act. State: |District Na | CSR
me |Regn.
no.
One No. of
Advanced Life
Support (ALS .
Ao for [ Heallh | [Tamil o osonain basesoo| v |- | -
. _ Care Nadu
Arisipalayam tore
Primary Health
Centre (PHC)
Construction of
1 Children
Physiotherapic
Rehabilitation
and Recreation|
Centre (at NRC
building)  and|
;Z?;;Tmn cntHea.l’thc N Tamil Co_inllba 12 4500000 oy i .
o are nadu | tore
registration
waiting hall at
Sundergarh
District
Hospital,
Sundergarh  to
support
National Health

5




Mission (NHM)
of Gol.

To Provide 240
Nos of Bunker
Beds and
modify toilet
blocks at
Telangana
State
Residential Educati Telen |Lingam
School (TSRS) | on gana | pally
and Junior
College _
(Boys), at
Lingampally,
which is 0.3
kms from the
Highway.

12 4200000 -l Y -

To Provide
Equipment and
Fixtures to the
Nutritional

Rehabilitation '
Centre (NRC) Healthe N Sunda |Rajasth

Building ~ at| rgarh | an
Sundargarh
Distret HQ
Hospital,
Rajasthan

12 1400000 - Y -

Total 12600000 [2139500] - | -

(¢} Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
Nil
(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads
Nil
(e) Am-ount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable
Nil
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e)
Nil

(g) Excess amount for set off if any

Slno. Particulars Amount in Rs.
i qu percent of average net profit of the company as per 1,26.70,938/-
section 135(5)
2 Total amount spent for the Financial Year 21,39,500/-
3 Excess amount spent for the financial year [2-1] -

L




4 Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or
activities of the previous financial years, if any

s Amount available for set off in succeeding financial vears
[4-3]

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Preceding | Amount |Amount Amount
Financial [transferre | spent |Amount transferred to any fund specified remaining to be
Year dto upto  |under Schedule VII as per second proviso spent in
Unspent | the to section 135(5) succeeding
CSR  reportin financial years
Account g
under |Financi | Name of Amount Date of
section jal Year | the Fund (Rs.) transfer
135(6)
202122 - - PMNRF [1,39,27396/- | 26.9.2022 -
2020-21 NA
2019-20 NA

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial

year(s):

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created
or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year.

Nil

I1. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit
as per section 135(5)

The Company has identified projects for the financial year, and they are under implementation.

Lo

VijayalakShr;li Rajaram lyer

. JMWV‘

For and on behalf of the Board

R. Shankar Rama

Z.,

e

Dip Kishore Sen

Chairpersor CSR Committee
DIN: 05242960

Date : April 27, 2023
Place :
Muirbai

Chazirman
DIN: 00019798

DIN: 03554707

Managing Director



ANNEXURE 5

The Expanded Name of the Companies

| S.NO NAME OF THE SUBSIDIARY ABBREVIATION
1 L&T Transportation Infrastructure Limited L&T TIL
2 Panipat Elevated Corridor Limited PECL
3 L&T Interstate Road Corridor Limited L&T IRCL
4 Vadodara Bharuch Tollway Limited VBTL
5 L&T Rajkot Vadinar Tollway Limited L&T RVTL
6 L&T Halol Shamlaji Tollway Limited L&T HSTL
7 Ahmedabad Maliya Tollway Limited AMTL
8 PNG Tollway Limited PNGTL
9 L&T Samakhali Gandhidham Tollway Limited L&T SGTIL
10 L&T Chennai Tada Tollway Limited L&T CTTL
11 L&T Sambalpur-Rourkela Tollway Limited L&T SRTL
12 L&T Deccan Tollways Limited L&T DTL
13 LTIDPL IndvIT Services Limited INDVIT
i4 Kudgi Transmission Limited KTL
15 Watrak Infrastructure Private Limited WIPL
16 Rewin Infrastructure Limited REWIN




Brahmayy

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUBITOR’'S REPORT

To the Members of L&T Infrastructure Development Projects Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS Financial statements of L&T Infrastructure
Development Projects Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2023, and the statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprshensive Income), statement of
changes in Equity and statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone
lnd AS Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

fn our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (the Act) in the manner so required and give a true and Tair view in conformity with the
accounting principles :generally accepted in india, of the state ofaffairs of the Company as at March
31, 2023, and Profit and Other Comiprehensive Incoime, changes in Equity and its Cash Flows for the
year ended on that date:

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit .in accordasnice with the Standards on Audiling (SAs) specified under section
t43(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for'the Audit of the Staidalone Ind AS Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical reqmremenis that are relevant to
our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 6E of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, which describes the
conmpany assessment of the net carrying value of ifs investments aggregating as on March 31, 2023 of
Rs.554.07 crores {(As on March 31, 2022:' Rs. 740.47 crores) and net loans and advances aggregating
as on March 31, 2023 of Rs. 503.22 crores.(As on March 31, 2022; Rs. 293 .41 crores) relating to four
operating subsidiaries of the Company engaged in infrastructure projects whose net worth is
eroded/undergoing restructuring due to continuous. losses, for a period more than five years, as per the
audited financial statements of those subsidiaries as at March 31, 2023,

The Management has, given the uncertainties involved in these estimates-and considering the gestation
period required for breakeven for such infrastructure investments and réstructuring/refinancing
arrangements carried out/proposed to be carried out. expected improved cash flows in its future
business projections, concludes that no additional provision/adjusirment to the carrying value of the
said invesiments/foans and advances is required as at March 31, 2023,

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

48; Masilamani Road, Balaji Nagar, . T:491-044-28131128/38748/58.
Royapettah, Chennai - 600 014.India. E :maii@brahmayya.com | www.brahmayya.com
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Chartered Accountants

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of -the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were.
addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone ind AS Financial Statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a scparate opinion on these matters. We have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matiers to be comniunicated in our report.

Key Audit Matier

Auditor’s Respornse

Impairment
Management for investmenis or loads or
advancess made to certain
subsidiaries of the Companv engaged in

due to continuous losses for a period more
‘than 5 years.

_The Company has investments. aggregatmg to
Rs. 554.07 crores (net of provisions of Rs.
458.30 crores) _and loans &
aggregating Rs. 503.22 crores (net of provisions
of Rs. 32.67 crores) with regard to certain
operating subsidiaries of the Company engaged
i in infrastructure projects whose net ‘worth is
fully eroded/undergoing restructuring due to
| continuous losses for a period more than 5
| years,

The Management has carried out detailed
evaluation: considering various factors, on the
| carrying value of the investments, loans and
advances as at March 31,2023,

Due to. the multitude. of factors and assumptions
involved in determining the forecasied

projection period, significant judgments are
required 1o estimate the recoverable values. Any
adverse changes to these assumptions could
result in a reduction in such recoverable value
becoming lower than the carrying amount.

evaluation carried out by
0peratmg:

infrastructure projects whose net worth is.
either fully eroded /undergoing restructuring -

advances-

revenues/cash. flows and discount raté in the |

Our Audit procedures includes the following:

* Evaluated the design and implementation of
the relevant controls and the operaling
effectiveness of such intermal controls which
inter-alia includes the .completeness and
accuracy of the input data considered,
reasonableness of assumptions. considered in
determining the future projections and the
assumptions considered in preparing the
impairment calculations.

= Obtained the investment valuations (prepared
by Management or as carried out by
Management's external valuation specialist)
pertaining to-such subsidiaries and performed
the following procedures:

i.  Conducted discussions ‘with Company
personnel to identify factors, if any, that
should be 1aken iato account in the
analysis.

ii.  Compared the actual revenues and cash
flows generated by the subsidiaries during
the year as to theé projections and
estimates considered in the previous yvear.

-Evaluated and tested the appropriateness of key.

assumptions  considered by the Management,
including  discount rate. growth rate, etc.
considering - the historical accuracy of the
Company’s estimates ‘in the prior periods,
consultations  with internal  specialists  and
comparison of the assumptions with public data,

~wherever available.

Infermation Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board .of Directors is resporisible.for the preparation of the ‘other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report; but does not include the

‘'standalone Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

/ Our opinion on the Standalone Ind' AS Financial Statements does not cover the other information and
we donot express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

F
T:+91-044-28131128738/48/58

48, Masilamani Road, Balaji Nagar, )
E :mail@brahmayya.com | www.brahmayya.com

Royapettah, Chennai - 600 014, India.
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Chartered Accountants

In connection. with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated,

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required tc report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”} with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view: of the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian. Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act, This 'reSpcnsibiEit) also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguardmg of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other “irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate:accounting policies; making judgments and estimates. that are reéasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the-financial stitement that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability 1o continue as a geing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis ol accouting unless management either.intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative buf to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives aré to obtain reasonable assurance aboutr whether the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, -whether due to fraud or error, and fo-issue
an auditor’s report that-includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or-error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate; they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing: we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit: We also:

a) ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone ind AS Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
-one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentiomal omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 1o the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we. are also responsible for expressmg our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

¢) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and.the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists relfated to events
.o conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to. continue as a gcnng
-concern. [ we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw atténtion in our
auditor’s report fo the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit ¢vidence obtained up
to the date of our anditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may-cause the Company
to cease to confinue as & going concern,

¢) Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the standalorie Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit Findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those.charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to béar on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters.communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone ind AS financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We déscribe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludés public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our ‘report. because ‘the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be éxpected to outweigh the public interest
bengfits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section ¢ 1) of section 143 of the’ Compames Act, 2013, we

give in the “Annexure A” to this report a statemerit on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Order. to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a} We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) Irn-our opinion. proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.
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¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement deait
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read witit Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors a5 on March St, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Scétion 164 (2) of the Act.

f}  With respect to the adequacy of the intemnal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such. controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B” to this report.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended;

In our opinion and to the best of aur information and according to-the explanations given to us, no
remuneration has been paid by the .company to its directors except silting fees.to Independent
Directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act read with
schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013,

h) With respect 1o the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(iy The Company has disclosed the impact O'F'pend'in_g litigations on its financial position ix
its standalone Ind AS financial statements.

(i) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foresceable losses on long-term contracts and the company did not
have any derivative contracts.

{iii)  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
‘funds (which are material cither individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced
or loaned or mvesled (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company o or in any other person or entity,
including foreign entity (“lntermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any mannér whatsoevér by or on
behaif of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security.
or the like on behalfof the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received
by the Company. from any person or entity, mcludmg foreign - entity (“Funding
Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, -directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons. or

5
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entities identified in any manner whatsoever by of on behalf of the Funding Party
(*Ulumate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guaraniee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{¢) Based on the audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations as provided under (a) and (b) abové, contain any material
misstatement,

(v) The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

(vi) Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of
account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility is applicable to the Company with effect from April |, 2023, and accordingly,
reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023,

For Brahmayya & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No, 0005118

Place: Chennai

Date: April, 27,2023

L.. Ravi Sankar

Partner

Membership No. 025929

UDIN No.23025929BGYJXES042
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“Annexure ~ A" to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under Repori on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirenients of cur
report of even date

(i) a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property plant and equipment.
The Company has maintained proper.records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

b}. The. Pro'pcrty Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the. management: during the
year, in accordance with an annual plan of verification, which in our opinion-is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of the Property Plant and
Equipment. According to the information and explanation given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed onsuch verification.

¢} The Title deeds of all the immovable properties owned by the company are held in the name
of the Company except the following.

Description of | Gross | Held in{ Whether Period - held | Reason  “for -
Property Block | the Promoter, - in_di'cate heing held in  the
as at | name of | Director or | range, pame of the
March | - “their relative | where compsany
31, ' or employee | appropriate
Freehold Land and Rs. L&T No The ‘title deeds are
Building located at{ 0.40 East- in the name of L&T

Plot i Cr, West East-West Tollway

‘No. 26 and 22, ~Tollway Limited (EWTL)

Survey - Limited & L&T Great

‘No. 36A of Mouje {(EWTL) | Eastern  Highway

Paliof ' & L&T Limited {GHTL),
Sudhagad Taluke, Creat erstwhile
Tisfrict - Eastern subsidiaries which
Raigad, measuring | Highway got merged with
242 _ Limited | the Company under
3q mts and 166.5 sq {GHTL) Section 391 to 394
‘mts, ' of the Companiés
| réspectively Act, 1956 in terms
of the approval of
the Honourable
High Court(s) of
judicature in the |
year2014-2015. '

d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible
Assets-during the vear.
e} No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the comipany as at

March 31,

2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions

{Prohibil’ion) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder,

?
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{ii) a) The Company does not have any inventory, accordingly reporting under clause 3(ii}(a) of the
Order does not arise:

b} The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crare rupees
in aggregate from banks or financial inistitutions at afiy point of time during the year on the
basis of secutity of current assets, accordingly reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order
does not arise: '

(i) a) The Company has been registered as a Systemically Important Non-deposil taking Core
Investment Company (CIC-ND-S1) under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934 till the cancellation of registration as a CIC on 31% March, 2023 ‘and accordingly
reporting under Clause 3(iii)(a) of the.order does not arise as on the Balance Sheet date.

b} In our opinion and according to the information and explanation fo us, the- investment
made and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans are not prejudicial to the
company’s interest.

¢) The schedule of repayment. of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated for the
loans granted and the repayment/receipts are regular..

dy There are no amounts of loans granted by the Company, which are overdue for more than 90
days. '

e} The Company has been registered a Systemically Important Non-deposit taking Core

~Investment Company (CIC-ND-S1) under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,

1934 till the cancellation of registration as a CIC on 31st March, 2023 and accordingly
reporting under Clause 3(iii){e) of the order does not arjse as on the Balance Sheet date.

) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

(iv} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not granted any loan fo its directors, covered under Section 185 of Companies. Act, 2013, Section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the company for the year.

(v According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits or amounts which are deémed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of
the Companies Act and the relevant rules made thereurider. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3
(v} of the Order does not arise,

{vi)  The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section [48(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the order does not
arise.

(vii) a} The Campany is régular in-depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and service
tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income {aX, and other statutory dues
applicable to it durmg the year with appropriaté authorities. According to the information
-and explanations given to us, there were no undisputed amounts payable in- respect of these
statutory dues-outstanding as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable. '

b)  Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a)-above which have not been deposited as
on March 31, 2023 on account of disputes are given below:
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Name -of the; Nature  of [ Amount | Period to [ Forum  where  the | Remark
Statute Bues (Rs. in | which the | disputeis pending s, if any
| crore) | amount relates

fiicome Tax Act, | Income Tax 1.71 AY 2015-16 Commissioner of -
1961 Income Tax {Appeals)

| Income Tax Act, | Income Tax. | 4.75 AY 2016-17 | Commissioner -of -
1961 Income Tax {Appeals)
Finance  Adi, | Service Tax | 1133 FY 2008-09 to | CESTAT -
1994 _ 2012-13

(viii}  According to the information and explanation given to us, the conmpany has not surrendered or
disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments
urider the Income Tax Act, 1961, as income during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(viii) of the order does not arise.

{ix) a) According to the information and explanations give to us and basced on ‘our examination of
the records of the Company. the Company does not have any loans or other bon‘owmgs
during the year. Accordingly, reporting uitder clause 3(ix)(a) of the order does not arise,

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not been
declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
g,ovemmen{ authority. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(b) of the order does not
arise,

¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
ltas not taken any term loans during the year. Accordingly. reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of
the order does.not arise.

d} According to the information and explanations given to us and on an-overall examination of
the standalene financial statements of the company, the Company did not raise any funds
during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ixXd) of the order does not arise.

¢} According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the standalone financial statements of the company, the Company has not taken any funds
from any entity or person on-account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries or
associate companies. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the order does not arise.

f}  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not raised loans
during the year on the pledge of securities held in ifs subsidiaries or associate companies.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(1) of the order does not arise.

x) a} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company.
has neither raised during the ycar any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the order
does not arise:

by In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
hds not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares/ fully or partly or
optionally convertible' debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(x)}(b) of the order does not arise,
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{xi) a)  To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has béen noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.

b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditorsy Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

¢) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received during the year and
shared with us for reporting. under this clause,

{xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
a Nidhi company as per provisions of the- Compames Act, 2013, Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xii}a).(b),(c) of the Order does not arise.

{xiii}  -According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections
177 and 188 of the Companies Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) 4y In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an adequate internal audit
system commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.

b) We have considered the -internal audit reports of the company for the period April 01, 2022
to Decémber 31, 2022, issuéd till date.

{xv¥)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company during the year, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with its directors and herice provisions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the company. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xv) of the order does not arise.

{xvi) 2} According to the information and -explanations given to us, the Company was registered
under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as a core investment company.
and. Reserve Bank- of India (RBI). has cancelled the Certificate of Registration vide their
order dated 3 1% March, 2023, based on the request made by the company.

by The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the
Reserve Bank-of India Act, 1934,

¢y The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India as on 31* March, 2023 and the Certificate of registration stands.
cancelled on 31 March, 2023.Therefore, the company satisfies the criteria for being an
unregistered Core Investmént Company.

d) Based on the information and explanation given {o us and the representation received by us,
the Group has one Core Investment Company, as part of the Group as on 31* March, 2023.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the current yeas covered by our audit and the
immediately preceding financial year,

There has been. no resignation of the statutory auditers -of the Company during the year
Accordingly reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the order does not arise.

D Al 1w
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{xix) Accordmg to-the information and explanations given 1o us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge - of the Board of
Birectors and management plans and based 6n our examination of the evidence. supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention; which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year fron the balance sheet date, We, however; state that-this I5-not an assurance as to the future.
viability of the-company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance thai all liabilities faIlmg due
within g period of one year from the balance sheet date, ‘will get discharged by the company as
and when thiey fall due.

Exx) a} ‘There 'is no unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responsnblhty (CSR} projects
requiring a transfer to a Fund specificd in Schedule Vi to the Companies Act in compliance
with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

b} The company has not transferred the amount remaining unspent in respect of ongoing
projects, to a Special Account till the date of our report. However, the time period for such
transfer i.e. thirty days from end of the financial year as permitted under the sub-section (6)
of section 135 of the Act, has not elapsed till the date of our report.

For Brahmayya & Co,,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 0005118

Place: Chennat

Date: April 27, 2023 _
L. Ravi Sankar

Partner

Membership No, 025929 _
UDIN No.23025929BGYIXES042
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“Annexure - B" to the Indepeéndent Auditers’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of
our report of even date

Report on the lnterna_l Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of L&T Infrastructure
Development Projects Limited (“the-Company™ as of March 3, 2023 in conjunction with-our audit
of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company For the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Finzneial Controls

The Company*s management is responsible for-establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering.
the essential components of internal contro) stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controts over Fi'n'ancial' Re‘porting (“ihe Guidance Note”) iss’t’:ed by lhe lnstitute of Chanered
maintenance of adequate mtemal financial controls that were operating ef’f‘ectlvely for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness. of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act.. 2013 ("the Act™).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by
ICAI and the Standards on Auditing issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
‘Those Standards and the Guidance Note réquire that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit fo oblain reasonable assuranice about whethér adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls opérated
effectively-in-ali material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reportmg included obtaining an understandmg of internal
financial controls aver financidl reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness ‘exists, and
testing and. evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the Ind AS fi nancial statements; whether due to fraud or ervor.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting,.

‘Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed 1o provide
reasanable assurance regarding the reliability of financial teporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in ‘accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
_Ahat (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly-reflect the
" transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
~NZ\ transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparatiosi-of financial staterents in accordance with:
§ generally accepted accounting principles. and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
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made only ii accordatice with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and {3)
provide reasonable assurance regardmg prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company’'s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations-of Internal Financial Controls Over Finaneial Reporting

Because of the inkicrent limitations of internal financial controls ever financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. '

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of cur information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate infernal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such intermal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2023, based on the internal financial control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note

issued by the ICAL

For Brahmayya & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
‘Firm Regn. No. 0005118

Place: Cliennai

Date: April 27, 2023
L. Ravi Sankar

Partner

Membership No. 025929

UDIN No.23025929BGYIXES042
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L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED

Batince Sheel as at March 31, 2013

Ind AS Grancial stntements

. . As a1 M-03-2023 As at 31-03-2022
Farticulars MNote no. .
: X crore Zcrore.
ASSETS
Financial Assets
{#) Cash and cash equivalonts _ 2 Lid 122
{b) Bank batances other than (a) above 3 475.61 .387.78
(c} Receivables
(i) Trade receivables EN 401 720
(d) Loans 5. 508.42° 31733
{e) Investments & 1,857.28 2,384 68
(f) Investments keld for sale 1.9 206.55 -
(_g) Financial assets - Qthers 7 72.91 &67.60
A 3,215.92 3,165.81
‘Non- financlal Assets
{d) -Current tax assels (MNet)- 3 29.21 35.94
(b) Defesred tax assets (Net}, 9 396 3.5
{t) Investmenl Praperty 10 1.69 .74
{4) Property, Plant and Equipment £ 3.04 3.33
(e) Intangible assets under developmes 12 019 175
{D} Inmangible assets 13 6.07 534
(8} Other nion-financial asseis 14 6.12 7.05
B 50:28 £9.21
TOTALASSETS A+R 3:276.20 31__1::‘;_;&
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liahiities
Finascial Linkilities
{a} Payables )
(D Trade Payabies
) tptal_ Sutsianding dues of micro enterprisca and sall .14 0.02
enierprises ] 15 ’
() total autstanding dues of ¢reditors other than riiczo and )
> 428 20.11
small enterprises i ;
{b} Financial liabilities - Others 16 2515 23.07
C 29.57 $3.20
Noo-Financtal LiahQlies )
(2} Provisions 13 26.58 28329
{b) Other non-firancial liabilities 19 4.13 i
o 3071 3118
EQUITY o
{a} Equity share capital 21 629.72 629.52
{b) Other equity 22 2.586.20 2,521.12
E 321592 3,130,641
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES CiIHE 327620 3,225.62
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES $2
COMMITMENTS (capifal and others) 43
Refer nates forming part of the standaloac
11053

As per our report attached
For Balmayva & Ca.,
Chagtezed Accountants

Membarship No. 025939

Place- Chennai
Date : April 27,2023

For.and on behalf of the Board of Diréctors

R. Shankar Raman Dip Kiskore Sen
Chairman Masaging Director
(DIN: 00013798} (DIN-03554707)
PFlage: Mumbai Place: Murnbai

¥ B
Prymod Snshta Kapour  Ravi Masahatiulz
Chief Financial Officer Lompany Secretry

_Membeiship_ oo - A20034

Place: Chemmai Place: Chennai

Date - Apiil 27, 2023

Date + Apiil 27, 2023
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L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
Statesgent of Profit znd Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars Note no. . . 2022-1 , . 20m-22 .
: : ¥ erore L erpre. T crore Terore
Revenne from sperations:
Interest incotme: 23 77,80 61.81
Dividend income 7.70 207
Renrital income 008 0.05
Net gain on fair value changes 24 594 6.34
Sale of services 25 43,05 51.42
Others. 26 0,37 034
Total reveriue from operatians 134.94 12203
Other income 27 0.1t 6.24
Total inconte 135,05 128.27
Expenses:.
Finance'costs 28 - 1278
Employes benefits expense 29 30.93 27.61
Depreciation and amortisation expense 16, 11.& 13 285 317
. Administration and cther expénses 28.63 2594
Provisions and Contingencies 31 0.33 -
Total expensés 62.81 69.50
Profit before eiceptional iterms 2nd tax 72.24 58.77
Exceptional items 32 (54.06) £100:38)
Profit{Luss) before tax. 18.t§ (4181}
Tax expense:
Cirent tax 7.3 .
Deferred tax {0.40) 121
654 L2
Profit/(Loss) for the year 11.24 (43.02y
Other comprehensive income 33
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss _ _
- Remedsurement of defined benefit plans 0.01) (0.09)
~Fair value cEI' ln‘veshnents through other 58.00 10096,
comprehensive income
fncomc tax refating to items that will not be
R ; : k - 8.56
~ reclassified to' profit or loss
Total other comprelensive income 38.89 10943
Total compreheasive income for the year 1013 66.41
‘Basic earsiings per equity share.( T 41 0.18 (.68}
Diluted eamiings per equity share {3 ) £1 018 (0.68)

Refér notes forming part of the standalene-

Ind AS financial statements 11053

For and on behalf of the Board of Direrfors

As per our report attached
FovBrabmayya.& Co,

NSNS ot

L Shanka¥ Raman
Chairman _
(DDN: 00019798)

Place: Mumbai-

AR Sankar
Partoer
Membiership No. 425939

.Pramod Sushila Kapour
Chief Financial Dfficer

Place: Cheunai
Date: April 27,2023

Place: Chennai
Date. Apnt 27, 2023

Dip Kishore Sen
Managing Directar

(DEN: 03534707}
Place: Mumbai

"

Ravi Masabattula
Company: Secretary
Membership no - AZ0084
Place; Chennat

Date * April 27, 2023



L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIL\_IITED'
Stntemenl of Cashilows for Ihe year ended Mareh 31, 2023

S No, Particulars 2022.23 2021-2.2_
¥ crore ¥ crore
A |Cashflaw from Qpeniting activities
Net prafif / (loss) after fax 1124 {43.02)
Adjustments fors
Dépreciation and amoriisation expsnse 2383 3.7
Income not to be considered {19.42) (10.67)
-Exceptional items 5406 (040,58
Fair value changes in investments (0.69) (.17
{Profit) on sale of property, plant and Sqiipment 0.05) (0.06)
Finance ¢osts . - 1278
Tax expemse 694 .21
Operating profit before working capital changes 5403 62.81
Changes in working capital: .
{Increase} / Decrease ini trade receivables 3.19 185:09
(Increase) / Decrease in other financial assets (5.31} (40.60)
{Increase) / Decrease in ather non t' rancial assets 093 1.34
Inerense / (Pecrease) in trade p:ryable.s {1531) (11.94)
Inerease / (Decrease) in other financial Habilitites’ 2.08 {2.50)
Increase / {Decrease) in other aon financial Fabifitites 1.24 (0.23)
Increase f (Decrease) in provisions {1L.71) (6.84)
Vet cash (used in)/generated from uperating activities 3964 ) 187.13
Direct taxes paid-{nct of refunds) {0.61) 21.03
Net Cssh(used in}!genemted Iram Qperating A:tmhes 30.03 208.18
Cash fiow from [meslmg activitles )
(Purchase) sale of curment investments (ret) (195.12) 403 44
Investments in subsitiaries (net) {160.00) -
Proceeds on diteibution of mnit capital by infrastructure investment st 52250 .20
Settemcnt on 2ecoun] of erystalkized claims: 91} 8353
{lrcrease} / decrease in faans o subsidiaiies {191.69) (168.51)).
Repayment of débt securitics given o subsidiarjes. - 317
‘Changes in other bank balances (87.83) (170.62)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangibles {2.00) {2.99))
Proczeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 0:87 043
Dividead from associates 1942 1067
Net-cash geueralﬂ.l from i eslmg sr:tivities '{39.16) 11093
€ |Cash flow from Fmsmmng activities
Procceds frowm issug of capital
Proceeds from issue of preference capital 0.05 -
. Repayment of debt securities - (315.42)
Interest paid.on debentures - {12.78)
Net cash (used in) financing activities 0.05 |. (328204
Net {decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C). (0.08) (3.09)
Casly and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 1.22 103§
Cash and cash equivalents as zt theend ofthe year 1.14 1.22
Notes:

i. Cash fow statément has been prépared under the ‘Tndirect Method" 25-set out in the Ind AS 7 - Statement of cash flows as specified in the Compames
{lndian Acwuuuno Standands) Rules, 2015.

For and oo ‘bebalf of the Board of Directors

As per our report attached
For.Brahmaysa & Co.,
Chariered Accomtants

R. Shankar Raman Dip Kishore Sen

Chairman '

(DIN: 60019798) Managing Dircetor
(DIN: 03554707)
L. Ravi Sankay Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Pariner

Membership No. 025929 (La’f‘
Ravi Masabattula
Company Secretary
Membership no - A20084
Place: Chennai

“Date - Apnl 27, 2023

Chief Financial Off'ﬂ.cr

Place: Chenmai
Date = Aprif 27, 2023

Place; Chennai
Date : April 27,2023
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L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes forming pait of the standalene Ind AS finaucial statements for the year ended March 31,2023

1 Signifieant Accounting Policies

A

This note provides a Iisi of thiz sfenificant accounting palicies adopted in the prepasation of these financial statements.:

Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements

() Compliance with fnd AS

The Company's financial statements comply in all. material respects with Indian Accounting Standards (fnd AS) notified tnder section' 133 of the
Companies Act, 2007 (the Act) read with Corpanies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of
the Act.

The financial statements have beén prepared in eccordance wills Division TH of Schedule IR of Companies: Act, 2013 vide Notificdtion No.

GSR.IDZZ(_E) dated October 11, 2018, issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Govemment of India for Non-Banking Finarce Company

(NBFC),

{b) Basis af measurement

The fivancial stafements have been: prepared on a historical cost basis, exeept for certain financial statemenis which are measured at fair valug as
‘explained in the accounting policics below. Historical cost-is ‘genernlly based on the fair value of the consideration given in c\'chmue ‘for goods

and services. at the point of transaction. Fair value is the price that would be received to sl an asset or paid to transfer a liability i an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

{c) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in confarmity with Ind AS requires the management o make estimates and assomptions considered
in the reported amounts-of assets, liabilities (including, céﬂﬁngent lighilities), incame and expenses. The management believes that the estimates
used in preparation of the financial statements. are prodent and reasonable. Estimates and underlying assumptmns are reviewed on an pogoing
basis. Actual- rasulls ceuld differ due fo these estlm:!les and.-the dilferences betiveen the actus! results and the estiniates are recognised in the
perieds in which the results are known /'materialize. Estimates mcll_idc the usefial fives of property; plant and equipment and infangible asseis,
gllowance for doubtfidl dgbtsz_‘advances, ‘futurz obligations in respect of retirement beselit plahs, Ffir value measurement, eto.

{) Measurement of fair values

A number of the. accounting policies amd disclpsm require the. measugcment of fair values for both ﬁ:_}ancial and non-financial assets and
lizbilities. Fair value ineasurements are categorized into Level 1, 2 o1 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are-observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measuzement in its entirety, which are described as foliows:

* Level | inpuis are quutv_zd prices (unadjusted) in active markéts for identical assets or lighilitics that ¢nfity cai access ab measuicmcnt dats:

« Level 2 are inputs other than qunted prices included in Level 1, dsat-are observable for the asset of liability, either directly (as prices) or

indirectly {_den'_vt:d from prices); and

'+ Level 3.are inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on abservable market data (unobservable inpais}.

‘Presentation of financial stafements

The Balance Sheet, Statemeat-of Profit and Loss and the Statemerit 6f Changes in Equity are prepared and presented in hie format prescribed in
Schedule II] to the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™). The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared and presented a3 per the requirements of kid
AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows™ The disclosure réquirements with respect.to ifems in the Balance Sheet and Staiement of Profit and Loss, as
preseribed in Schedule LI to the Act, are prestnted by way of nates Forming part of zccourtts along with the other notes reguired to be disclosed
under the notified Accounling Slandards.

Curfency of the primary economic-environment in which the Company operates is Indiar Rupee (INR} Crores.(rounded off to two decitnals) in
which the Company primarily genetates and eXpenses. cash, Accurdmgly, the Management has assessed its functional currency t6- Be Indian
Rupee (INR). Amoints in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupses Crores since the management is of the view that preschting the
same will result in befter qualitative presentation of the fimancial staténtents.

Révenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received orreceivable. Ameunts disclosed as revenue are exelusive of duties and taxes
and net of discounts, rebates and other similar allowances.

The Company. receagnises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that the future econumic benefits would
flow {o the enlity and specific criteria have been met for each of the activities described below. The Company bases.its estimates on historical
results, taking into consideration the type of customer, type of transaction and specifics of the arrangement.

e,



L&T INFRASTRUCTFURE, DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes furn:uug part of the standalonc Ind AS financial statements for the year ended Marck 31, 21]23

@) Interest incemie from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic bepefits will flow to the company and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest i is accrmed on time proportion basis, by reference 1o the principle oulsmding at the
effective interest rats..

b} Contéact reverive for fixed price cantracts is recognised only to the extent of cast lncurred that it is probable will be recoverable till such
time the cutcame of the job cannot be ascertained refiably. Whea the cutcome of the contrecl is ascedained refiably, contract revenue is
recognised at cost of work performed on the contract plus proportionate margin, using the percentage of completion method. The company

-recognized revenue ta the evtedt of performadee obligations compleled. Unbilled revenue represents value of services parformed in
accaedance with the contract terms but nat billed.
For the purposes of recugmsmg revenye, contract revenue comprises the inifial amount of revenue agreed in-the contract, the variaiions in
contract work, claims and incentive payments to the extent that it is probalile that they will result in revenue and they are capable. of beinp
‘reliably meastired.

For this purposs, actual cost includes cost of land and developmental rights but excludes borrowing cost. Expected loss if any, on the
“cansynction activity is reco,,msed oy un expense in the period in which it is foreseen, irrespective of the stage of complen{m of the

coniract,
When il is' probabls that Iotal contract costs will excced total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expensé in the
Staterment of Profit and Loss in the period i in which such probability oceurs,
¢} Income from eperation and maititenance services provided to Subsidinriés are accdunted ofi acerual basis to the extent that it is probable
that the econamic benefits wili flow to the Company and the revenus can be reliably measured.
d) Income from advisory services are accounted for to {he extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will Sow te the Company, the
right to reccive such income arises and the revenue can be reliably measured.
) Dividend income is recognised when the right fo receive-the same is established by the reporting date.
B Other items of income are-accounted as and when the right to receive such-income ariscs and itis probable that the coonomic benefits will
flow to the Company and thi amount of incomte can he measured reliably.
D Cashand ank balagces
Cash and bank batances include cash and cash equivalents and other hank batasices. Cash and ¢ash equivalents include cash on hand, balaneds
with banks and highly liquid financial instryments, which arc readily convertible into known amounits of cash that-are subject to an insignificant
risk of change in valite and having original maturity of three months or less from the dite.of putchase. Other bank balances includes fixed
deposits with original matuiity of more than three months fram the date of purchase.

E  Statement of cash flows_
Statemeat of cash flows is prepared segregating the cash flows from operating, mvcstmg and financing activities. Cash flow from operating
activities is reported using indireet method, Under the indirect method, thié net profit(loss) is adjusted for the cifccts of -

{a) transactions of a non-cash nature; _ _

(b} any defertals or accruals of past-or fulure operating cash receipts or payments and,

(c) all other items of income or expense associaled with investing or financing cash flows.

The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Compasy are segregated based on the available infonmation. Cash.and
cash equivalents (including. bank halances) are reflected as such in the Cash Flow Statement. Those cash and-cash equivalents which are ot
-dvailable for general use as-on the date of Balance Sheet are also included under this category with a specific disclosure.

F  Property, plant a[_lﬂ. equipment (PPE)

PPE is recognizéd when it is probable that future cconomic benefits associated with the item will flow 0 the Comipany and the cost of the item
can he measured reliably.

Frechold land is caried at historical ‘cost. All other iems of property, plant and equipment are stated @t historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and cumulative lmpmrment. Historical cost inéludes expenditure that is dlrect]y aftributable to acqulsmon of the iterus.

.Subsequent costs are included in the asset's canying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as approprinté, oily when it is probable that the
future ecohomic benefits associated with the iteirs will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Properties in the
course for production, supply or administrative. purpdses are carried at cost, Jess mry recogrised impairment loss. Cost includes éxpenditire.that
is dircetly attributable and for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Company's aceounting: policy. -Sech
‘properties are classified to he appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when compieted and ready for intended use. Deprecidtion
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their interded use. '
Depreciation is r{:cognisml' 50 23 ta-write off the cost of assets _(l:_:lher than fieehold land and assets: under construction) less their residual values
over their usefitl lives, specified in Schedule 11 1o the Companies Act, 2013 or in the case of assels where the vseful life is detenmined by
‘techuical {managemient) evaluation, over the useful life so determined, using the straight-line method .'flie'estimatcd useful lives and residual
“valires are revzewcd at'the end of cach year, with the effect of any changes in-estimate. décounted for-on-a prespective basis.




L& T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LINIITED
Notes forming pzrt of the standalone End AS finaneial stzfements for the year ended Mafch 31,2023

The estimated useful lives of the assels a5 per managemenent evaluation are as {follows:

Estimated
Lategory of Property, plant and equipnient useful lifc
{in years)
Buildings ircluding flate in the name of the Company 50
Plant and equipmentz : )

‘DG Sets 12
Adr-conditioning and refrigeralicn equipment 12
S$plit AC and Window AC . i

Furniture and fixtures 10
Vehietes:

‘Motor cars (other than those under the Company owned car scheme) 7
Molor cycles, scooters and other mopeds i9
Trackors and other vehicles : 8
Vehicles under Company Onned Car Scheme (COCS) ‘5

Oflice equipment:

‘Multifinctiona] devices, pritilers, switches and projcciors. 4

Other office equipments 5
Computers:
Scrvers and systems 6

Desktops, faptops, €le,; 3.
Efectrical insfallations 10

An item of properly, plant and equipment:is derecognised upon disposal. Any gam or foss arising on. the disposal of an item of property
plant and equipment is determinéd as the diiference betwaen the sale proceeds and the. carrying amount of the asset and-is recognised in
the statement or profit and Joss.

Depreciation charge for impaired assets i adjusted in fiture periods in such a manner that ths revised carrying amouut of the asset is
altpecared over its remaining usefil life.

G luyestoient property

Properties hield to ¢am rentals and/or capilal appreciation are classified as investtent property and are measured and reporied at cost, including
transaction costs. Depreciation ‘fs recognised using straight fine method so as to write: off the cost of the investment property kess their residual
values over their usefil lives specified in Schedule I to the Companies.Act, 2013, or in the case of assets where the usefil life was determined
by technical gvaluation, over the usafisl life 50 determined. Depreciation method is reviewed 4t each financial year end to retlect the expected
pattemn of consumptien of the fitwe benefiis embodied in the invastment property. The estimated useful ite and residual values are also
reviewed at each financial year end and the effect of any-change in the cstimates of useful life/ residual value is accounted on prospective basis.
Freehold land and propertics vader construction are- not depreciated. An investment _property is derecogrised upon disposal or when the
investment propecty is pecmanently withdrawn front use and no future ecoriomic benefifs are expected from the. disposal. Any.gain er loss arising
on derecognition of praperly is recognised in the Statemem of Pmﬁt and Loss in the same period.

H Exeeptionalitemns
An itemrof income or expense which by its size, type-or frcidence requires disclosure in order to improve 2n undérstanding of the
performance of me'Com_pan_y'is treated as an exceptional itern and disclosed as such in the financial statements.

I TIntangible assets
Intangible assets are stated af original ¢ost net. of ta:ddlity credits availed, if any, less accumulaled amortization and cumulative impairment,
Intangitle assets are recognized when s p.mbab]e that the future ecuremic benefits that are atiributable ta the asset will flow to the enterprise
and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Int:mgible assets are amortised cn straight line basis over Lhe estimated useful life. The method
of amortisation and useful life are reviewed at the end of each accounting year with the effect of any changes im\hs estimate being aceounted for
an ¢ prospective basis.
Intangible assets are derecugmsed when ne future cconomic benefits are exgedted from Gse or disposal and any gain er loss arising on such
disposal is determined as the difference between the sale pruceeds and the carrying -amount-of the asset. The amoum 5o, ascertamexd is recugmzed
in the Staternent of Profit-and Loss
Intangible assets not ready for the intended.-use-on the date of the Balance Sheet are-disclosed as- "Iﬂlﬂl‘lglbk assels undar
dwelupment




L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
MNotes forming part of the standalone Ind AS financial statéments for the year ended March 31,2023

J  Foreign currency fransactions and translations
a) The fimctional currency of the Company in Iniian Rupee
b) Transactions in foreign currencies enlered inta by the Company are accounted at the exchange ratos prevailing on the date of the

).

transaction or at rates that closely approximate the rate at the date of the trmsactinn.

Exchange differences. that arise on settiement of monetary items or on reporting n!' monelary items at each Balance Sheet date at the

closing rate are recognised as income or expense. in the penod in which lhey arise-except

(f) exchange differences on foreign currency berrowings- relating fo assels under construction for funire productive use, which are
intcluded in the cost of those assets when they aze regarded as ari ‘adjustment to interest costs in aforeign currency not- translated.

(i} exchange differences on transactions entered inio in order.to hedge certain foréign currency risks; and
(iil) exchange differences on moustary items reccivable from or pavable to a foreign operation for which settfement is neither planned nor
© likely to occur (therefure forming part of the net investment in foreign operation), which are recognised initially in. other
comprehensive income and rec!asstﬁed from equity to profit or loss on repayment of the morictary fems.

K Ewployee benefits
Employee benefits include providént: fund, supefannuation fund, employee state insprance schome, grahity fund, compensated absences, long
service awards and post-cruployient medical benefits.

]

Sherf term employee henefits

Allemployee henefits falling due whiolly within twelve months of tenderine the servive are classified as short term employee benefits. Tﬁc
benefits like salaries, wages, short term compensated absences ete. and the-expected cost of honts, ex-gratia are recognised in the peried in
which the employee renders the rélated service.

The undisco_l_mte_d amount of short-terni employee benefits expected to.be paid in cxchange for the services rendered by employees are”
recognised dvring the year when the émployees - render the service. These benefits includé performance incentive and compensated
absences which arg expected to occur within tvelve months afier the end of the period in which the émployee renders the refated service!
The cost of short-term compensated absences is accovnted as under - _ _

(#) in case- of accumulated compensated. absences, when employees render the services that increase their entitlement of future

compensated absences; and
{b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences oceur,

(Ii) Post employment benefits

(a)

®

Defined contribution plans:

The Company's superannuation scheme and State governed provident fund linked with cmployee pension scheme are defined contribution
plans. The contribution paid/ payable under the scheme is recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related service.
Delined benefit plans:

The employees’ gratuity fimd scherme and the provident fued scheme manazed by the trust of the company are the Company's defined
‘buncfit plans. The preserit value of the obligation under such defined beneRt plans is determined based on actuarial valuation using the
Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes cach period of scrvice as giving rise to additional unit of emplayee benefit entitlement and
‘measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

‘The obligation'is measured at the present vaive of the estimated future cash flows, The discount rate used for determining the present value
of the cbligation‘under defined benefit plans, is based on the market yicld on-governmeit securities of a maturity period equivalent to the
weighted average maturity profile of the retated Dbligaiions &t the Balance Shest date.

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and Iosses, the return én plan assets {excluding net interest) and any change in the effect of
asset ceiling (if applicable) are recognised in other comprehensive income and is reflected immediately: in retained. earnings and is not
eélassified to profit or loss.

The interest - element in the actuarial valwation of defined benefit pIans, which comprises the implicit interest cost and the lmpac‘t of
changes in. discount rate, is classified as employee benelit expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

In case'of funded plans, the fa:r value of the plan assets is reduced from the gross obligation undeér the defined benefit plans th cecognise
the obligation on a net basis,

Gains or losses on the curtailment or setlement of any defined benefi t-plan are recognised when the curtaibment er settlement accurs. Past
service cost is recognised as. expénse at the earlier of the plan amendment or curtailment and whea the Company rccogmses related.
restmcturmg cnsts of tetrnination benefits,
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L

(iii) Other long term employee benefits: _ _
The present value of the-obligation under fong e etiployee bengfit plans such 25 compensaled absences is determined based on actuarial
valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

The obligation is measured af the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rate used for deténpining_rha present value

of the oblization under defined benefit plans, is based on the market yield on government securities:of a maturity period equivalent to the’
weighted average maturity profile of the reated obligations at the Balance Sheet date.

Reneasurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the retien ait plin assets' (excluding net interest ) and any change in the effect of
asset ceiling (wherever applicable) ane recognized immediately.in profit or toss.

Gains or losses on the-curtailment or settfement of any long-term employce benefit plan are recosnized when the curtailment or settfemaiit

occurs. Past seivice, cost is recogized 2s expense at the earlier of tlie plan amendment-or curiailment and when the Company reengnizes

related restructuring €0sts or termination benefits.

Borrowlng costs

Borrowing costs inctude interest calcufated using the effective interest method, amortisation ol ancillary costs incwred and exchange, diffcrence_s
arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment 1o Lhe inferest cost. Borrowing costs, atlocated 10 and
utilized for acquisition, construction ior. production of qualifying assets, pertaining to the period from commencement of activities relating to
construction £ development of the qualifying assct up to the date of capifalization of such assel are added to. ihé cost of the assets. A qualifying
msset is an asset that necessarily require a substantial period of time to pet ready for its intended use for sale. All other borrowing costs are
Tecognized in profit or Joss fn'the year-in which they are incarred. :

Segment reparting

The Company identifies primary segments based o the doininimni . sovrce, paturs of risks and refurns and the internal organization and
manageinent structure. The operating segments are ihe segmenls for which separate financial information is available and for which: opezatiag
profit/ loss amounis are evaluated segufarly by the gxecutive Manageinent in deciding hotv to allociite resources and in assessing pérformance.

Segment accounting policics are in line with the aceounting policies of the Company. Segment revenue, Segment expenses, segment assets and
segment fiabilities have been identified To segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment. The identification
of cperaling segments and repording of amounis is consistent with performance assessment and résource allocation by the management.

mter-segmeni revenue is accoumted on the basis of iransactions which are primarily defermined baséd on market/ fair value factors.
Revenue, expenses, assets and Habilitiés which relate to the Company as a whole and are not allocable to segments on reasopable basis bave been

included under Yinaliocated reverc f expenses / assets / liabilities.
Leases
The Company-assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a iease if the confract conveys

-the right to.control the use of an idenlified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a ¢ontract conveys the

right to controf the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:(i) the contract invelves the use of #n identified asset(it} the
Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throvgh the period of the fease and (iii} the Company has the right
to-direct the use of the asset. '

Af the date of t:ommenc_ement:of the lease, the Company recognizes:a right-of-use assel("ROU™).and 2 corresponding Jease liabikity for atl lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term-of twelve months or less {shoat-feim [cases) and low value leases. Foz these
short ferm and tow value [eases, the Company recognizes the lease paymenis as ap operating expens< on a straight-line basis over the temm of the
lease, '

Certain [ease arrangements includes the options to extend.or terminate the lease before the end of the lease tem. ROU asscls and lease Iiabili_tiss
includes these options when i is. reasenably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of use assels are infiiatly recognized al cost, which comprisés the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made 8 or prior to me'corruueqcmne'nt date of the lease plus any mitial direct costs less any lease incemtives. They are subsequently measuzed at
£0st less accumulated depreciation and impafrment losses.

Right-of-se assets are depreciated from the commencement date on-a straight tine hasis over the shorter of the [zase term anc_t uscful life of the
underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever evems or ehanges in circimslances indicate that thedr carrying
amounis may not be recoverable. For the purpese of &upairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e.the higher of the fair value less cost to sell
and the value-in-use) is-detérmiined on en individual asset basis unfess the asset dogs not generste cashflows that are fargely independent of those
from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amaunt is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease Hability is initially messtred 2t amortized cost at the present velue of the future Jease payinents. The lease paymenis are discouanted
using the interest rate implicit in the Jease oy, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country-of domicite ot
these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes ils
assessment if whether it will exéceise an extension or a terminatian option. Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented-in the
Balance Sheetand lease payments have been classified a3 financing cash Hows, ss applicable.
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Notes forming parl of tkie standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year caded March 31, 2023

-0 Earpings per share
Basic eamings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) for lhe year attributable to equity shareholders by the- wmghtcd average
number of equity sheres outstanding during the year. For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the nét profit/ loss for the year
attributable te the equity sharchelders and the weighted average number of shases oitstanding duriog the year are adjusted for the effects of
dilutive potential equity shares.

P Taxesoniocome.

The income tax éxpensc or credit for the year is the tax payable on-current year's taxable income based on the applicable infome tax rate adjisted
by changes in defered tax assets.and liabilitics attritable totemporary-differences and to unused tax losses: The current income tax charge is
calculated on the basis of tax Iaws enacted or substantively cnacted at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates,
positions laken, in tax retrns with respect.to situations in which. appticablé lax reguldtion is subject to interpretalion and provisions are
established where approptiate onthe basis of smounts expected to be paid 1o the tax avthorities.
Minimum Afternate Tax (MAT) pald in accordance witk the tax Izmrs, which gives. future econotide benefits in the form of adjustment to Reture
iticome tax Hability, is con51d|:rcd ag an asset if theré is convincing ¢vidence that the cntity will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is
recognised as an asset when it is highly probable that filure econoinic benefit associated wiih it will flow to the entity,

Dcfcn’cd tax is provided in full, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assels and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements, However deferred income tax is not accounted if it arises from the. initial recognition-of an asset or liability that at the time
of the transaction affects neithier the accounting prolil nor laxable profit (tax loss). Déferred tax is determiined 1ising tax cates and Taws that have
been enactzd or substantively enacted by the end of the rcportm“ period and are expected o apply when the related deferred income tax
assetfliability is realised or settiéd.
Déeferred tax assets are recognised for all deduciible temporary differences and umnsed tax losses only if'i itis probable that. future taxable amonnts
“will be available to wiilise those temporary-differences and losses.
Deferred {ax asscts and deferred tax liabilities are offset, when the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset current txx assels and fiabilities
-and when the deferved tax balances refated {0 (he same authority. '
Current andt deferved-tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to itens recognised in other comprehensive income o
directly in equity wherein the related tax is also recognised in other comprehensive inconte or directly in.cquity, as applicable,

Q [mpairment of assets-
The carrying values of assets/ cash generating units at each balance sheet date are reviewed for- rpairment lf any indication of impairment
exists, The following intangible assels ans tested for impairment each lnancial year bven if there is no indication that the asset is impaired:
(a) an intangible asset that is not yet: available for use; and (I:} an intangible asset that is amortized w ith mdcﬁmtc useful life,

If the cnrrymo amount of the assels excccd the estimated recoverable ‘emount, an impatrment is rccogmscd for suchi excess arount. The
impairment loss s recognised 85.4n expense in the Staiement of Profit and Loss, anless the asset is carricd at revalued amount, in whichi case any
impairment loss n__ft_]u: revabued asseris treated as a revaluation decrease to the exient a reveluation reserve is available for that asset.

The recoverable amount is the higher of the Fiir value fess costs of disposal and value in usé. Ini-assessing valte in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the cument market assessments of the tims value of money
and the risks specific to the assét for which the estimated future cash flows are suitable adjusted for risks specific to the estimated-cash fiows.

When there is indication that an impaimment loss recoghised for an asset (other than a revalved asset) in earlier accomnng periads no Ion,,er

exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss i is recognised in the Statement of Profit-and Loss, to the extent the amount was

previously charged 1o the Staterment of Profit and Eoss.

When an impairment loss  subscquently reverses, the carrymg amount of the asset is increased to-the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,

bit so that the increaséd coryiog amount does not exceed the canymv g amount that would kave been determined had no impairenent loss been
recopnized for the asset in pricr years.
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Notes. formmg part of the standzlone Ind AS fingmrcial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

R Provisions, contingent Habilifies and contingent assets
A provision is. recognised when the Company fias a present obligation. (fegal or constructive) as a resull of past events and it is probable that an-
-outflow of resources will be required fo.setile the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.
The amount recoguised as a provision is the best estimate of the considération requised to setife the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into. account the risks and-uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When & peovision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to setile the present obligation, its carrying. amount &s ihe present value of those. cash flows (when the effect of the time value of nioncy is.
malcna])
When some or all of the. economic’ benefils required to setile a pravision are éxpeeted to be recovered fram a thied pasty, ‘a receivable is-

recognised as an asset if it is vidually ceriaih that the reimbursement will be received and the mnount.of the receivable can be measured reliahly.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in notes in case of a present ebligation arising from: past events, when it is not probable that-an outflow of
resources will be required to setile the oblization or a present obfigation arising: from’ past evenls, when: no refisble estimate is possible .
Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements where an inflow of econornic benefits are probable.

5 Financial Tnsfiaments

Financial assets and financial Habilitics are recognised when the Company becomes .a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Finaricial assets and financiaf Habilitics afe iriitially niegsured at fair value. Transaction costs that are. directly attribustable to the acquisition er
issue of financial assets and finacial liabilities (other than finaneial assets and-financial Habilities at fair value through profit.or loss) are. added
to or deducted frami the fair value of the financial assets of financial liabilities, as appropeiate; on initial récognition. Transaction costs difecty
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial }abilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss. [n case of funding to-subsidiary companies in the form of interest free or concession loans and preferencc shiares, the excess of the actual
amaued of the funding over initially measured fair value is accounted as an equity investment {deemed equity).

A financial asset and a financial lisbitity is offset and presented on nef basis in the balance sheet when there is a current legally enforceable right
o set-off the recognised amounts and it is interded to either Setile on net basis of fo realise the aseét aird settle the liability simuillancously.

a}  Financial Assets
Al recognised finaneial assets arc subsequently measwred in their éntirety at €ither émortised cost or Fair valve, depending on the,
‘clussification of the financial assets.
I Cash and eash equivalents

‘Cash and bank batanees afso include fixed deposits, margin money depasits, earmarked bataneés with banks and other baok balances.
which have restrictions on repatriation. Shert tenm highly fiquid investments befng not free from more. than insignificant risk of
change are not included as part of cash and cash equivalents. Bank overdeafis which are part of fhe cash management process is
included as part of cash and cash equivatents.

ii. Financial asscts at amortized cost
Fmancial assels are si!h'sei;ucnﬁy theasured at-amortised cost wsing the effective interest method if these financial assets are held
within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to.collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of
‘thé financial asset give rise on specified difes to cash Aows that are solely payments of principat and interest on the principal amount
oulstandmg.
{iii. ‘Finaacial assets at Fair value through otker comprekensive income (FYTOCI)

Financial assets dre measurgd at fair value (keough other comprehensive income if thése finandial assets are held within a business
mode] whose objective is ashieved by both coflecting contractudl cash flows and selling financial assets and the confractual terms of
the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash Bews that arc solcly payments’ ofprlncrpa.l and m!chsl onthe: pnnclpal amount
outstanding. The company, on an mstmmcnl:—wxse basis, opts. to consider cerlain invesiment in equity instruments as measured at fair
yalué through other compichensive income. These investments are disclosed separately in the fiaancial statéments. -

iv. Financial asscis-af fair value throagh profit or loss (FYTPL)

Financial assets are mewsured at fair value throughi profit ot loss unless it is measured-at. amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive Income o initial recognition. Eg. Investments in mutizal funds.

v. Investmentin equity Instraments issued by subsidiaries ar¢ shown at cost less impairments, if any, In case of funding to subsidiary
companices in the form of interest free-or concession loans and preference shares, the excess of the dctual amount of the fuading over
initially measured fair value is acommied a3 an equity investment. & financial asset and a ﬁnanc:al liability is offset and presented.on
net basis in the balance shicet when theré is a‘current legally enforceable tight to set-off thie recognised anmounts and i is infended to
either settlc on-net basis ot to vealise the asset and setile the. liability sunultanwusly_
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b)

vi.

Vil

Tmpairmerit of finaucial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on finaneial assets measured at amertised cost,
debt instrurnents at FVTOC), lease. receivables, trade receivables and other contractual rights ta receive cash or ather financial asset
and financial guarantees not designated as at FVTEL,

Expected crédit osses are the weighted average-of credit Iosses with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. Credit
loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are dué to the Company in accordance with the coniract/agreement and
all the cash flows tht the Company expects to receive-(i.c.. all cash shortfalls), discaunted at the nrlgmal effective interest rate. The
Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial istrument, through the expected life of the
financial instrument.

The- Compary measures the loss allovvance for a financial instrument at an amount equal 1o the life-time expected eredit losses if the
credit risk -on-that financial :nstrumcnl has incyease significantly since initial recogpition If the credit risk has not- increased
significantly; the Company measures the Joss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month e‘{pected credit tosses. 12-month expr:i:tcd
credit losses are portion of the life-time expected eredit losses and represent the life-time cash shortfatls that will result ifthe c_lefﬂult
occurs within 12 montbs afier therepotting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months;

When making the-assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company
uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expécted lifs of the finaricial instiument instead of a charge in the amount

:of the expested credit loss. To achieve: that, the Company cotmpares the risk of a.default-occurring en the financiaf instrument as at

the reperting date with the risk of a default ocourring en initia) recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information,

“that is available withous undue cost or cﬁf‘ul_’t,_tﬁat:is indicative of significant increases in creditrisk since initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial asset
A finanicial asset is primarily derceognised whei:
+  the rights-to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash Aows from the asset or has assunied on ubllgalmn to-pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay-to.a third party under a pass-through arrangement; and with a)the Company has
transferred subsitantially ll the risks and rewards of the.asset, or b) the Company has. neither transferred nor retained
substanitally all the risks and rewards of the asset, but his transferred control of the asset.

+  on derccogaition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount measured at the date. of
derécognition and ke considération received is recognized in the Stateodemn of Profit and Loss.

Financial Liabilities and Equlty_mslrl_lmtnts
All financial Iiab’ilitic_s are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at fair valoe through-profit or loss.

L

Financial liabilitics at fair value throogh profit or loss
Financial liabilities are classified as at EVTPL when the financial liability is hetd for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. A
Tinancial liabitity is classificd as held for trading if:-
*  Ithas been incuried piincipally for the purpose of tepurchasing if in the near térm; or
*  On initial recognition it is-part of a porifolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together and has
a recent actual pattem of short-ferm profit-taking; or
*  Itis aderivative that is not designated and effective as-a hedging instrumerit.
A financial |fability other than a financial liability held for trading may '_be designatedas at FYTPL upon initial recognition, if:
*  Such-designation eliminates or significantty réduces &« measurement or Tecognition inconsistericy that would atherwise arise;

*  The.finaricial lability forms part of & group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
‘performance is evaluation on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company's documented risk management gr
investment strategy, and inforfration about the grouping provided internally on that basis; o

* It forms part of a contract containing one er more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109 permits the entize :combined
contract to be designated as at FYTPL in accordarice with Ind AS 109

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair watue, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognized in profit or loss.

Financial liahilities 2t amtortized cost

Financial tiabilities that tre not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FYTPL are measured 4t amortized cost at the end of
subsequent accdunting periods. The carrying amounts of Grangial liabilitics that are. subsequently measuied at amortized cost are
detenmined based on the effective interest method. Financial guarantee coniracts are subsequently measured at the amount of
impairment [oss-allowance, if any, or the amount recognized 2t inceplion net of comulative amottization, whichever is higher. All
other financial liabilitics are measured at amoriized cost using effective interest mte methed,
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W

ili ~Equity fastruments _ _
An equity instrument is. any contract that evidences a.residual interest in the assets of an entity afer deducting all of jis Habilities,
Equity instruments issued by a cofmpany-afe Fccognized at the proceeis recéived.

iv. Derccognifion
Financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is. dischargzed or cancelled or expires.

o) Cnmpaund i nancial instrunents isswed by the Cermpany which can be converted into fixed number of equlty shares-at the option. of the
folders irrespective of changes ‘in the fair value of the insirument are eccounted by separately: recognising the liability and the eqwty
components. The liability component is mitiafly recognised at the fair value of a comparable ha!nhty that does not have an equity
canversion nptlon The equity component is uutmlly recognised at the difference between the fatr value of the compound financial
‘insiruracnt as a whole and the fair value of the liahility component. The direcily attributable fransaction costs are allocated 1o the liability
und (he equily componerds in proportion-to their initial carryu:lo_ ameounis,

Subsequent 10 initéal recoghition, the Hability component of the compound financial instrument is measured at aniorfised cost using the

effeclive interest methed, The equity component of a compaund financial instrumeit-is not remepsured subsequently.

Stcuritics preminm acceunt

Secwitivs premium mcludes the difference between the face value of the equity shares and the consideration received in respect of shares issued.
The issoe expenses of secuiities which qualify as ‘equity instruments are written ofF against securitiés promitm account.

Prenmium on buy back of ths equity instrurnents and Compilsorily convertible preference shares is adjosted against securities preminm account.

Mon-current agsets held for sale

Non-custent assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sake if their carrying amount is'intended to be wecavered peincipally ihrough a
sale (rather than through continwing use) when the asset {or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject ooly ta
terms that are usval and custonmry for sale of such asset (or dispossi group) and the sale is highly perobable and is expecled to qualify For
recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification. Nos-currenit assets and disposal groups classifiéd as lield for sale

are medsured at lower of thefr carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell,

Claims

Claims againct the Company not acknowledged as debis are disclosed under contingent liabilitics. Claims made by the - company are recognised
as and when the same is approved by WHe respective authorities with whom the claim is lodged:

Commilments
Commitments are future liabilities for conleactual expenditure. Commitments are classified and disclosed as Follows:
(i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining o be executed on capital account and not provided For
(i) Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid
(iii) Funding rclated commitment to subsidiary, associaté and joint venture companies and.
'(i\r) Other non-canceltable commitments, if any, ‘to the extent they are considered material and relevant in-the up'inion of management
Other cominitments related to sales/procurements made in the noneal course of business are not disclosed fo avoid excessiie details.
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Nntes_'furming_pnctofthe tandajaneInd AS fin

2 Findncial'assets - Cash and cash equivalents

ial sintements for the year endéd March 31, 2023

oS

“h

- . As at J1-03-2023 AS A€ 31-03-2012.
Particulars
. Tcrore ? crore
Balarees with Banks in Coment Accounts 114 122,
Li4’ 122
3 Fingacial issets - Olher bank balances
N . Ax at 31.03-2023 Ag at 31-03-2022
Particalars : - R ;
L T crore ¥ crare-
Fl\ced deposits with banks (with Original mamrity mor than 3 months, includicg 475,59 38774
intérest acerued thereon) )
+ Earmarked bank account for Non. Coavertible Debentures 0.02 0.04
¥ L,73357 pa at March 31, 2023, % 4,058,315/ as al March 31, 2022]
47551 357.78
Financiz] assets - Trade Récejvables*
- As at 31-03-2023 Ax at 31-03-2022
Particulars
Terore: T erore
Receivables considered good - unsecured- 5.79 3.9%
Less: Piavision for expecied credit loss {174} (1.78)
. 4,0 7.20
_*Refernote 48
Financial asscts - Eoans
Particulars As at 31032013 As at 31032022
T crure ¥ crore
Financinl assets measured at amortized cost
Unsecured loans ta subsidiaties: .
[nter-corponte déposits {Rafer Note SA} 54109 33832,
Unsecured kaans (Refer Note 58) - 1168
) 54109 350.00
Less : Provision for expécted ciedit Joss (32:67) (32.67)
508,92 317.33

5A ; Inter corporate deposits placed with.the following subsidiaries (intercst charged at one year G-Sec rate p.a. prevailing on the

effective date cf_bornm"ing):_
Nante of the subsidiary A_s__at 31-03-2033 Avat IH03-2022
¥ erore T crore
(1) Panipat Elzvated Comidor Limited 7089 £4.13
(i) LET Samekhiali Gandhidham Tollway Limited 13242 . 52.94
(iii) L&T Vadodara Bharuch Tollway Limited. - 12.23
(iv} L&T Rajkot - Vadiziar Toliway Limited 331.59 135.02
[v) Wateak Infrastructure Private Linsited 5.19 -
54109 33832
Lzss : Provision for expected credit lass 3267 (32.67)
Total intercorporate deposits given (Nef) 503,42 05,65
3B +Unsacured loan provided to the following subsidiaries
Nere of the subsidiniy Asal 30052003 Asat 31032077
tlme ¥ crare T crore
(i) L&T Chennai Tada Tollway Limited - 1168
. 1168
‘Less ; Provision for expected eredit loss - .
Tolsl d loans provided (Nety - 1168

Note: The settlement agreement between L&T Chennai Tada Tollway Limited and NHAI was executed .2nd seifled on February
03,2023. Pursuant to this agreement, the management assessed the recoverbility. o Fthe investmerits and loans from the company and

hiwe provided for in the books. (Refer Mote 32}
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Notcs forming part of the stzndalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended Marck 31, 2623

& Féugnéial assets - Investments

. Asat31-03-2023  Asat 31.03-2022
Particulars o
Terore T crore
3} Investments (unqu_oled im*e.sfmmls} measured at cost
(&} Equily instruments.
Subsidfaries o 15143 1,606.95
Asspciates (Refer Wote 64, {B) ) - i385
Othars 14.36 404:33
(ii) Preference sharas )
Subsidianes 714.03 7__l-!'_03
Oﬂl:l’s - 130.50
‘) Financfal assets measured at fair valus through P&L
(i} Muteal Fands 21044 17747
<) Financial assets measured at-amortized cost
Debt Securities
Subsidiaries 260,87 0397
d) Financial assets tncasured at fair vakie through OCL
Infrastruciure Investment Trust {InvIT} - 46821
Sub-atal {A} 2,714.54 3,628.46
Investments in India 2,714.54 3,623 .46
Investiments outside India - -
Sub-tetal () 271454 3,625,465
Less ; Allowznce for impainpent () (75726) {1,240.78}
Totsl(D=A-C) 1,857.28 138468

Refer totes 64 to 6E for details ahout the investments, the covenanis and undertakings altached to them and the shares pldged as

Note 6(a)

Investmient jn the' fully paid equity shares of Kudgi Transmission Limited to the tune of Rs. 192,60 crores have becn classificd as
[Investment beld for sale under IndAS 165.Non - current Asseis held for sale and discontinued operations puisizdnt 1o the signing of
the Share Purchase hgrecment on 16 December 2022 béhween the company and Infrastencture Yiel Plus Fund 1T managad By

Edelnfse Allematt Asset Advisers Fund Limited
Note &[h}

Rafer Note 43 reganding disclosuie on stake sale, consquent bo which as per tenms aid condilions it has boen decided ta divest the.
holding at LTIIPL INDVIT Services Limited by ti Comipany. Accordingly, the invesiment is classified as held forsale onder

IndAS 103,
Note §{c)

As perNCLT drder dzted -09 January 2023, Watesk Tnfy rastructure Privale Limited has béen demerged from Infrastrucnuoe Business
of L&T Tavestment Managers Services Limited (L1SL) and sécordingly the financials of the company have bean conselidated With
T.&T IDPL as'al 00% wholly owned subsidiary. Pusuant to the schems of demerger, 223, 32,900 Equity shares were alloted to the

Company at the face value of Ks. 10/ gach;

e



L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes forming part 6f the stanalone fnd AS financial statements for thé year ended March 31, 2023

6A: Details of investurents -

Fuee

. . Asat 31-03-2023. . 31-03-20
Particulars valne No. of units Asa 2023 As at. 032022
per uuit Z crore Ferore
I lavestment in equity instruments
(A) Subsidiary conparies:
(i)  Tovesiment in I‘ully_ paid equity shares:
L&T Szmbalpur - Rourkelz Tollway Limited 10 29,00,29.598 290,03 290.03
1L&T Decean Toliways Limited 10 24,33,39,998 24334 243.34.
Kudgi Transmission Limited 10 19,25.99,998 - 192.60
Ahmedabad - Maliva Tollway Limiwed 10 14,89,99,900 149,60 149.00
L&T Rajkot - Vadinar Tollway Litnited 10 10,99,99,900 L1000 110.00
Panipat Elevated Corridor Limited 10 3;00.46,_70{1 30.05 3005
L&T Samakhiali Gandhidham Tolhvay Limited o 8.05.27,060 30.53 20.53
L& T Interstate Read Comridor Limited 10 5,71,59,998 57.16 57.16
Vadodara Bhanuch Toflway Limited 10 4,34,99,998 43.50 4350
£ &T Transportation [nfrastructure Limited ) 10 3,03,35,000 5314 ‘5314
Watrak [nfrastructure Private Limited [Refer Note 6(c)] )
{(Previous year : 9,9'9__5‘ egiity shayes.of 85,10 each) ) 1e 22482890 0.01 0.01
Rewin Infrastructure Limited (Incorporated duting the year) 10 10,00,06,000 100.00° -
(2} 1,156.75 1,24%.36
(ia) Investments field for sale
Kudgi Transmission Limited [Refer Nove B(a)] 1o 19,25,99,998 192.60 -
LTIDPL INDVIT Services Limited [Refer Note 6(b)] 10 1,39,50,000" 13.95 -
)] 206.55 -
(i [nvestment in terminated projects )
PNG Tollway Limited 10 "12,51,33,996 125.13 125.13
L&T Chennaj - Tada Tollway Limited 10 4,15,99.300 42.00 42.00,
) 167.13 15213
¢iii) Deemed equity investment component {(Amortised cost adjustment on interest free/fower than marlict rafe [oans)
Ahmedabad - Maliya Toliway Limited 72,69 72,69
L&T Rajkot - Vadinar Tollway Limited 24.14 34.14
L&T Samakhiaii Gandhidham Tollway Limited 27.20 27.20
Fanipat Elevated Corridar Limited 6.44 544
[y 19447 CEMAT
(b}  Associate companies:
Investment in fully pald cquity shares: ) )
LTIPL INDVIT Services Limited 10 1,39,50,000 13.95
(€} - 13.95 |
{c} Other companies:
Investment in fully paid equity shares:
Second Yivekananda Bnd__gc Tollway Company Private Limited 10 915, 0.00 0.00
- SICAL [ron Ore Terminals Limited (Refer Note. 17) [0 1,43,00,000 1430 1430
Indian Highway Management Company Limited 0 55537 .56 D.56:
L&T Halol - Shamiaji Toflway Limited (Refer Nots 6D) 10 38,95,1%,500 : 339.52°
{f 14.36 404.38
Total (atlteHi+er) 1,735.76 '2,025.29
{d) Prefercnce skares considered as equity
Ahmedabad - Maliya Tollway Litnited 18 26,39 44,604 26894 268.94
L&T Rajkot - Vadinar Tollway Limited 10 17,17,94,452 171.79 17179
L&T Samakhiali Gandhidham Tollway Limited 10 12,81,84,003 1238.18 128.1%
PNG Tollway Limited 10 9,11,10,000 91.11 9Lt
L&T Deccan Tollways Limited 10 3.40,00,000 54.00 54£:00
714,03 714.03
(2) Ofther Companies
Investneent ili'prefe;_'encc_shn'i_‘jn )
‘L&T Halol - Shamlaji Tollway Limited 10 13,05.,00,000 - 136.50

13050

(92.61}



L&T INFRASTRUCTURE. DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED

.Notes forming part of the standalone Ind AS financial statensents. for the vear ended March 31, 2023

1 Invesiment in Infrastrectere Investrment Trust (FavTF)

indinfravit Trust 100
W Tavestment del fures - Subsidiary compasies
Panipat Elevatad Corzidor Limited (10.56% secured non 10.00.600
canvertible debentures) R
. - Mativa Tolhiay Limited (3.85% _
Ahrsedabad - Maliya Tolhsay Limited (8.85% secured non 10,00,000

canvertible debentures

YV Mutual Fonds
Tata Gversight Fandy
Tata Liquid Fund Regular Plan - Growth
ICICI Prudential Liquid Fund Growth
HSBC Ovamight Fund - Regular Growth (Formerly L&T Liquid Funds}
HSBC Ovemight funds ( Formerly L&T Overnight funds)
Eotak Liguid Regular Flan Growth -
Kotak Liquid - Growth -Overight
UTI Liquid Cash Flan Insfitutional - Growth
VT1 Overnight Fund - Direct Plan - Growth
Nippon India Gvernight Fund - Growih
Axis Liquid Fund - Growth
Axis Overnight Fund - Growth
Aditya Birla Overnight Fund - Regular Gravweh
Aditya Rirla Overnight Fund - Birect Plan
Toiad investment in:bintual fands -

“Total
‘Lass; Provision for diminutica in value of investment.
Total investment

3,75.61,677

1,600
1,750
127,531

5328
17,742

815.

1,60,594
1,65,500
1,380

17
1,26,121
16,77.748
7.59 464
3,192

82,000

12,195

- 46821
_ 468.21
76.71 169.97
184.17 .
261.37 109,97
15,08 .
0.65 062,
2.13 1193
0.16. .
18.8¢ 7.79
18.7% 021
0322
0.01 129.04
18.70
1257 N
90.04
038 135
10,05 26.52
L47
2{0.44 17747
202109 362546
(752.26) {1240.78)
2,163.83 2,354.68

<K=LK This space is imeutionally left blonk >>>>>>>
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L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED

Notcs forming part of the-standalone ind AS financial statemeats forthe year ended Maxch 31, 2023
Nate 68;
The Comipany has pledged its following investnients in equity shares in. subsidiaries as the collateral against- the term loans
provided by lenders of the respective subsidiaries

S Na € the Companv As at 31-03-2023 As at 31-03-2022
No e oF the L-0mpany ‘% crore % crors
(a) | Subsidiary companies
N L& T Samakhiali Gandhidham Tollway Limited 4107 £1.07
41.07 . 41.07 |
Note 6C:

Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS 107 - Financial Tnstruments: Disclosures
The Compatty has given, inter alia, the following undertakings. in Tespect of its investments:-

{a) Jtointty with Larsen & Toubro Limited (promoter), to.the term lenders of L&T Samakhiati Gandhidham Tollway Limited
{LTSGTL}).no to teduce the joint sharcholding in LTSGTL below-51% until the financiat assistance received from the term
Tenders is repaid in full by LTSGTL. ' ' B '

(b} "To the tern lenders of the below mentioned sibsidiarics, not to divest control without the prior approval of the lenders and
Gujarat State Road Development Corporation Limited.

- L&T Rajkot - Vadingr Tollway Limited
- Ahmedabad - Maliya Tollway Limiited

{c) To the term lenders of L&T Sambalpur - Rourkela Tollway Limited (LTSRTL) to retain the management control of LTSRTL-
and not to reduce the shareholding belaw 51% witliout prior written approval of the lenders.

(d} To the term lenders of L&T Decean Tollways Limited not 1o reduce its shareholding below 51% of total paid up equity share-
capital as per the Finaftce Plan during the currency of the loan without prior approval of 1he kenders,

(e) To the term lenders of L&T Interstate Road Corridor Limited not to reduce its sharchalding below 51% until the expiry of

" three Years from Commercial Operation Ddte {COD) dnd thereaiter not to reduce its shareholding below 26% until the
financial assistance received from the term lenders is vepaid in full.

Note 61
Buring the previous: year, investments in L&T Halol Shamalji Tollway Limited (LTHSTL) were mmpleteiy provided far Rs.
320.02 cr based on ' the management assessment:

During the current year, the Carporate Insolvency Resolotion Proceedings attained finality vide the ofder of NCLT, Special Benchi,
—1I, Chennai Dated 26th August 2022 wherein the. resolution plan of M/s. Kalyan Toll Infrastructure Limit was approved and taken

over by them, Pursuant to this, the provisions carried in books were written back .and corre_spon_dl_noly the investments wers

complétely written off during the year, ' '

Note 6E:

The Company is canying net investments aggregating Rs. 554.07 crores (As at Marchi 31, 2022 Rs. 740,47 crores} and has
outstanding net loans and advances aggregating Rs. 503.22 crores (As at March 31, 2022 Rs, 293.41 crores) provided ta-certain
-operating subsidiaries of the Company cngaged in infrastructure projects whose networth is-fully eroded/undergoing restructuring
due to continuous losses, for a period of more than 5 years, as per the audited financial information of these entities as at March 31,
2023,

Considering the gestalion ‘period required for break evem for such infrastrucre investments, restructuring/refinancing
arcapgements carried out/proposed and expected improved cash flows in its future business projections, no additional pravision/
adjustmerit to the carrying value of the said investments is considered necessary by the Management as at March 31, 2023,

For the purpose of dctcrmmmg the recoverable -value of its-investments, the Company has considered the disconnted. cash Flows

from the frivestmenit, determined based on the traffic projections and with discount rates calculafed based on the cost of equity for
the applicable inveéstment, adjusted for the proposed restructuring/refinancing.




L&T [NFRASTRUC_TURE DEYELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the standalope Ind AS financial statéments for the year ended March 31, 2023

7

-2

Tinancial assefs - Others
- . As at 31-03-2623 As at 31-83-2022
Pariicwlars ’ . R R
e Z crore ¥ crore

Receivable from Subsidiary/Asseciates - 573
Advances recoverable in cash 70.15 67.05
‘Less:Pravisien for expecied credit loss {5.00) {5.47)
Net Advance recoverable invcash 65.15. §1.58
-Advanee tovards investment.in Mutual Funds 7.50

Security depasits 026 029

' 7251 67.60

Note 7A

a) The Company had received a notice dated Aprif 20, 2015 from Mahsrashira Asrport Dovelopment Lompany Limited
(MADC), s per-which ATADC had instructed to hard over the possession of 50.85 aeres of vecant land taken on ninety
nine years lease af Nagpur, wilhin a period of 15 days, as the Company has not commenced comcercial activities by June
20, 2013. Accordingly, the book valuz of premium paid to MADC as:at March 31, 2022 and as at March 31, 2021 shown
as recoverable Was 2 Nil. 'Fhe Company had approached MADC fér either iransfer of land to any interested party of to
make atotal exit-from its alintied land by claiming refund. Diring lhe year 2019-20, the company received % [3.73 crores
{rom MADC aid balance of  0.47 crores was provided for during 2019-20. During the current year 2022-23, thie sum ot T
047 crores was wrilten off during the year. '

b) The claine of bunk Guarantee of 2 5 Croms with Gujarat Maritime Board transferred to the District cowrt of
Gandhinagar 15 still pending for hearing-and hénce the amount of 2 5 Crores have beea provided for in the books of
aceounis.

‘Non-finaacisl assets - Curreaf fax assels

. CAs at 31-03-2023 Asat 31.03-2022
-Particalars - :
¥ crore T erore
Advance tax (net of provisions for Tax) 2921 35.94
29,21 3594
Nou-Fimancial assets - Current and Deferved Taxes )
.- -ASat31-03-2023 A3 at 33-43-2022
Fariiculars .
¥ crore F crore
Dreferred tax - Assetsf {Liabilities) 3.96 356
3.96 356
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L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROIECTS LIMITED
Notes forming pari of the standalone Ind AS findncial stztements for the vear ¢nded Mareh 31,2023

14 Non-financial assets - Others

Particufars

As at 31-03-2023

-Asat 31-03-2022

¥ crars ¥ crore ¥ crove Fcrore
Advanees recoverable other than in cash 6.12 7.05
6.12 7.05

15 Financial Liabilities - Trade payables® (refer note 49)

Parficulars

As at 31-03-2023

As at 3103-2022

2-crore ¥ crove ¥ erore Ferore

Due fo related parlics _

Promdter 091 75

Fellow subsidiaries 0.08 033

0.99 £.03
Dues to Micro, Small & Medivm Eniergrises 0.14 0.02
Due to others 329 19.03
4.42 2013

Note 134

-As-at March 31, 2023, based on and to the extent of information reccived from the suppliers -regarding their registration as
Micro, Small and Medium Enteiprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enferprises Development Act, 2006, there is an
amount of T0.14 crores (PY - .02 crores) outstanding, bt nat due, in respect of thése vendors.

16 Financial liabilities - Others

. As at 31-03-2023 As at 31-03-2022°
Particulars F,
Z crore % crore ¥ crore 2 crare

Advinee received against sale of invesiments 1430 1430
(Refer Note 17)
Others 10.85 8.71

25.13 23.07
Note 17:

Advance réceived agsinst sale of investments represents advance of ¥ 14.30 crore received from Sieal Logistics Limited (SLL)
againist salc of 1,43.00,000 equity shares of ¥ 10/~ each in Sical Iron Ore Terminals Limited. (SIOTL} at cost to SLL vide
Agreement for Share Sale-and Purchasé dated Decembier 17, 2008, The sale is subject tothe condition that it:can be completed
only after thrcc years from the date of commencemeitt of commereial operation . by SIOTL as per clause 18. 2.2 (i} (d) of the
License agrecment dated Seplemher 23, 2006 between SIOTL and Ennore Port Limited (EPL) SIOTL has not been able to
commence commercial operation &s of March 31, 2022 due to the ban of expott of iron-ere from the State of Kamataka . SIOTL
has got necessary approvals for transfer of such shares and is in the process. of identifying a suitdble investor for infusion of
funds..The Company has requested SIOTL fo approach EBL for. approval of the transfer. As per NCLT ordér dated March 01,
2022, SIOTL has been admitted under IBC {Insolvency and Bankniptey Codc) proceedings.




L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT FROJECTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the standalone Ind AS financial statemenifs for the year ended March 31, 2023

18 Non financial liabilities - Provisions

S As at 31-03-2023 As af 31-03-2022
Particulars )
¥ crore. g erare Ferore; ¥ crore.
Provision for employee benefits .
Retention pay 0.03 123
Compensated absences 3.29 3.60
Gratuity _ 0.73 0.91
Contingeni provisions against standard assets (Refer Note: 20)- 33 1.95
Indemnities pravided on sale of subsidiaries 20.20 20.60
26,58 . 28.29
19 Nom ﬁnancial_[ia]]iliﬁes - Ottiers
‘ . As at 31-03-2023 As af 31-03-2022°
Particulars :
Z crore Z crore # crore T erore
Other payables
‘Btatutory Habilities 413 289
4.13 2.89

20 During the vear, a sumn of Ra. 0.38 ¢rores were provided for contingent provisions against standard asssets as per RBI provisioning

MOrms

< <<= This space is-intentionally left blank >>>>>>>



L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the standalonc nd AS financial sfatements for the year ended Marek 31, 2023

21 Equity share capital

{I) Authorised, issued, subscribed and paid up

(N(6) Authorised:
Particulars As at 31-43-2023 As at 31-03-2022

Na, of shares ¥ crore No. of sharas T crore
Equity shaies of ¥ 10 each £0,00,00,000 .8060.00 80300,00_,_000 860.00
Special equity shares of ¥10each 10,800 0.01 10:000 0.01
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares Corin L
Serics.1 .of T-1,00,00,000 each ) ) 1,800 1,800.00
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares )
‘Scries 2 of 1,00,00,000 ach | 200 200.00
Compuisorily Convertible Preference Shares 2,00,00,00,000 2,000 - -
of ¥10 each

2,80,00,10,000 2,800.01 80,00,12,000 2,800.01

((b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid up:

As at 31-03-2023

As at 31-03-2022

Particulars MNo. of shares ¥ crore Nao. of shares T crore

Equity shares of 10 each 62,95,11,664 629.51 62,95,11,664 629.51
Special squity shares of ¥ 10 each 10,000 0.01 16,000, 0.01
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares 50,000 0.05 . -
Series 1 of ¥ 1,00,00,000 each
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares 50,000 0.05. - -
Series 2 of ¥ 1,00,00,000 each
Compulsorily Convertible Preferonce Sharcs 50,000 0.05 - -
Series 3 of ¥1,00,00,000 cach
-Cenipuilsorily Convertible Preference Shares 50,000 0.05 - -
Series 4 of ¥ 1,00,00,000 cach

62,97,21,664 629.72 62,95,21,664 629.52

(TE) Reconciliation of the shares 'eutstand'ing-at the beginning and at the end of the year:

As at 31-03-2023

-As af 31-03-2022

Particulars No, of shares ¥ crore No. of shares ¥ crore
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid up _
At the beginning ofthe year 62,95,11,664 62951  62,95,11,664 629.51
Issued during the year as fully paid up - - - -
Outstanding af the end of the year 62.95,11,664 629.51 62,95,11,664 629.51
Special eqiity shares of €10 each fully paid np
- Atthe beginning of the year 10,000 {0.01 10,000 0.01
Issued during the year as fully paid up - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 10,000, 0.01 10,000 0.01
CCFPS of T 10 each fully paid up
Atthe beginning of the year - - - -
Issued during the year as fully paid up 2,00,000 0.20 - -
Outstanding at the cnd of the year 2,00,000 020 - -




L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the standalone Ind AS financial $tafements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(11} Terms / rights / restrictions attached to equity shares:
Equity Shares of T 10 each
The-Company has not reserved any shares for issue urider options and contracts/commitments for the sale of
shares/disitivestment.
Each holder is entitled fo cne vote per equity share. Dividends are paid in Indian Rupees. Dividend proposed by the Board of
Directors, if any, is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, except in the case of interim
dividend. The shares issued carry equal rights to dividénd declared by the Company. and no' restrictions are attached to any
specific shareholder.
Special Equity shares of ¥ 10 cach.
1. The Special Equity Shares carry specific incremental rights ("Director Voting Rights") with tespect to the election,
appoiniment and/or removal of direciors of the Company. These Director Voting Rights are triggered only under specific
conditions as-specified under investment agreement.
2. The Special Equity Shares carfy do right to receive any dividend or other distributions of the Company, or otherwise carry
any economic rights. However, upon the occurrence of the voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the
Company, the holder of Special Equity Shares is entitled to receive a maximum of ¥ 10 per Special Equity Sharc.

. The Special Equity Shares have no right to receive bonu_s-shares or offers for rights shares.

4 The company has issucd during current year 4 series of ‘Compulsorily Convertible Preferrence Shares {CCPS} related to the
outsatanding contractual disputes for which consideration has niot been considered under share purchase agreement. The
details are as follows:

L

Series Bonus/Rights Underlying pay out
Series 1 Bonus issue AMTL trigger event (target traffic)
Series 2 Bonus issue -SGTL trigger event (target traffic)

SGTL trigger event (Reduction in

Series 3 Bonus issue o .
- concession period)
- . .. TIL trigger event (settlement of dispute
Series ights issue with Authority)

(TV)-Shares held by holding company/ ultimate holding company/ premoter and/or their subsidiaries/dssociates:

As at 31-03-2023 As 2 31-03-2022

Particulars No. of shares Shareholding % Neo. of shares Shareholding %

Equity shares of ¥ 10 each
Larsen & Toubro Limited, Promoter

(including shares held: along with'its 32,10,49,096 51.00 32,10,49,096 51.00
nomiinees)

Special equity shares of T 10 each

Larsen & Toubro Limited, Promoter 10,000 100.60 16,000 100:00

CCPS of Z 10 each
Larser & Toubro Limited, Promoter 1,13,500 57.00 - s




L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes ferming part of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(V) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:
As at 31-03-2023 As at 31-03-2022
No. of shares Shareholding % No. of shares  Shareholding %’

Particatlars

Equity shares of ¥ 10 ¢ach
Larsen & Toubro Limited, Promoter

(including shares held along with its 32,10,49,096- 51,00 32,1049,096 51.00
noniinees)

CPPIB India Private Holdings Inc. 30,84,62,568 49.00 30,84,62,568 49.00.
Special equity shares of ¥ 10 each

Larsen & Toubro Liniited, the Pronoter 10,000 100.00 10,000 100.00
‘CCPS of ¥ 10 each '

Lamsen & Toubro Limited, the Promoter 1,13,500 57.00 - -
CPPIB India Private Holdings Inc. 86,500 43.00 - -

(V1) Sharcholding of Promoters:

As af'Mareh 31, 2023
. % Chang i
Shares held by Promoters ai the end of Year @ Change during
: the year
Promoter Name Type No of Shares % of Total Shares
Larsen:& Toubro Limited Equity Shares 32,10,49,006 51.00 -
Larsen & Toubro Limited Special Equity 10,000 100.00 )
Shares
Larsen & Toubro Limited . _ . _
CCPS issue 1,13,500 57.00 57.00
As at March 31, 2022
Sharcs held by Promoters at the end of Year % Chapge dqru_lg
_ ) the year
Promoier Name Type No of Shares % of Total Shares
Larsen & Toubro Limited Equity Shares 32,10,49,096 51.00 -
Larsen & Toubro Limiled: Special Equity 10,000 100.00 )
Shares ' '

During the year ended March 31, 2023, four series of Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares were issued to the Promoters;
Larsen & Toubro Limited and CPPIB India Private Holdings Inc. CCPS (Series 1 fo Series 3) were issued as bonus shares and

Scrés 4 as righis issue.

(VD). Calls-unpaid: NIL; Forfeited shares: NIL.

S,
T



L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

22 Other eqiiity

Particulars

As at 31-03-2023

¥ crore ¥ crare

As at31-03-2022
F crore ¥ crore

Securities premiium account’
As per last balance sheet

Debenture redemption reserve
(Refer Note 21A)
As per last bajance sheet
Add: Transferred to General Reserve

Reserve w/s 45-1C of Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934
As per last balance sheet
Add: Transferred from Surplus in
Statement of Profit and Loss {(Refer Note-
21B)

‘Capital Redemption Reserve
As per [ast balance sheet
Add: Transfer from secutities premium
(Refer Note 21)
Less: Bonus allotment-of CCPS (Refer
Note 21C)

General Reserve
As per last balance sheet
Add: Transfer from debenture redemption
Teserve

Retained earnings
As pet last balance sheet
Add: Profit/{Loss) for the year
Less: Deemed dividend
Less: Transfer to reserve u/s 45-IC of
Resérve Bank of India Act, 1934
Add: Other comprehensive income -
rémeasurement of defined benefit plans
Add: Rezlised gains on sale of equity
instrument carried through FVOCI
Less: Settlement on account of crystallized
claims
Add: Net addition/deduction on
Amalgamation

997.45
997.45

98.33

226

100.59

L137.00¢

(0.15)
1,136.85

23.88.

-23.88

186.27
11.24

(2.26)

(0.01)

(4.91)

190.33

997.45
99745

8.82
(8.82)

98.33

98.33

1,137.00

1,137.00:

15.06
£82

23.88

220.33
(43.02)

(0.09)
8.58

(8.53)

186.27



L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
. Notes forming part of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year cnded March 31, 2023

e As at 31-03-2023 -As dt 31-03-2022
Particulars _ . - :
' ¥ crore € crore F crore Z crore
Other comprehensive income '
As per last balance sheet- 78.19 {22.75)
Add: OCI for the year 58.90 109.52
Less: Transfer to Staiutory Rescrve - =
Less: Realised gains on sale of equity ) (8.58)
shares carried through FVOCL ’
137.0G 78.1%
2,586.20 2,521.12
Note 21A

During the previous year, the balance in the Debenture Redemption Reserve of Rs. 8.82 crores has been fransferred to General
Reserve since the deberitures has been fully repaid.

Nate 2IB

Considering the profit after tax for the year ended March 31, 2023 a sum of Rs _2.26 er has_been transfetred to to the statutory
reserve as required under Section 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India (RBD) Act, 1934.and for vear ended March 31, 2022, no
amounts were required to be transferred as the company has not reported any profits for that period.

Note 21C
During the year, Bonus issue of CCPS were-allofted to Larsen & Toubro Limited and CPPIB India Private Holdings Inc. out of

the Capital redemption reserve under Section 63 of the Companies Act.

Note 21D
In accordance with Motificulion G.5.R. 404(E), dated April 6, 2016, remeasurement of defined benefit plans is recognized as

part of retained earnings.

<<<<<<< This space is intentionally left blank >>>>>>>



L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED

‘Notes forming part of the sfandalonc Ind AS Enaacial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

23. Interest incomé

Partical 2022-23 ) 2421.23
Artteulars ¥ erore. 2 erore ¥ crore ¥ crore
On financinl assets measured at fair valie !hmugh 0ocCl
Investments 20.17 22.84
-On finaneial assets measured at amortised cost:
Debentures 1942 10.67
Inter cotporate deposits 2212 14.35
Bank deposits 16.09 1395 )
' 5763 3397
7780 61.8L
24 Net gain on fair value chamges
Particitdai 2022-23 2021-22
RFUCIALS. Fcrore 2 crore ¥ crore Ferore
et gain on financial instruments measured at Gair value through profit ot
loss
On trading porifolio
“Investments in mutuaf fund’ 594 6.34
5.M 634
Fair value chagges
Realised: 325 a1y
Unrealised 0.69 117
Tatal net gain on fair value changes 5.94 6.34
23 Ssle of service
. . 2022-23 12122
Particulars ¥ ¢rore Z crore ‘% crove ¥ crose
Project facilitation and-advisory service fies 4305 48.03
Business support services - 339
43.05 5142
26 Others
P rl':l;(i 2022223 202122
. arteuiars ¥ crore T crore ‘F erpre F crore
Other Income from Indinfravit Trust 0.37 034
Profit an sale of imveéstments (net) - -
8437 0.34
27 Dther Income
. . 2022-23 2021-22
Particalars ¥ crore ¥ croie T crore ¥ crore
Pmﬁi_ on sale of property, plant and egquipment (net) 0.05. 0.06
Miseellaneous income 0,06 6.13
0.11 6.24




L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECT: S LIMITED

Notes forming part of the standalone Ind AS Gnancial statemeats for the yrar ended March 31, 2023

25 Finance costs.

e 202223 2035-22
Particulars ¥ crore ? crare ¥ crore F crore
Dn financial liabdilies méasured at amortised cost
[nierest oit borrowings
Intezest on redeemable non-convertible fixed rate debentures - 1215
‘Others
Inicrest on delayed paytent to MSMEs _ - .
FeefCharges for Prepaymeit of hon-cenvertible fixed rate debentures - 0.63
' - 1278
29 Employee henefifs expense
. 2022-23 202122
Particelars Ferore Fcrore ¥ crore Ferore
Salaries and wages 2867 2518
Contribution fo Provident find and pension scheme 1.0% 122
Contribution to Gratuity fund. 040 049
Confributicn to Superannwalion fund 0.24 17
_ _ 173 1.88
Staff welfare expenses 055 0.35
30,95 27.61
30 Administration and other expenses
Particufacs. 2022-23. 202122
eutars ¥ erore ¥ crore ¥ crore ¥ crore
Légal & Professional charges 375 523
'Director Sitting fees 0.23 021
Auditor's fees and expenses (Refer Note 30 A below) D47 048
Insurance - 1.93 L.50
Rent (Refer-thg 35 2590 76
Rates aed taxes o4 035
Repairs & maintenance 1251 2.96
Printing & stationery 0.15 0.22
Power & electricity charges 0.11 0.10
Comunication & postage- (1723 0.53.
Bankiand barik guarantes charges 0.27 066
Travelling & conveyauce _ 2.04 1.03
Corporate social responsibilily (Refer Note 308 below) 127 1.39
Miscellaneous expenses .52 1.57
23.63 25.54
Mate 30A: _
Details of auditor's $ees and expenses {excluding applicable taxes)
- 202223 2021-22
Particulars F crove T crare
As auditor - Satutory andis fees C 027 0.24
For taxation matters 002 o.02
For Certification _ 007 0.99
Limited review and ather services 0._1_0_ .11
For reimbursement of expenses 0.01 0.02-
Total .47 0,48




L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED

Netes forming part of the standalsne fad AS fisancial statements for (he year ended March 31,2023

Naote 308;

The comparty has made a provision of Rs. 1.27 Crs-for period ended 3 (st March 2023, pursuant to Section 135 of Corspanies Act, 2013 relating

1o Corporate Suvial Responsibility,

Particulars 2022-23 202122
# crore ¥ crore

Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the jear 127 £.39
Ammmt spent / transfer during the year on

a} Constrection/Acquisition of any Asset - -

b) Ongping Projects — -

¢}.0n Purposes other than (a) & (b) above a7 -
Shartfall at the end of the year® - [39 |

*Represents the amount to be deposifed in spécifizd funds as mentioned in schedule VII {relating to other than ongoing projects)-as at the end of

the year.

3 Provisions and contitgencies

- 2
Particnlars 202223 202122
¥ erove ¥ crove
Contingent provision-against slandard assets 618 -
0.38 -
32 Exceplional itemas
Particul 2022-23 (22122
uiars ZF crore ¥ crore E crore " crore
(i) Write off of réceivables fro subsidiary (5.38)
{if) Unsecured toans provided to subsidiary written oft (11.68)
{{i{) Reversal of Provision for expécted cradit loss.on Mezzaning Dbt - 12367
{iv) Write off of Mezzanine Debr _ - - (122.57)
(¥} Reveérsal of Provision for dimimition in the value of invesiments’ 520,02
(vi) Write off of Investments (520.02) .
{vii) Provision for diminufion in value of investments in subsidiary {36.50) (100.58)
(54.06} {100.58)
33 Other cnmﬁrehmsive income
, . 2022-23 2021-22
Partieutars ZF crare ZFcrore Forare Ferore
Ttems that will be reclassified to Profit or loss - -
Ttems that will not be reclassified to Profit or loss
Gairy (loss) .on remeasurement of defined benefit obligation {0.04) ) {0.09} )
Guin/ {loss) on fair value of invesiments measured at FVTOC 58.90 5389 100.96 100.87
[ncame tax relating to items that will not be reclassified
1o profit ot ass . 8.56

58.89

109.43.




L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
otes forming part of the standalone Ind AS financial statentents for the yeay ended March 31, 2023
34 Disclosure pursnant to Ind AS 167 "Financial instruments: Disclosure”

Capital Management
For the purpose of 1he Company s capital management, capital- includes issued cquity f:apltal and all olher-equity reservies altributable to the

¢quity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the campany's capital. management: is lo meximise the sharchalder value.

Financial Risk Management

The Company's-activitics expos it to.variefy-of financial risks: market risk, credit.risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s focus is to foresez
the unpredictability of financial markets and stek to minimize potential adverse effects on its finascial performance. The Boaid of Directors of
‘the Company has ovetall responsibility for the establishment and oversipht of the Company’s risk. managemenl framework. The Board of
Directors has established a risk management policy to idensify and ahalyze the risks faced by the Conipany, to-sct appropriate risk liniis and
.conirols, and fo menitor risks and adherence o limils, Risk magagement systems are reviewed penodlcally to reflect changes in markel
conditions and the Company’s-activities. The Board of Direclors .oversee. compliance witl: the Company’s Tisk management policics and

pmcedures and reviews the risk managemest Framework

A) Market visk
The market risk is the risk that the fir value or future cash flows ofa financial instrinsent will fluctuati becadss of changds in firarket priccs,

Market risk comprises three types of risk: foreign. currency risk, interest rate fisk and other price risk.

i Foreign Currency Rmk

Foreign cumency 1isk is the risk that fair value or fiture cash Nows of a fisascial insfrument will fluctuate because of changes in- foreign
exchangs rate. The company is not exposed to foreign cirrency tisk as it has no borroiving or no-mateiial payables in foreign (.urrcﬂm.

i Tulerest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or future cash - flows of a firancial instrument wil fuctuate because of changes in market inferest
rates. The Company measures risk throngh sensitivity analysis.

Price risk
Price risk is the risk that the fairvalue or fiffure cash flows of & fimancial instrament will flugtoate because of changes in macket prices (other

-than those arising fiom interest rate risk of currency risk).
The Company is exposed o price risk due to investments in mulual fimds wluch class:ﬁ-.d as fair value through peofit or foss and investments

infrastructure investments trust which is classified a5 fair value lhrou,h oiher comprehensive income,

The Company measures risk through sensitivity analysis:
Tiie Company's risk management policy is to mmgate the risk. by invesimenls in diversified mutual funds.

The Company's exposare to price risk due to iovesiments in muteal find-and enits of IavIT is as folfows:
March 31,2023 Mareh 31, 2022

Investments in-Mutual Funds 210.44 17747
Investeent in Indinfravit Trust - 46821

i

Sensitivity Analysis

Impszct pr profii/ loss after 1ax
2022-23 1021-22
Increase or deerease m-NAY / Unit Price by 1% 210
Note - In case of decrease in NAY, profit will Feduce and vico versa..

.77

Impart on oilier coinpreiensive income

belore tax
2022-13 2021-22 _
Tncrease or decreass i_n.NA‘n{ #Usiit Price by 196 - 468
Note - In case of decrease in NAV, OCH will reduce and vice versa.
B} Credit risk

Credit risk is thé sk that ooe party to a financial instrursent will- cause a financial loss for the- other p:u'ljr by fajlmg lo discharpe an
obligation. The Gomapany. primarely is an investment comipany and retarns is by way ¢freturm on investmenl. The company also provides o]l
operation and matntenanie services to the road prajects where e company has invested at 4 mutmlty agreed fee. The company sees no credit
Tisk in that transaclion. The company has receivables from few governmental dgencics which are either ender a dispute or is pending

sciifement.-

€) Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk is the risk that the company w[[l encounter difficulty in meeting eblluatmns associzted with financiak Tiabilitics that ate seltled
by delivering cash or another financial assels.
The Compam is exposed to liquidity risk.due to borrowings and tiade and ‘'other payibles. The Company measures risk by forecasting cash

flawvs..




L&T INFRASTRUCTURE PEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED:

Notes forming part of the standalonc Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

34 Disclasure pursuant to Ind AS 107 "Finanéial instruments: Disciosure™ (eoutd.)

Derivative Finaucial Liability - -

<<<<<<< This space is intentionally Ieft blank >3>>>5>

D) Expected credit loss-Leans
Asat As at.
articulars Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Financial assets for which credit risk has not increased significantly since initial
ricognition _
Opening balance as on Apiil | 5339 175:97
Increase/ (decrease) in provisioning during the year - {122.58)
Closing balanee as on March 31 ' 53.39. 53.39
‘E) Expected eredit logs-Trade and other receivables
. Asat Asat
ticul .
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Financial assefs. for which credit risk bas not incieased significantly since initial
recognition N _
Opening balance as.on Aprill 725 725
Increasef (decrease) in provisioninig during the year (0.47) -
Ciositig balance as on March 31 6.78 7.23
The foltewing are the contractual maiurities of financinl liabilitics
; = . . ‘Carrying
March 31, 2023 opio l year 1-2years  Z-Syears =5 years Todal- Amount
Nou Derivative Financial Lidbility
Advance received against sale of investments: s
(Refer Note-17) 1430 - 1430 1430
Trade payables 442 - 442, £42
Other fingncial Lizbilities 10.85 - 10.85 10.85
Derivative Financial Lidhility - - - - - -
. L i . . . Carryiog
Mareh 31, 2022 uptelyear 1-2years  2-5years > 5 years Tatal Amount
Non Derivative Finanéial Linbility
Advance received ageinst sale of investments - . :
(Réfer Nute 173 14.30 - 14.30 14.30
- Trad¢ payables 20.12 - 2012 2013
Other financial lidbilities 8.37 - 3.77 877



L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED _
Notes forming part of the standalone Ind AS firancis! statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

34 Disclosure pursuant to [nd AS 107 "Finaricial instruments: Disclosure' (contd.)
a) Catcgory-wise clasification of applicable Findncigl Instruments
Mairch 31, 2023 Mareh 31,2022

FvTPL  kvrocy  AmortEzed  porel pvrocr  Amortized
cost : eost

Financial-asset

Investments in mvtual funds 210.44 - - 17747 - -

Investments in infrastnictare trusts - - - - - 46821 -

Loans. - - 541.09 - - 350.00

Investment in debt securities - - 260.87 - - 109.97

Investrient in other companies. 14.86 - - 534.88 - -

Trade receivables - - 4.01 - - 7.20

Cash and ¢ash equivalents and - - 476,75 - - 389.00

bank balances

Other receivables - - 72.91 - - 67.60.
Total Financial Asset 225.30 - 1,355.63 71235 468.21 923.77
Financial liability

Debentures. - - - - - -

Trade payables - - 442 - - 20.i3

Other liabilitics - - 25,15 - - 23,07
Total Financial Liabilities - - 29.57 - - 43.20

Defanlt and breaches _ _

There are no.defaults with respect to payment of principal interest, sinking fund or redemption terms ‘and no breaches of the
terms and conditions of the borrowings:

There are no breaches during the year which permitted tender to demand accelerated payment.

B} Fair value of Finaucial asset and Habilties at amortized cost

B March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Particulgr Carrylpg Fair value Carrymg Fair valne
amount” amgunt
Financial Assets
Loans 541.09 541.09 350.00 350.00
Tnvestinent in debt secutities: 260:.87 260.87 109.97 102.97
Trade receivablcs 4.01 -4.01 7.20 7.20.
Cash and cash equivalents and 476.15 476.75 “389.00 389.00
bank balances '
Other récéivables 7291 72.91 67.60 67.60
Total Financial Assets. 1,355.63 1,335.63 523.77 923.77
Financial Hability-
Debentures - - - -
Trade pavabies 4.42 442 2013 20.13 - -
Other liabilities 25.15 2515 23.07 23.07 - -

Total Finaneial Liabilities 29.57 2857 43.20 43.20




“The camying amaunt of security deposit measured at amartized cost is considered to be the same as its' fair value due to iis
- insignificant value.

The carrying value of loan to related parties approximate faicvalue as the instruments are at prevailing market rate.
The cartying amcunt of loans anid advances, trade receivables, ofher receivibies, trade payables and other financial liabilities
measured: at amortised cost are considered Lo be the same as their fair vatues, due to their short 1erm rature.

The carrying amount of other receivables and current trade payables measured at amortised cost are considered to be the same
as their fair vatues, due to their short feom rature.

“The ¢camrying value of term loans and debentures approximate fair valug as the instruments are at prevailing market rate.
Disclosures pursnant to Ind AS 113 "Fair Value Measurcment”

Fair value hierarchy of Financial asset and Financial liabilties

March 31,2023

Particulars ' |  Levell | FEevet2 | Level3 |  Total
Pinancial asset measured at FVTPL

Investments in mutual funds 210,44 - - 210.44
Investrtent in other companies - - 14.36 14.86
Total Financial Assets at FVTPL 210.44 - 14.86. 225.30
Total Finaneial Assets. at FVTOCE - - - =
Marcch 31, 2022

Particulars [ Levell | Level2 | Level3 | Total
Financial asset measured at FVTPL

Investmenis in mutual funds 17747 A - 177.47
Investment in other companies: - - 534.88 534.88
Total Financial Assets at FVTPL ' 17747 B 534.88 712.33
Finaneial assets measored at FVTOCT

Investments in infrastructure trusts 468.21 . - 468.21
Tuotal Financial Assets af FV TOCI -468.21 - - 468.21

There is no ransfer between level 1 and level 2 during the year.
"'_'fhe company’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfer out of fair values hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting
period.




€}

36

d) Valuation technique and inputs used lo determine fair value

Financial assets and liabilifies Valuation Inputs
method .
Financial assefs
Invesiment in mutual funds Market Approach NAV
Investments in infrastructure trusts Market Approack: Market Price

Assets pledged as seenrify.

March 31, March 31,

Parti .
articulars 2023 2023
MNon Finaocial Asset
{nvestment property 0.00 0.00
Financial Asset
Investments in dcbentures 0.00 109.97
‘Cash and bank balances 0.00 0.04
TOTAL 0.00 110.01

Disclusures pursuant to Ind AS 16870 perating Segments”

The company operates mainly in the business segment of Invesiment activitv. As such thete are no reportable segments as per

Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments.

Disclosures pm"suan'f to Ind AS 116 " Leases"

The company has faken residenttal and office premises under short term leases. Lease l_'ét__lf'&l. expenses in-respect of these shorl
term leases for the year is T 2.59 crore (previous yesr T 2.68 crorc).

<< This space is intertionally lefi blank >>>>>>>



L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the standalane Ind AS finagcial statéments Tor the year cnded March 31, 2023

.37 Disclosure pursnant to Ind AS 12 “Income taxes"

a) Thz major comy 6 i ¢ tox expense for poriod years ended:
- ‘Particularg JM212Y 2021-22
¥ trore 2 critre
Correot income Tax:,
Current incomé tak chargs 3 -
Deferred Tax )
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences {0.40)| £21
¥ tax reported in fhe af profit and foss 694 1.21
Deferred Tax
On items rhat svilt notbe reclassified 1 siaterzent of profit and loss
Pair Valeation of Ii ts through Other comprebansive Tncomé - {8.56)|
Iocume tuxreported i itic (Hher Compteheasive Income - {856}
B) Reconciliation of tax and the are ing profit cid tiplied by Lmbia’s domestic. tax rate for March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2822:
Particulars 203225 2021-22
= I crore L crore
[Accounting profit before tax foni cortinning operations 15.18( {41.81)
Carporate Tax Rate @25.17% as per Income Tax Act 4.58 (10.52)
Othernon deductible expensss 2367 EL73
Tax as por Siaternent of Profit and Lose 6.94 1.21
Inconm: tax expense reported in the starement of profitand loss. 594 1.21
.04 1.2
‘Majar componenss of deferred tax liabilities and gssets. -
] . Recognizedin ]
Asat Recugoired in wllier Others ~ Asag
Particulars 01-04-2021 | profit and loss | comprebensive 3(-83-3022
income
T crore % crore T crore T erore 2 crare
Financial assets at FVTOCT (3.56) 8.56 -
Otherz 4.77 (121} - - 3356
Net Deferred Tux Assets [ Liabifities) 379 {120) 855 i 356
Recognized in
Asat Recognized in other Gihers CAsat
Particnlars D1-042022 | profitandloss | comprehensive 31-03-2023
income
Ferara T erore: TLerore ¥ crore T ergre
Finpacial assets et FVTOCT - - - - .
Onbers ] 3.36 40 - - 396
| Net Deferred Tax Assels’ ( Lizbilitics) 3.56 0.40 - - 396
d) Lems for which vo defered tax asset i recoguised iis the balance sheet for March 31, 2023
Uinuséd tax losses oo which-ne deferred taxes is recognized ih Balance Shecl
Asat Asut
Farticutars - ¥1-03-2023- 31-03-2021
¥ croce ‘T crore
a)Tax losses {long term capital Loss oo which no deferred taxassetis ciwated)
AY 201718 406,24 606.24
AY 2018-1% 5476 4.7
AY.IOI_Q-ZO 64T 6742
A‘_{.IO_ZD-;ZI i4.32 14.32
AY 207323 2333
Uarccagnized dedugtible temporary differesces for which no deferved-tax asset 15 recagnized in the Balanes Slieet
) ~As at- C Asat
Porticalars 31032023 31-03-2022
¥ crore T erore
Towards provizion for diminutéon in value of investments 15726 1,240.78
i s p ien for Expected Cradit Loss 3167 32.67




LET INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
Nofes forming part of the staadalove Ind AS finandial stxtements for the year cnded darch 31, 2023

38 .Disclosure pursuant te ind AS 19 “Emplayes Beneiles®

A Defined Contribation Plan

fioa Fund «

mxr_:

contribution plans for qualifiing empleyées. Under the

The Compmy makes Provident Fund and Sog
Sch the- Company is required.to contrib

& specified percmmge of thé pa:,,ral] cokls fo fimd the bencfits. The cemuibpticns payable ro'the

fiand by the. Campany is as par the malas. of the schemes. Tho Company recognised  1.0% crare (Previous year € 1.22 crore) and ¥ 0.24 crore

Te Bor | ™

(Previtis year & CLET crore)
.Luoss, Refer Note 29,
B. Defined Benefif Plans:
1) Grifuity Plan:

Fand and Supérannuation Fund coniribaion laspe;dn_ely in the Statement of Profit aid

“Fhe Cnmpaay eperates gratuity plan throagh LICs Group Grahiity scheme where every employee is entilted to the beneBt equivalent to fifleza days
salary last drawn for each co:nple‘h:d year of scrvize. The same is payable on womination of scrvice of retirement whichever is eazher ‘The beneil

vests alter Fiye years of confinuans service.,
#} Trust manaped provident find plan:

Fund cc

-

ta defl

The O makes Provident Fund and §

fund by the Company is as per the mkes of the schemes.

a) The amount: reengnised in Ba'.l;mce_s‘hq:et are at loflows:

] { contribution plans for qualifying emplayeas. Under the
Schernes, the Conipany is requirzd to cmm‘bute a specified percentaze of the paytoll ‘costs ta fimd the benefits. The contnbutions: payal:ir. ta‘the

Trost-managed provident Fued plan

Grafoity plm
. Asat Ascat Ay at Asat
Farsicolars 531-03-2023 31.03-2602 31032013 433022
T eriwe ¥ crore ¥ crote ¥ croE.
A)  Present valoe of defined henefit obligaiion '
- Whally funded 4.12 423 2273 %64
- Whally. pnfimded
% 423 3.7 206.64)
Less. : Fait vala of plm assets: 339 3.32] 29,30 ‘28.66
Add - Unrecognised assct
Amcunt tr be recognisad a5 lisbility of (asscl) 073 0.9l (LO7} {2.02)
B} Amaunts reflacted in the Babuce Shcel
Liabilitics o7 .9 (Loen {202}
: . Assety - . N -
Net Liatility £ {asset) .73 0,98 {1.67) {302)
Net Lisbility f {ass«t) - Current, 0.73 091 (1.07) 2.02)
Net Liahitity f {asset) - Noa Curzent B - 4. .
b} Theamounts recopnised im Ihe Statement af Profit and Less arc as follows:
Giratnity plan Truozt: Fed provident fund plan
Particulars 202223 2021-22 -2021-13 202122
) ) £ crore ¥ arone 2omis Z.crore
1 Cusrent service cost 033 040 .92 0.%¢
2 Inweresrpn Defined benefit obligation 827 038 222 .85
3 Eapected reham on plan assets ©.22) (0.18) (222) (1.26)
1 Actmriz] fosses(aains) 01y 0.09 0.50 0.02
5 Pastservice cost ) p i S 4
& Actuans] gainfloss) ot recognised in books - - {0.60) RUNP
7 Benefirecgived o - - - -
8 Adj  for earkier yéirs -] - - |
Total f Ito8) 0.51 0.58] 0.92 0.96
I included it "employee benefil expenses 0.10 0.9 0.92 0.96
1 Amoimtincluded @s parl of "Ciher Comprehensive lumme" 411 0.09 -] 4
Totl (1 £ 0) 0.4 0.58) .92, 095
“Actua] vefum on plan assels 022 0.18] 2.25‘ .86




L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITER

Wofes forming part of the

€y

-}

e}

nd AS ﬁnmn'.{.l_
“The 2meun!s secopnized in th'er'Comprehmshtfmm: compri

ses of the following:

s for ke year coded March 31, 2023

Gratuity plan
TParticulars 2023-23° 202122
I crote ¥ ¢10me
Compunczts of acivarial lsses’ gains on obligations :
‘1 Duazta changs in financial assmnp!{ons {6.11) (0.09
2 Dueto change in demographic assumptions - E
3 Ducio expetichee sdjistments T 009 016
_Ret_urrl on plaa assets sachuding amounts included o interest 0.03 a1
itcome .
Tolal 0.01 4.10}-
The chenges in present vatus of defined benciit oblizaion rep ing reconciliation of apening and <losing balances thereof are as follows:
Gratully plan Trust-manazed provideat fund plan
. Agat As at JAsat Asxal
Parttentars -31.03.2023 31033022 31-03-2023 31032027
: ¥ crore 2 crore T crore $erore
Opening balancs of present value of defined bencfit obligation +.23 4,501 2664 2213
Add:  Current service gost 0.35 6.4 092 0.94]
Add:- Inlerest cost 027 0,28 223 186
Add- Contmibuotion by plan participants )
iy Fmployee - - 232 1.82
Al Achiarial lossesi(gains) 0z .07 - -
Add: Benafits received - - . -
Less: Beacfits paid {071} (102 (5.33) (72}
Hdd:  Liabilities 1 on transfer of employ - . 146 0.59
| Add lesx) Adjustment for eatlier years i - -
Closing balance of preseat valug of definied banefit chBgario; 412 423 28.73 26.64
The changes in the fair value of plon assels represcating reconciliation of'opening and closing balxaces ihereof are us follows:
Gratuity pian Trust: ed provident fund plan
Agat “As ot Asat As at
Parriculars 31.03:2023 31-03-2022 31-03-2023 31-03-2022
¥ crare 3 crorc: ¥ croze. 2 crore
Upening balance of Tair value of plan assets 332 253 23,66 2421
Add:  Expected return on plan assats 0.22 0.18 222 1.86
Adid {less)z Actuarial {losses)'pains {0.03) {0.02) {612y {0.12)
Adf: Contribution by cmployer 0.59 134 .94 .96
-Add:  Contribultion by plan pasticipants B s 282 1.88;
Less:  Benefils paid 0.71) (i.02) (5.39) 073y
Addul fess): Transfer inflout) - - n.59] 0.59
Closing balance of fair valeé of plan assets’ 339 3.32] 29.80] 2866
The major components of plan assets as a percentigé of toral plan assets are'ds follows:
Gratilty plan Trast d prosident fund plan
.Particulars Aszai As at Aaat Ay at
31-03-2023 3{-03-2072 31-83-2023 3[-03-2002
Govemnment of India securtics - - - 11%| 1748
Stite povamnient secarities - - 34% 28%
Special deposit schemes . - 3%| 3%
Public sectot umit bonds . - 6% "10%;
Corporafe bonds - - 32%) 31%
Mutnal fands. - - 13%] 5%
Ohers ] - - 13|
Folicy af insurance 100% 100%; E <
Total O3 100%] . 10099 100%5)
The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligtions at the eud of the repotting period is as Fallows
Pla ’ Asat As af
51-93-2023 31:03-2022
Griluity plan ' 551 4.9 ;



L&T INFRASTRUCTIRE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTES LINITED

Wailes forming part of the stznd Ie2AS R af far thie year 2eded March 31,3023
.y Principal achranial assumptions at the Balance Sheet dada;
e Asmt As at.
. Particulars 3103200 | .31-03-3021
I Discount rale; _
ay Gratuity plan FA0 6.90%
‘B) Trust managed provident fitnd plan B 1% 715%
¢} Cowvipensatal absences 7.20% 8.70%
2 Expected reim oo plan assets
2) Cratuity plan _ 7.40% 6904
‘b} Trust mamazed provideot fund plan B.15% 1193
3 Salary b rate - Gratuity plan and comy ted ah .6.00%% 6.04%
- ’ Agat As at
Farticdars 3143205 | arézaem
4 Astritior rate - Graquiiy plan - ) -
25.and belowy 15.00% 15.00%
261035 12.00% 12.00%
36tod3 200% 500%
46 ter 53 6.7 6.00%
56 and above 30035 - 300%
Indim Assured | Indian Assured
. . . Lives ) Lives
5. Moreliy e AMorality (3812 |- ‘Mortality (2012~
14) 1)
Table . Table
1} Matocity anzhysis of expected bencfit pryments
Particelags ’ CushBuws o
¥ crure
073 131 E90%:
2034 023 16.20%
2025 Q40 35009
2626 028} 350% -
027 046 £ 20%
2027—_2!]3_1 170 2470%
) A quanfitativé sensifisily analysis for sipnificant astmrprion as at Maich 31, 2027
Pacticatars As ab 31-03-2023 As at 31-13-2022
T Change Oblipaion Change Dtligation
. +0.5% i (2.53) +04% {2.61)
D Discooat cale 058 267 6.5% 276
. +).5% 266 HLS% 274
. th rals . o
) Sabuygiowthrate 0.5% 2359 042 262
1y Expected coniributi i e ity to be made in the next finan<ial year is Rs.0.35 crore {Previous year Rs.0:37 crore)
. Compensated Abaences
The significant ptions-coasidered by tie indépendont actaary in carrying out the actuarial viluation of long term compensated absences are
given befaw:. ' ’
Particulars 202223 202E-22 |
-Assmptioas
Dizcomnt fate T2 100%
Fubuze Salary Tnenczse: 5.00%% &.80%
Anrition Rate
AzeBand
25 aind below 15.00% 15.00%
26t0 35 12080% 12.00%
5o A5 9.00% 9.00%%
d5to 55 5.00% 6.0’03&
36 2rd above 3.00% 3.00%




L&T INFRASTRUCTIRE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the seandatoae Tod AS financial Tor the year ended Maceh 31, 2023
39 Disclosure p { o Inidizn Acconnting Standazd (Ind AS) 24 - Relsted Pacty Disclosures
{1 List afrefated partics: _ .
Eromoter, Eniity having joint contiol over the Campany
Larsen & Toubro Limited
Entiry having jalot contrel dver the Company
1  CEP Invwshrenl Buacd Singapocead Holdings | Pie Limited

Common contral Eolities of 1-above

I PP Singaporean Holdings Pre [ Lud

i CPPRBIse

Subsidizry companies .
L&T Transponabian Infrastmacrure Limdted
Vadodnri Bharuch Tollwny Limited ’
L&T Intersiate Rozd Corridor Limired
Panipat Elevated Corridor Linited
Ahmedabad - MEiliya Tothviy Eimited
LE&T Rajket - Vadinar Tolkway Limited:
L&T Chennai < Tada Tollway Limited
LET Samakhiali_ﬁﬂndh.iﬂha'r'u le]my_l._iuﬁ!nd
L&T Decean Toflways Linted
PG Tollway Limited

1 Kuodgi Transmission Litnited

12 L&T Sambalpar - Rodrkala Tollacy Limited

13 Watrak Infrastrueiuie Private Limited

14 Rewin Infrastrueruce: Limited (Tncarporated on 2110352023}
Associates . o
1 LIIDPLINDVIT Service Limivod {terreerly kmown as E&T Western India Tollbridge Limited)

PRI I AT ATy VR

Fallow subsidiarias with whom Hanzactions were incurzed during the year,
1 LTiMindneo Lioxited (Fosesty Lasen & Toubso Infutech Limited)
Subsidiarys Assaciales . .
1 Intcmatiomi Scaports {Haldia) Privete Limited
Key Mimgement Persanne!
1 M R Shankaf Raean, Chairman and Won-execotive disstter
Mr-D.K Sen Mamaging Direcior
Mr. Sudhakat Rae, Independerit Dirdctor
iz \’ija_yahk.slnni Rjasarm byer, |odependent Dizector
M. Pushkar Vijay Kulkami; Non-ewceutiva Director -
Brr. A Vieezaraghavan, Independent Directar ..
7 M Sachin Johei, Chief Exseutive [wef December 17, 2021)

LT Sy

Pust emplayment benefit phan
1 Larsen & Toubro Officers & Supervisory S!al'l'l’rvﬁdcpi Fund

(1) Details of warsactions with rolated parties:

12022-23 : 03132
Lo . . . . Amonnts for - Amannts for
Netuire of bransactbon/ relationah tic L : :
elatisnahip/ major partics Amouzt . afor pacties Amaunt . major parties
. Toroie T cocd X crare Trrore
1 Porchaze of goads and senvices incl texes
Prameter, Earsen & Toubra Limilsd 562 30
Fellow subsidianies 275 224
£33 . 614 |
2 Sale of Gonds/Contract revents and Services rendered inck faes ) .
Subsidiaries & Eottory sabsidiary, tncluding: 3135 ) A
Vadodara Bhansh Tollvay Limited 756 234
Assoriatm, LFIDPL INRVIT Services Limited - 130
3135 3742
3 Ipvestment related reccivhbles
Framater, Larsen & Toubeo Limied L83 148
51.44 4148
4 Rentpaid incl mxes .
¥ramoter, Larsew & Toubro Limised 506 506
3.06 5.08°
5 [nterest income
Subsidiaries muehuiding 4154 2502
Panipat Elevated Carrdar Lindted - [§-2)
[ERD -
51,54 25.02




L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT FROJECES LEMITLD .
Notes formins pact of the stindaloire Ind AS financial stafepwenty for the vear eaded Mareh 35, 2023

- 202213 . 200122
Nalure of transactivaf relalionship! majior pasties Arheant A’fmmh f?r Amonnt Wn-“.'r."
: . oisjir pacties P3O parties |
Tcrere Tane XL avic 2 orue
& 107 Mezanina Debif Unseomnd Loan granted to
Subsidiaries mchaling -233.0% 16490
" Panipat Elevated Corddor Limvited 4000 3350
Vedodars Bhanuch Tolfvay Limited . - . 283.00
LA&T Semakbils Gan fhidham Tollway Limited 75.50 3600
L&T Rajkrt - Vadipar Follnay Limited 11015 11740
LET Chemnal - Fada Tolway Limited® {17.58)
Watnak Infraatroctre Povate Limited : 30
335.09 F6E90
T .ICD7Mezzanine Debt] Unseeured Loax reatised
Promaner, Larsen & Toogbro Limited - -
Subsidizias meloding 292,50, 252 50
Vadodar Hhanich Tallway 1 mited - ‘233.00
Banipat Elevated Corridec Limied 56.50 LA
925 - 2950
3 Debmituss realised
Subsidiary 30,00 25.00 .
Pacipat Ebvated Comidor Limited 3000 | 23,00
(3006 25.00
2 Onher advances paid
Subsidfaries inchuling - 045 o
PG Tollvay Limited . - 042
L&T ¢henmai - Tada Tolway Limited . - a1l
_ N 815
|19 52250 36400
CPP NVESTHENT BOARD PRIVATE HOLDGRGS (4) INC 32230 . 36400
52250 561.00
1. T Hoa odth d prvident fungd st
Towands euployer contributioa L1t ] 055
Larsz & Toubra (ficers and Sepenvisory Staff Providerd Fumd 091 0.95
Q91 .95
12 Key Saoazerwent Pesooocl
Independent / Nor-exscutive Directors 923 021
(W] 0.2F
“Major partics™ denede entities whe acvount far L025 or mere of the aggregate for that megmyof transaction diring :Espev':ﬁ\'_e yead.
(ifi} Amoant (doz tw) 2nd doa om related prrties (Met] -
{Due to} Due from
- : Asat . Asat
Particulzes atnizess | 3ros20m
¥ oore 2 crore
i Promozer _
Ezrsen & Toubna Emited 6057 &I |
. Spbsldiaries.
L&T Franspostatian lfrastiscture Limited GE2 ©12
Panipat Favared Cosmidor Limited - 1M.1¢
Vadaodara Blarvch Tollway Lieticed - LT
Ahrmedabad - Matiya Towdy Limited 261, 054
L&T Interstate Rezd Cormidor Limitad 0.6 A Y
L&T Somibial Gapdhidiam Tollway Limited 13187 5317
. L&T Rajkot- Vadinar Tollway Limited 32530 185,02
L&T Deccan Teliways Limitsd 043 042z
Kudg! Tomemitoion Lamted - 043
L&T Sambalpor » Rourkeh Tollway Limited L03. £.37
L&T Chamai « Tada Tolha'_:y]'.i:_\ﬁbed - 17241
ifi: Fellow yubsidiaries . .
LTI Mindues Limited |Formerly Larsen &Toubro Inforech Limired) (003) (0,33}
iv. Poat employment henehit plan ) . .
Larsen & Toabro Officers & Supenvisary Stsff Provident Fazd {0:26) {023

*Dring the ymr aaded 31 March 2023, 2 sum of Bs, 1756 oy was written off a gainst receivables 2od unsecured lazns provided t the subsidiany {

Rafer Note 32).

v} - Amcesticthe extent of 112257 ;eceinabla fom PN G Tolbway Lt crores was nailen of during the previous year, Also refer note in respact
of proxisions cieatad for mvestmints 4 loans'and adr gIven h cerlafn subsidianes.

(¥} As per the amangeneent that the Company has with its Py terf Subsidiardes (Wgslber refemed b9 25 the 'Giocp Curﬁﬂp}’),' the comman call

B 1 by the Cempeny! Group Companics are accowmed for in the Finensidl St ts of the Compazy le (e extent, of actual debit, faised

by! raised oo fas Company asd by the Graup Compadies
{) Al relared parry contracts f armangemants bave been entered oo amm’s length basis.
i) RabieNore 43 for detsils of Commitments provided to relaed parties:




L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROVECTS LIMITED

1) The Compomy has 10,000 Special Equity Shares of 2 16 cach outstanding which do rot have any right to receive dividend or
) ather distributions of the Corapany oz atherwise carry amy economic rghts,
i) Basic and diluted EPS for the Special Equity Shares of. ¥ 10-each docs ot azise as the shares do oot have any nght to receive

dividend or other distributions of the Company ar.atherwise carry any séonumie rights. wxcept 1o the extant of £ 10 persharcin

the evenit of Rgoidation or dissolution of the Comp

oo Thip Fpice if fbentiotally lefl blank ey

Notes Rrmiai pard of the standalone Tnik A5 finxrcial stalementy for the year eaded March 31, 2023
40 Disclosare pursuant to lod AS 27 "Sep Finanelal Sean G
T At in the following subsidiary eompanics and associates is accouated at cost.
. s ot 31-03-2023 As at 31-03-2022
L Principal ‘Effective Effective Effective Effective
5.No ¥ame ol the subsidiary place el propertion of | proportionof | proportion of proportion of
business ownership vaoting power ownership voling pewer
i inderest [33) ‘held (%51 ingarast {%] feeld £25]
i} |Subdidisiies - - ]
"1 |L&T Transpercation Infrastruciure Limited Tndia 776 7175 7396, 13,16
2 |Vadadara Bharcli Tolfway Linited India 99.99° 99.99 99.59 9992
3 |L&T Intersiate Road Comidor Limited Tadia 9999 99,99 29,99 99.99
4 {Panipat Elevated Corvidor Lirmited India 95.99 9999, 52.39 59.59
5 |Ahmedabad - Maliya Toltway Limited- India 59.99. 9359 %9.90 95.99
‘6 |L&T Rajkot - Vadinar Tollway Limited India 69.99 995 99.99 99.99
7 ]LET Chenna - Tada Tolhway Liosted India 9959 an.949, 95 02 9999
% |L&T Smnabhiali Gandhidban Teitway Eimiled Tndia 2998 99,95 9998 99.98
9 |L&T Beccan Tollways Limited India 8528 3528 85,28 s5.28
18 |FNG Tollway Limited India 4100 7400 74.00 400
Ul {Kudgi Transmission Limited india 59,99 4299 959 95.59
12 JLE&T Sambalpor - Rourkela Toilway Lanited Tndia 89.99 09,99 99,99 99.99
13 [Watrak Snfrastructure Private Limfted Indiz 99.99 99.5% 54,99 98499
14 |Rewin Enfrastructuse Limited {(fncorporared an 2103/2023) ndia 100.00 |oa.c0- . -
iy JAssociate ) ) )
| JLTIDPL, INDVIT Services Limited* India 140,00 100.00 160,40 100.00
* Fast becoming Invesimend Manager of the Indinfravit Trost has been trested 2v-an Asseciste of the Company.
41 Bastc and Dilated Eariilogs Per Share iu accordance with Fad AS 33 "Earnings pér Share”
A.Equity Skares
" Parliculars 201233 22122
Basic earnings per share . .
Prafitf (lass) after tax a8 per Starement of Peofil or. Loss A _ .23 o o)
Weighted average number of equity shares gutstending B 62,095,111 654 £2.95 L1654
Basic EP'S (¥} AB D8 {0.53)
Diluled carnings per share .
Prafitf (lossy after 1ax az per Statement of Profit ar Loss A n. (43.02)
Weighted average number of shares B £3,05, 11,664 62.95,11,654
Add: Weighted number of ; ial wijuity shares on of C 200,000 -
Weishied average number of equicy shares Jing fir diluled EFS B=B4C 6297,11,664 £2.95.11,664
Diluted EPS ] - AD 0.3 {0.68)




' LET INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
Notés forming part of the standalone Ind AS finaneial statemeitts for the year ended March 31, 2023

#2 Contingert linbilities

Claims agaitist the Company nol acknowledged as debt:

{i} Incometax tiabifity {including penalty) that may arise in rcspect of which Company is in appeal T .48 etore (% 6.46 crore crore as
ot darch 31, 2022}

{i?)- Service tax Ilablllty {including penalty) that may arise in respect of which, Company is in appeal ¥ 1,33 .crare (T 1 33 crore as at

" aarch 21, 2022)

(iif} Contingent Jiability-in respect of acceplances and guarantecs issued on behalf of subsidiaries/ associale and the Company
¥398.55 crome (T 404 34 crose as at March 31, 2022}

{iv) The Company is contingently liable 1o the extent of its investmeénts pledged [refer Note 6 B} for foans iaken by:

Particulars As at 31-03-2023 As.at 31-03. 2022
) T crore 7 crofe
Subsidiary companies 4107 07
Total 4107 4197

43 Comndments:
{2) Commitments quaafifiable

(i) Estimated arcount of conlracts remaining to be executed on capital dccount NIE (previpus year 20,34 crores}
(ii) The Company has provided sponser mndertaldng to the lenders of L&T Rajkot Vodinar Tollway Limmited {LT RVTL) as o partof refinancing the
 project loan tmder ferms and condition of the loan o suppart any deviatien in the base tase business plan censidercd in finalisisg the term pan.,

() Commiiments nat quantifiable

(i) TheCompany has given, inter alia; the f‘u]lowing commitments in tespect of its nvesiments:

{a) The Company has given an undetiaking to the debenture trestee of LET Tnctsiate Road Carvidor Limited (LTIRCL) to make payment of
the Termination Shortfall amoeunt. due to Concessionaire event of default in- the: event that LTIRCL fiils to' make payment of the same
wilhin § business days from the due date of deposit of the Terininalion Payments by NHAI into the Escrow Account and also 1o make
payrnent of the Operation & Maintenance(O&M)-cxpenses shorifall amounts caused due to inicreass in Q&M Experses beyond the limits
set ot in Base Case O&M Fxpenses Schedule and resulting in shor€all in amouns available for debt séivicing andior DSR Amount
and/or the Ma;nr Maintenance Reserve, without utlhsmg the surplus amounts within a period of 30 (tert)} Bisiness days From the dats
of demand therefore issued by:the Debienture Trustee.

(b} To the term lenders 'of L&T Daccan Tollways Limited (LTDTL) to meet shortfall in fajor mainicnance and Petr Service Reserve (DSR).
Account and la mainlain minimem year (o year Debi Service Coverage Ratio of 1.2 timeas in a manier salisfacmry to Senior Diebt Tranche
A Lenders (Facility ameunting to Rs. 1,080.92 crorg) in Hine with base case revenua projections. The Comapany has alse given an
undzrtdking to Senior Debt Tranche B Lenders (Facility ameumting to Rs. 154.42 crore) for servicing the oblization in the event of failure

of repayment by LTDTL.
(c} The Company has given a corsmitment to the debenture tustess of Ahmedabad Maliva Tollway Limited (AMTL) vide a Sponsor Suppett

Agrecment dated August 28, 2017 wheeein the Company has undertaken thst in the event of shertage of funds for coupon payment and
- Tepayment of (e debentuies to the debenture tistess, the Campany shall fimd such shorttalk, Also the Company has imdertaken to fund

the rail over bridge expenm OFAMTL..

{iiy “The Company, on sale of the subsidiaries to the Indinftavit Trust have ia the purchase agrecments listed gertain claira which-dre raised against
the company and ceriain claims which are raised. by the Cumpal;v against the respective autharities. The amount af claim has net been
disclosed since they are not determinable as at March 31, 2023

(ii)) The Cornpany has given non divestinent commilments as mentioned in Note 6 C.




{c) Manigemenl's Axcessment
The amoynts shown under. Contingent fabifiies and commitments représent the best possible estimate arrived-at on the basis of the. available
information. Fizrther, varicus government avthoritiesfother stakeholdees. raise 1ssues.-’clanﬁcauons in the normal course of” business and the'
Managcmnt has provided ‘its responses in respect of the same did ao formal demands/claims fiava been riised in respect of the same. other fidn
those disclosed abave, The obligstions and possible reimbursements in respect, of the above arc dependent on the: outcome of the varicus
- discussions/procecdings. that arc ongoing and, therefore, cannot.be predicted: accurately. The Company does fot expedt any: ftaccial expdsure in
tespeel of these as at March 31, 2023,

44 Disclosures pursuant ts Tud AS 40 “"Investment Property™

2022-23 2023-22
. ¥ croxe % crove:
1 |Rentel income derived from investment property .08 0.05

S.No Particulars

Fair values-of invesiment property: ¥ 5.54 crore as at March 31, 2023-( 5,27 crore a5 at March'31, 2022). The fair values of all- the -investment
properlics have been-determined with the help of independent valuers. Valuation is based on gevernment tates, market research and market trends,
period and type of consteuction as considered appropriate.

45 Disclosure on Stake sale
The shareholders of L&T Infrastructure: Development Projects Limited, {L&T IDPL), Larsen & Toubra Limited and Canada Pension Plan
‘Investment Board have entered into & Share Purchase Agreement dated December 16, 2022 with Epic Concesiones Limited to lransfer its-entiré
shareholding in L&T IDPL alongwith its subsidiaries (L& T FDPL. group), The said transfer is stibject io Tequisitc approvals from relevant
authorities and lenders as per the terms of the Sharg Purchasc Agresment.

‘The company hag entered into a Share Porchase Agreement dated December 16, 2022 with Infrastracture Yield Plus Fund 1T maraged by Edelwise
Alternate Asset Advisors Funid Eimited (o sell 100% équity shares of Kudgi Transmission Eimited (KTL), a whelly owhed subsidiary-of the
company. The said mansfer is subject to requisite approvals.

Aceordingly, as-required by INDAS 105 Nor-current assets held for sale and discontinucd operations, investement in K'TL has boen presented
in the standzlone financial statements as Investmants teld for safe,

<<<<e<< This space &s intertionally left Blank >>>>>>>




L&T HQ;FRASTRUCT_URE BEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the staadalone Ind AS finzncial statewments for the yeav ended Mareh 31,2023

46 Disclosures under the Reserve Bank of India (Cure Invests Compasy) Reg

Diselosures as required by paragraph 21 (Acnex !} of the Master Difeclion - Cere Investment Campanies {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2006 - Master

Birertion DoR{NBFCLPD.003/03. 10.019/2015-17

Schedule to (he Balzace Sheet of 4 non-deposit taking Core Investment Compauy.

Liabilities side :
1), Loans and advagees availed by the non-banking flndacial company inchusive of interest aceroed thercon but not pali:
) As at 3103-2013 Ax at 31-03-2022
Parliculars . 0::::;:":2 Amount (Qverdne Dflf::aﬁitnz Amouat Overdue
T aosc T crors T crore T crore
{x) Bcheriures '
Ecrured. : - - -
Unsecurad . - - -

{other than falling within the meaning of piblic depozits)
{b) Daferred Credits, ' -
() Term Loans
{d) Liter-corporate loans and bm'rmng -
(€). Commercial Paper
{fy OtherLoans -

Assets side s

2) Break-np of Laans and Advances iucludiﬁg bills receivables (Net of provision) father fhan those indluded In () below]:

s an 31-03-2023 As at 31-03-2022 .
- Angount Arcunt
F; o S
avficutars. Oulstanding Outstainding
¥ crom Tcrore
{3y Unsacured 30842 323.06-

3} Breakup alLeased Assels and sfock an hire and other assets counting towzrds Asset Finance Company (AFC} astivities:

Partiewlars

As 2t 31-03-2423

As at 31-03-2022

Amotint
o 1i

Amonnt
2] ding

2 crore

T crore.

A1) Lease assets including lease reatals under sumdry deblors ;
) (a) Financial Jease ' ) .
(b) Operating lasé |
{ii) Stockion hire inchuding hire charges under smdry debtors:
(a) ‘Assefs on hire
(bY Repossessed Assels
{iif) Other loans counting tovards AFC activities
(8} Logrs whize assets have been reposséssed
_{b) Loans other than (a} above-

4 Bresk ap of Investmenis: {Amgantnet of provision}

Parficalars

Avat 31:03-2023

Aealdi032022

A t

L}

Oustinding

(Net of dimivution) | (Net of dizzinution)

OQutstanding

2 crore

I crore

Curreat I
1 Quoted =
() Shares: (a) Equity
(b) Preference
(ii) Debenturcs and Bonds
{§ii) Units of murhuat finds
{iv} Government Secuitics
(+) Others
2 Uaqualed:
{0} Sharcs: (a) Equity
(b} Preferonce
(i} Debenhyres and Boads
{iii} Units of mdual funds
(i) Goverarnmmst Sceurities
{v). (hhers
Loug Term I
1 -Oaoted :
() Shares: {a) Equity

z (Met of provision}

¢ {Net of pravision)

{b) Prefi




5)

6)

{ii) Debentures and Bonds - -
(1) Units'of mutual funds - -
(iv} Goveomnint Scenritics - -
() -Others - -
2 Um]t.ioted:
(i} Shares 150207 164974
(i) Debenturas and Bonds 2287 3925
{iii) Uaits of mitaal fuids - -
(iv) Governmem Securitics - -
(v} Othiers 190.46° 468,31
Borruwer group-wise classification of assets Finmuced s fo {2) and (3) above : (Amaunt net af provisiym)
’ As at 3193-2023
Particulan Secured Ur ed Total.
Fcrore ¥ crome ¥ crove
1 Related Fartics
‘(a) Subsidiacics - 50842 508.42
{1} Companies in the same moup : - -
{c) Other related partics - - .
1 Other than refated parties . - - -
) “Totl - 5084 50842
As at 31-03-2022
Particulars Secarel - Unsecured Tatal
¥ crore 2 crove ¥ ergre
" L Related Parties
(2} Subsidiaries - 323.06 32306,
{b) Compzanics in the same group - - -
(2) Other rclased partizs - - -
2 Otlier fhan relared garties - - -
Total - J23.06 323.06
“Investor group-wise classificaiion of all investmenats (currentand long term) in shares and securities (both quoted aod vayuotcd): -
As ar 31-03-2023 As at 31-03-2022
Market Volue [/ | Market Vale/ i .
‘Particulars Bre.ik.l.lp' or Fair Brak Va[_.u?._(Net of Break up or Fair Hook Yal}t? (et of
value or NAY Provision) ~alme or NAY Provision)
2 crofe 2 crors erore 2crore
"1 Refated Pactics .
{a) Suhsidiiries 1,939.10- 1,939.10 1,734.69 1,724.69
(b) Companies in the same group . - - .
() Other related parties © . - . -

2 Other than relafed parties 14,30 14.30- 431 51 482 51
Total 1,953.40 1,953.40 2207.20 2,267.20
Market Value / Break up or Fair value or NAV is taken 23 same a2 book valne in cass of unquoted shares in absence of Market valua / Break up.value or Fair
value or NAV.

© Qiber information _
' Parealai Asat 31-03-2023 | As at 31-03-2022
ar ticidars - —
. ol T cro= Ferore - |

() Gross Nen-Perfarming Assets

{a) Related parties - -

b} Cther than selated partics - .
(i) Net Non-Performing Assits

{a) Related partizs = -

(b} Other than celated parties. - -
(i) Assets acquired insatisfaction of deht - -

Discloseres as vequired by paragraph 30 {Annex V) of the Master Direction - Core fnvestoent Com pantes (Reserve Bazk) Directions, 2016 - Master
Birection DoR{NVBFC),PP.003/03,10. 1 19/2RE6-17




& Adjasied Netwirth-and Belated Information

:Particolars Ax nt 31-03-2023. | Asat31-03-2022

() Capital Ratio (34) [Adjusted Net Wenh/Risk Weighted Assels] 9224 £6%

(i) Unreslized sppreciation in tha book valne of qeoted inyéstments - -
(i) Diminuticn i the zpgregate book value ofquoted investments . -
() Leveiage Ratio {Times) [Cutside LisbiliiiecAdinsted et Wonh]

021 031

b Ivestment in Qther CICYs

Farliculary As at 31-03-2023 | Asat 3032012
{1} Total amount repraseniing say dircct or. indirect capital condribulion mads by otie CIC in another CIC
(m:ludin g oame f CICs) i -
{{1) Number of CICs with their names wher#in (ke difect or indirect capital contribution sxcaeds 10% of Owned
| Fands
(i) Mumber of CICs with their names wherein the dircct or mdirect ca pital contribution is Tess than 10% of
Owaed Funds ) . 3 "

¢ O Balance Shieet Expostire

FParficalars Ay at 3-03.2023 | As ar 31-03-2022

() DIf balance sheet exposure

(i) Firancia! Guarantce s a % of total off- balancs sheet cxposare
Gz} Non-Financial Guarantee as a% of total offc balance sheet exposnre -
{iv} O balwicx shecl exposure lo overseas subsidiaties
() Eetier of Comirt issned Lo any subsiciary

4 I +

Pariiwlars As ar31-03-2023 As at 31-03-2022

Valoe of lavestments
[i} Gress Valie of Invesmments
{a} In Fudia 2,921.09 3,625.46
{b) Outside India, . -
(i) Provixions for Degrecidtion
(n}.In india 75726 1,240.738
(b} Dutside Tida, - -
(i) Vet Yalue of lnvesiments
{a) [n India 2,163.83 2,384,568

(b} Outside tndia, - -

Mosemsat of provistons held Is depreciation o in
(i) Openiag balsnce 124078 1,140.20
{i¥) Add : Provisicus made during the year ) - 100,53
(i) Less - Writc-off / write-back of excess prmisions doring fié vear (48352)

{iv) Clesing bak i T57.26 121018

e Maturity pattern of certain itemis of avsets and Lahilities
Assets and Habilitles as 48 31.0372023

Liabifities Asaets
- -Berrowings L . Loans & Advances I

Pavticolars from banks Alarket Borrowings .[Ne.l'. of pravition] et of praviston)
¥ crore ¥ crora ¥ crore T croe
1 dayto 30/3 1 days {onz mouth) - ) ’

Oner one monih do 2 months =
Over 2 months upto 3 meuths -
Orver 3 monthe o 6 months -
Cer§ moalhs ko 1 year ’ -
Over | year to 3 yoars
Over3 yeals 163 yoars
Over 5.ycirs :
Total i -




. Assets and lisbilifies as xt JE03.2022

Particutacs

‘Liabilities

Asseds.

Borrowings

fvom bauks Market Borrosving:

{Nei of provivion)

Advances

Ferore ¥ eroze

Terore

Invesimanis

(Net of

¥ crore

1 day to 30/3[ days (one memil)
Dver one manth 102 months
Orwver 2 mbnths ppte 3 months -
Ovec 3 months o 6 months
Over 6 months ¢o | year

Over | yer (o 3 yoars

Over3 years to 5 years

Over 5 years

4H.00

1.699.00

Tatal

2,381.68 ('

_ Business Ratios
Particulars

As at 31032023

As at 31-03-2022 ]

Rerern on Equity
Rebim an Assess,
Net Profit Per. Empleyee

035
034
0.08

Privisiozs and Coatingencies

Partleulars

Al at 31:03-2023

As at 31-03-2022

|Provisions for depreciarion on Investment

Provision towands NPA .

Provision made tewards Income mx {Represents Curreat Tax)
Other Feavision sad Conlingencies

Provisicn for Standard Assels

75726

233

1,240.78

1.95

Concentration of NFAs

Towtionl
Par

A ar 31032023

As ae 31032012

Total Exposure to top five NPA accounts
Exposire as n % of totaf assets

-Ovirsray Assets

Particulacs

| As:it31.03-2023

| .As at31.03-2022 |

|Overseis Assets (for those with Jaine Ventares and Sut

abroad}) I - |

Sxposnre to Real Extate Sector

- Calegory

2022-23

20m-22

Direct Expoore
(i} Reafdestial Mnrtga"t.'s

Lending secured by mertgages ciessklantial prop

2}

y that is or will be ucctipied by the bammower ot tha

properly i rented; (mdmdual hoasing toans upln

(i)- Commercial Real Estate
d by EAZTS 0N

Lending

15 t=léh may be sliown separately}

1 reat cslnt:s {office bm}dmgs, retail q:acz, umlupurpose

commecial premises, mult-family residential build

would also inelude non-fund based (NFE) limits:

2) Residential
b) Comnercial Real Estate

}b) Indirect Exposuie

1 Hi

industrial or warehouse space, hotels, lnd acquisition, dmbpmenl: and censtraction, «ic ). Exposurs

{iti} Javestments in Meortzage Backed Securitics (MBS) and ather securitised exposures

, ot L ] premiscs,

esom [

Fund bascd 2nd nen-find based
Comipaaies (HFCx),

ing, Bank (NHB) and Honsing Finance

Nil

Nil

N
“wal

Nil

Wil

Capital Risk Adequacy Ratio:

As per RBE Master Circufar RBE2015-15/13 DNBR. {PD) CC. No.043 / 03.10.119 7 2015-16

MNate:.

< of Capital Ader)

Ratia is not applicable.

(& y weith Reserve Bank of India vide theic appEcation dyted February 04.

(1) The y has applizd for Deregi as a Core [

2022, The samc s been spproved by RBT vide irs lewer Ref CHN. D()S RSG MNo.§L219/13-27-999,2022-23 dated: 315t March 2023 The CIC

il

have been pr d for FY 2022-23.




1L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
MNotes farming part of the standsfone Ind AS financial statemenis for the year eaded March 31, 2023

46 Disclosnres under the Reserve Bank of India {Core Investment Company) Regulations » Liguidity Rigk

a) Funding Concentration based on significaiit counterparty

Pariiculars

As at 31-03-2023

"As af 31-03-2022

(i) No of Siznificant Counterparties
(ii) Amouat.in (Rs.in Lakhsy

(iii} % of Tolal Deposits -

(iv) % of Total Liahilities

by Tep 20 lzrge deposits {anownt in Ks. Lakhs and 2% of totat depnsits) — Not Applicable
c} Top 10 boaawings (ameunt in Rs. Lakhs and % of total depasits) —Not Appificabla
d) Funnj'j]g Contentration based or Significant Instnmient/Product - Not Applicable

e} Siock Ratios

Particulars

As at 31-03-2933

A5 at 31032027

(D) Comimercial Paper as a %% of Total Public Funds

§il) Commercial Paper asa % of Total Liabililes

{ii{) Commercial Paper as a % of Tolal Assétz

(v} Non-Convertible Dt (original matur ity of le=s thin oae yexr} as a % of Tetal Public Funds
{v} Non-Convertible Debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total liabilities

(%)) NonCouvertible Debenlures (on,_mal staturity of Tess than one vear) as 2 % of Total Assets

{vi) Otker Short-Term Liabilities as a %2 of Total Public Funds

{~iii} Other Short-Temm Liabililies as a % of Tolal Liabilities

{ix) Other Short-Tenn Liabilities as a % of Total Assets

“100%
1.24%

130%:

Tm palhntnl Reserve

_As'per the RBI cireulsr RBI20i9-20/170 dated 13th March, 2020, where impairment allowance under Ind AS 109 is lower than the provisioning required .

‘under [RACP (including standard asset provisioning), NBFCsPARCs shall appeopriate the difference from their net profit or boss afler tax 1o a separate
‘Impairment Reserve’. The balance in the *Enpainmint Reserve shall not be eeckoned for regulatory capital . Furiher; na withdrawals shall

e peonitied om this reserve withant peior permission fmn the Thepartment nfSupen']smn, RBE Since sufficient provision is ereated in books for the

year, B impaitmend resarve i3 reguired to be creatad.

Impzirment Reserve FY' 22.23

As Asset
CI:::iEc C[assnﬁ Gross N Diﬂ'g(ence Between
- Hon as cation Canyinglioss Allowance Met Carnying | Provisions required 53 [IND'AS {09
per RAI asper | ount Antowmt per IRACT Norms Provisious and
Norms D {RACP norms
. : AS 109 .
(StandadStage 1 |_623.01 3545 533.56] 233 3703
impairment Keserve FY 21-22
Asset .
o ol .
- catinn . i el Camrying Piovisions reqaired as  |IND AS 109
ation as Camying|Loss Allswance - S
per RBI asper | et : Amount per RACE Norms Prondsiansand.
Norms M} IRALP porms
AS 109
Standard |Stage 1 | 430.27 31992 351035 1.95 3797




- LET ENFRASTRUCTURE DEVELQFAMENT FROJECTS LINITED

Nutes forming part of the dstonie Ind AS finzncial statemeats for the year ended March 31,2023

£T Addideral Repalatory Tnf i ired by Division IT1 - Scheduln TH to the Compznios Art, 2013

@Theiillcliccdsofaﬂlhe' able progeries, {other tan i ble propestics vhere the Compaay 5 the leises and s leasy
agreements ace dily ceccuted in favour of the Qo ) discled in the finaneis inclind 'mpwpeny plant 1nd equipment are

hiefd in ther-mamn of the Company az at the balarcs sheet dalo except the fallawing:

Duecoripting 'iE 1 ‘| W

Techold Lomd and B LxT No The 1ille deeds are in

Buildiag locatad af | 040 Easl- e vane of
Piot o Wl .
Mo 26 sad 22, Talhtzy-
Sorvey Limited
No. 36A -of Moupi [EWTL)
Paliof- B LAT Highvay: Limmited
Sudhagad  Taloke. Grea (GHTE), et hile
District X ] Emtens | ﬂbiiﬁ!in which
Raigsd, ‘memusing Highway © gar merged -
242 i Linsjved | with the Cnmpam
g s md 15ES K {GHTL} undix Seerion
s, =13 R Y 2 S
TEEpeCOTEly. Compazizs Ast,
1356 in terms af'den
approreal af |
b Honduabie Hink
Cotla) o

judicatare in thia year-
20542005

The above property were ransferred in the nzme of L&T IDPL oa 06 Aprid 2023 vids ULPIN; 39390530430 2nd 22563662055
eespectively
'.I}:‘I'he Compairy hns not revalued 2oy of its Propesty, Flant and Equj; and L jb{z Assets during e year

. Intangiblz accers widar doveldpment agetng scheduls:

l_nl:l_ngl‘hlé..\sh:u voder  (Amountin fnizngible asset onder development for a periad of “Total

Less pham dye) 1«2 yrs 23 ¥y Mere than 3 yra
Frojech in S oy - - - A1
Prajects Lanpernly suspendad - - - - -

4 Mo proceedings bayve been Tnitiled or pending agsingt the, I'.‘nmp.;\y fo holding beriami propeny under the Benam: Transactons
{Privhubinan) Act, 193345 ofﬂssl and Fufes made Ihmndel

a. Yha Company dots oot have anybom wangd ﬁcmBmI.smanm.‘l mshmnons during thig curgng year
f. The Company hzs not bren declared a wilful defaulter by any bazk ac Finanicial instimiion of g It QF DN 0
2 The (‘omp:mrhas ua transactions with tha companies mkoﬁ‘md,..: Companies Ack 2015 or Companiea Act, 1956,
I The Company has complied with tho ausber offayers prescribed inder clause (¥7) of Sectioa2 o the Companias Act, 2013 read nith
Companies (Restiiction oo number of Lay:rs) Rulss, 2017,

i, Analygieal Ratigs:
I Blag . . ‘Carrent FPrevious . . Reasons for sariames
Rasis Numerzior , Denommwrl Periad { perind I %% Yariang abave 15%)

Mot applivalla®

*Asper R.BT Master Ciroular BBI/2015-16/13 DH¥OE (PD) CC, Mo.0d3 / G310 L% £ 301514 naaimi: of Capital Adequacy Redo is
oot applicable. ’
i- The Company has not eitered intd any schéms of amahp icuicts hag am. 2 & irapict oa curreat or previous fnancal year

k Thete are sa charges ot sitfisfaction that arg yet o be registared with RO bizyand the standory petiod during tha year.

i The Ccmpany'hm rat advanced arpancd or irvested funds m any othor personds) or entines), including forcign ealitics
(lut diartes) with tha und, ding thar tha I diary shall

x r!:ruﬁyot mdirectly Land pwinvist in other prrsons €5 cities ientified in amy manner whatsoaver By of on behalf of the compaty
{lﬂmate Bencfgiaries} o
b. provids amy guamnize,; kctuuy o the likz w0 oron behali of 1he Ulimatn Rencliciancs

m. The Eumpmy hzs not recaived any fund frorn any persen{s) of enulyfies). intluding foretgn entitizs (Funding Pary) wid the
*! [wi:cthef fed int writing of vtherwise} that the Campany shall:

(7} dimcctly ar |||t.||re:ﬂy lend oranvest in other pﬂs«uns ot enlities
idenlifed i amy mannar wharsasver by or on behalf of the Funding Farty {Ukimats Bio clicl:mﬁ}

fer)
i pﬂmde a0y guanmnles, secunisy. or tha lika on behaif of the Dlimare chﬁcum:s
{iii} declaration thal relevant prris Fiha Forvige Exci Managament Act, 1908 {41 af I'l'.l')}l :deump:uues Acthas liezn
plied with for such trancacrions and the transactions am not uol:uw: of the Prevertion of Monsy-1 aundering act, 2002 (13 of 2003

. Thata is 0 income sarendered or diselased av inenmo durnng the cureant ar prvios yeur i e b assessacnss under the lncome Fae
- Act, 1961, that bias nol baen recordad in the books of aveeumt.




LET INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELGPMENT PRDJECIS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the standalone End AS finoncial statements for the year ended Merch 31,2023

48 Trade Receivables Ageing-

Awefng as xt March 31,2023 “Re. Cr3
sl Qeestanding for following days from the due date of paymient
) Part <6m - 6m-lyr 1-2 Yrs- 2-ds57s =3 Yrz Total
Unsdisputed Trade Receiiables » Considered Good 401 - - - - 401
Ageinz as at March 31,2022
. [ ding for following days from the duc daic of pay . ;
Pariculats- <fim | smelyr 2V | 243ps >3V Total
[Unsdispaied Trade Receivables - Considired Good 6.81 [ 038 - | - - 730
4% Trade payables Ageing
As at Mazch 31, 2023 Rs, Crs
o Ohaistandina far following periods G Jue dale of payment
5N i -
e Pariiculars Not Due <I¥r TiYes | 23Ym | >3V | o2t
1 MSME - A C 814
2 . Others B0l 33 - - 0.61 394
ES Relisted Parties - 031 | 0.34
Total - 201 . 3.80 - - .61 4.42 ]
* There nre no dispoted tics with regand to above dizclosur,
As at March 31, 3622 Rs. Crs
. 0O ding for foll cwil iods frem die dade of;
. P 3 : L= b
5. Na . articulars Mot Dz P T vas 53 Vi T3 Vrs Tatal
1 MEME - 002, - - - o0z
2 . Others 14.04° 429 a.09 L 8461 993
3 Belated Parties - 1.08 108
Total 14,04 539 (LB 200 2.6 20,13
*There are no dispated dues with regard to above disclosare
50 Intaogible Assats Ender Devebopment
As at March 31, 2023 Re. Crs
s . _ Amanaf i CWTP fer a period of
Entangit is Unider Devel t ——t .
zible dssels Under Developiien <y | 12V | 23Y¥s | >3] Total
[Specialised sofiware umder Development cis | | - 1 - T 0.19
_ Az at March 31, 2022 Rs. Crs
L. Armounf in CWIP for a perigd of
Io hie: i
ftangible Asseiy Under Development ST | 12Ym ] 23Yes |  3Vea| el
Specialised suftware andéer Develop 09z | 0383] - -1 175




SL RB] has permitted NBFC-CICs to subseribe 16 infrastnrcrure fivestment trust wmits {invIT) as a Sponsor and bas capped the holding period as priscribed by SEBLie. theee
yeass from the fisting date; The mandatory three year period of the holding of the inifial investnient of 5.55 crore units.of indinfravit Trust ended on May 9,2021. Daring the
previous year, the company has sold the 3,55 crore units of Indinfravit Trust to CPP Invéstimerit Board Privaté Holdings Inc. for-an apgregatz amount of Rs. $63.58 crores.
Baluure 3,75,61,677 units has beett sold during ducing this current year, )

. Rs. Crs .
Paviiculars 2022-23 2021-22
Number of mnits sold: duang the year (in units crores) ars 535"
Fair Value of the wnits sold : 521.95 560.51
Fair Value of tha units sold at (he date of derecognition 535,29 $63.58
t_]fl-_‘au Walue gain recognized other com_pzehensn.'e ivcame during | 1334 296
£ year
Cumulaiive prin or loss on disposal - 2.58

532 The Board of Directors of the Company has r'evimve_d the redlizablz value of all u;eﬁawmal assets and -has confirmed that the value of suéh assets in the
ardinary cowse of business will not be Jess than the value at which these are iecognized in the standalone ind AS financiaf statemeats. In addition, the Board has
also confimed the cirrying value of thé non fndncial assets in the standalone Ind AS financial statements, The Board, duly taking into. zccoum all ihe. refevant

disclosures made, has, approved these standatore Ind AS financial sta in ils meeting hald on April 27, 2633,

33 Previous year's fizures have been reproupediecta ified, wi necessary, (o confinm with the current year’s classification.

For Brzhmayya & Co. For and on bebalfof the Board of Directors

Chiartered Acoomntants )
R. Shankar Raman . Dip Kishore Sen
Chaitman .
(DIN: 00019798) Managing Dircetor

. _ _ (DD, 03554707)
Partoer Place: Mumbat Place: Mumbai

Membemship No. 025929

Fiice: Cheanai
Date - Aprl 27,2023

) A

' :m_ﬁd Sushita Kapoor Ravl Masabztiuka

Chief Financial Qfffeey Company Secretary.
IMembership oo - A2G084
Place: Chennai Place: Chesnal

Dife ; April 27, 2023 - Date : April 27, 2023




a Brahmayya

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of L&T Infrastructure Development Projects Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated ind AS Financial Statements of L&T
infrastructure Development Projects Limited (“the Parent Company™) and its subsidiaries (together
referred as “Group®), its associates, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2023, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated ind AS financial statements including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information {hereinafier referred to as “Consolidated Ind AS

financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best our information and according to the explanations given to us and based
on the consideration of reports of other auditors on the financial statements of the subsidiaries and
unaudited financial information of one subsidiary Company and two associate Companies furnished by
the management referred to in Other Matter paragraph below; the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and it’s Associates as at March 31, 2023, of consolidated
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinien

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are¢ further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group and its Associates in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordanée with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

Material Uncertainty relating to Going Concern in respect of certain subsidiary companies
included in the reports of the auditors of those subsidiary companies:

a) We draw atiention to Note 62 of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, which indicates
that the L&T Deccan Tollways Limited (DTL), a subsidiary company incurred a cumulative
_net loss of Rs. 968.69 crores up to March 31, 2023 resuiting in negative net-worth of the DTL
of Rs. 608.72 crores and Current Liabilities exceeds the Current Assets by Rs. 65.68 crores.
These events or conditions, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant
doubt on the DTL’s ability to continue as a going concern. Basis set forth in Note No. 62, the
management has prepared DTL.’s financial statements on a going concern basis.

48, Masilamani Road, Balaji Nagar, T:491-044-28131128/38/48/58
Royapettah, Chennai - 600 014, india. E :mail@brahmayya.com | www brahmayya.com
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Chartered Accountants

b) We draw attention to Note 63 of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, which indicates
that the Panipat Elevated Corridor Limited (PECL), a subsidiary company incurred a
cumulative net loss of Rs, 349.62 Crores up to March 31, 2023 resulting in negative net-worth
of the PECL of Rs. 303.13 crores and Current Liabilities exceeds the Current Assets by
Rs. 261.17 crores. These events or conditions, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that
may cast significant doubt on the PECL ability to continue as a going concern. Basis set forth
in Note No. 63, the management has prepared PECL financial statements on a going concern
basis.

c) We draw attention Note 65 of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements, which indicates
that the L& T Samakhiali Gandhidham Tollway Limited (SGTL) has accumulated losses and
its net worth has been fully eroded. Also, the SGTL has incurred a net cash loss during the
current and previous year and, the SGTL’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets as at
the balance sheet date. These conditions, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that
may cast significant doubt about the SGTL s ability to continue as a going concern. Basis set
forth in Note No. 65, the management has prepared SGTL financial statements on a going
concern basis.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Emphasis of Matter

a) We draw attention to Note 55 (d) of the consalidated Ind AS financial statements, which describes
the company assessment of the net carrying value of its investments aggregating as on March 31,
2023 of Rs.554.07 crores (As on March 31, 2022; Rs. 740.47 crores) and net loans and advances
aggregating as on March 31, 2023 of Rs. 503.22 crores (As on March 31, 2022: Rs. 293.41 crores)
relating to four operating subsidiarics of the Company engaged in infrastructure projects whose
net worth is eroded/undergoing restructuring due to continuous losses, for a period more than five
years, as per the audited financial statements of those subsidiaries as at March 31, 2023.

The Management has, given the uncertainties involved in these estimates and considering the
gestation period required for breakeven for such infrastructure investments and
restructuring/refinancing arrangements carried out/proposed to be carried out, expected improved
cash flows in its future business projections, concludes that no additional provision/adjustment to
the carrying value of the said investments/loans and advances is required as at March 31, 2023.

In respect of certain subsidiary companies, we invite attention to following Emphasis of Matters.
included in the audit reports of the respective auditors of the subsidiary companies:

L&T Chennai - Tada Tollway Limited

b) 1. Note 55(a) & (b) to the financial statements which states that due to the authority (NHAI) default,
the Company terminated the project with effect from June 24, 2015. Due to inaction of the
authority on termination notice. the Company filed an application under Sec 9 of Arbitration and
Conciliation Act before the Honorable High Court of Delhi. On the direction of Court, Authority
{NHALI) took over the Project on June 23, 2016.

Upon completion of the arguments from both the parties, the Honorable Arbitral Tribunal
prenounced the Majority Award in favour of the Company and upheld the Termination of the
Concession Agreement by the Company for the Authority default. Accordingly, the Arbitral
Tribunal awarded the arbitration award to the Company vide its order dated November 06, 2019.
The Company had filed the application under Section 34 of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act
for rectification of some errors in the Termination award. Pleadings in the matter was completed
and the matier was listed on various dates for further proceedings.
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The Company had raised number of disputes/arguments with the Authority (NHAI) which could
not be resolved amicably between them and the same was referred to Arbitration. The Company
had lodged aclaim in the Arbitration Tribunal. Upon completion of the arguments from both the
parties, the Arbitral Tribunal has awarded the arbitration in favour of the Company.

However, NHAI had challenged both the termination and claims award before the High Court of
Delhi on August 17, 2020 under section 34 of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act. Copy of the
section 34 application was served to the Company.

Meanwhile, the Counsel of NHAI and the Company represented that the negotiation is going on
for settlement and accordingly the matter was adjourned. Further, in view of the settlement
agreement exccuted between the. Company and NHAI, both the Company and NHALI filed an
application for withdrawal of the proceedings in the Court. Accordingly, the Honorable High
Court of Delhi disposed of the arbitration proceedings of the Company and NHA! on February
10, 2023 and March 01, 2023 respectively.

2. Note 5(a) to the financial Statements states that in the interest of early settlement of the above
mentioned disputes, the Company had discussion with NHAI and Secretary of MoRTH and
decided to settle the termination payment through conciliation by the Conciliation Committee of
independent Experts (CCIE). Also, the represemtatives of lead Bank and the Company had
multiple meetings with NHAL Accordingly. after several meetings with CCIE and NHAI, an
amount of Rs.13,600 lakh was offered as full and final settlement by NHAL The Company
exccuted the settlement agreement with NHAI on February 03, 2023 for Rs.13,600 lakh. The
settlement amount of Rs.13,328 lakh after tax deduction of Rs.272 lakh was deposited by NHAI
in the Escrow account on March 30, 2023. Post receipt of one-time settlement amount from
NHAI, the balance reccivable from NHAL in the books of the Company amounting to Rs.23,818
lakh was writtei1 off,

3. Note 55 to the financial Statements which states that Secured lenders had approached Debt
Recovery Tribunal (DRT) for recovery of entire outstanding Term loans during the year 2018-19,
On April 15, 2019, the Debt Recovery Tribunal, Chennai had allowed the lead bank to recover
the debt due along with an interest @ 9% instead of the interest rate as charged by the banks
effective 27°h February 2017, being the application date.

Also, during the previous year, the lenders had filed an application before the Honorable DRT-I1
seeking direction to issue recovery certificate against the Company for the purpose of recovering
the debt due as on the date of filing the original application. The Tribinal had passed an order to
issue recovery certificate in favour of the lenders vide its order dated April 15, 2019, and
accordingly the Debt recovery certificate was issued. on July 14, 2021 and a demand notice dated
July 31, 2021 was issued by the recovery officer to deposit the sum of Rs. 36,404 Lakhs within
I5 days of receipt of the notice. The Company had filed an application before the DRT and
requested to extend the time to 365 days.

After hearing the arguments of both the parties, on April 13, 2022, DRT-H had ordered to deposit
an amount of Rs.3,500 lakh within 8 weeks from the date of this order and another amount of
Rs.3,500 lakh within another 8 weeks, notwithstanding any amount that may be received by the
petitioner in terms of the Arbitral Award mentioned in the petition. With the above order DRT-II
had disposed of the petitions.

However; in the Joint Lenders Mceting held on January 23, 2023, the Company had
communicated the one-time settlement offered by NHAI for Rs. 13,600 lakhs and subsequently
executed the settlement agreement with NHAI on February 03, 2023. Also, the Company had
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communicated to all the lenders that the said amount shall be full and final settlement and
requested the lenders to satisfy the following conditions post settiement:

a) No Dues and NOC confirming full and linal setttement of all dues to lenders.
b) No Dues and NOC from Trustee.

c) Release of pledge/charge by the Trustee.

dy Withdrawal of DRT proceedings by lenders.

The lenders IDBI, PNB and BOB have submitted their consent for the one-time settlement of
Rs.13,600 lakhs. HDBI and PNB appropriated their respective portion from the settlement amount
on March 31, 2023. The consent for one time settlement. from UBI is yet to be received by the
Company. Since, the settlement to lenders cannot exceed Rs, 13,600 lakhs, the outstanding term
loan due to BOB and UBI is shown to the extent of their respective share out of one-time
settlement by NHAI The balance outstanding dues to lenders amounting to Rs. 18,406 Lakh post
one time settlement of Rs.13,600 lakhs have been written back.

4. Note 35(c) to the financial statements states that during the year, in view of the settlement with
NHAI and lenders, Unsecured loan including interest and expenses payable to Holding Company
amounting to Rs, 1,756 lakh has been accounted in L&T Chennai Tada Tollway Limited (CTTL)
books and outstanding balance payable to Ultimate Holding Company amounting to Rs.239 lakh
has been written back in the books of account of the company.

5. Exceptional ltems: _
Note 55(c) to the financial statements discloses the write back of outstanding Térm Loans
including Interest and Loan from Related Party amounting to Rs. 18,406 Lakhs and Rs.1,995 lakhs
respectively and write off of Receivables from NHAI amounting to Rs,23,818 Lakhs based on the
settlement amount received from NHAI during the year as mentioned above.

¢} We draw attention 10 Note 64 of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements regarding
management assessment of Going Concern assumption followed in preparation of financial
statements for reasons stated in the said note. Basis set forth in Note No. 64, the management
has prepared L& T Rajkot - Vadinar Tollway Limited (RVTL) financial statements on a going
concern basis,

d)  Asmentioned in Note 66 of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, Going Concern is not
appropriate for L& T Chennai Tada Tollway Limited (CTTL) and PNG Tollway Limited (PNG),
hence the financial statements of CTTL and PNG have been drawn up accordingly.

e}  Note 50 of the Consolidated ind AS Financial Statements, which describes the Management's
assessment of the carrying value of toll collection rights at March 31, 2023 Rs. 3,847.52 crores,
net of amortisation/impairment of Rs. 1,557.28 crores in four aperating subsidiaries of the Group,
engaged in infrastnicture projects, whose net worth is eroded and have continuing operating
lossesfundergoing restructuring due to continuous losses, for a period more than 5 years as per
the audited Ind AS financial statements of those subsidiaries as at March 31, 2023,

As explained in the note, the Management has, considéring the gestation period required for break
even for such infrastructure investments and restructuring/refinancing arrangements carried
out/proposed, expected improved cash flows in its future business projections, opined that no
additional impairment/adjustment to the carrying value of the said toll collection rights is
necessary as at March 31,2023,

Our opinion s not modified in respect of the above matters.
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Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the current period, These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financia! Statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion.on these matters. We have determined the

matters described below to be the Key Audit Matters to be communicated in our report.

S.No

Key Audit Matters

_'Auditor’s response

I

Impairment evaluation carried out! by

“Management for investments or loans or

advances made to certain operating
subsidiaries of the Company engaged in
infrastructure projects whose net worth is

Qur Audit procedures includes the
following:

Evaluated the design and
implementation of the relevant controls

cither fully eroded fundergoing and the operating effectiveness of such
restructuring due to continuous losses for a internal  controls which inter-alia
period more than § years. includes the completeness and accuracy

of the input data considered,
The Company has investments aggregating to reasonableness of  assumptions

Rs. 554.07 crores (net of provisions of Rs.
45830 crores) and loans & advances
agpregating Rs. 503.22 crores (net of
provisions of Rs. 32.67 crores) with regard to
certain operating subsidiaries of the Company
engaged in infrastructure projects whose net
worth is fully eroded/undergoing restructuring
due to continuous losses for a period more

advances as at March 31, 2023.

Due to the multitude of f[actors and
assumptions involved in determining the
forecasled revenues/cash flows and discount
rate in the projection period, significant
judgments are required to estimate the
recoverable values. Any adverse changes to
these assumptions could result in a reduction
in such recoverable value becoming lower
than the carrying amount.

considered in determining the future
projections and the assumptions
considered in preparing the impairment
calculations,

Obtained the investment valuations
(prepared by Management or as carried
out by Management's external valuation

than 5 years. specialist)  pertaining to  such
subsidiaries and performed  the
The Management has carried out detailed | following procedures:
| evaluation considering various factoss, on the
caitying value of the invesiments, loans and i. Conducted  discussions  with

Company personnel 1o identify
factors, if any, that should be taken
into account in the analysis.

Compared the actual revenues and
cash flows generated by the
subsidiaries during the year as to
the projections and estimates
considered in the previous year.

Evaluated and tested the appropriateness of

key

Management,

the
rate,

assumptions considered by
including  discount

growth rate, etc. considering the historical
accuracy of the Company’s estimates in the
prior periods, consultations with internal

specialists

and comparison of the

assumptions with public data, wherever
available.
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S.Ne Key Audit Matters Auditor’s response
2 | Impairment cvaluation carriecd out by | Our Audit Procedures include the
Management for Toll Collection Rights Of | following:

certain operating projects of the company
who have incurred continuous losses
and/or are undergoing restructuring due to
continuous losses for a peried more than 3
years.

Toll  collection rights, aggregating Rs.
3.847.52 crores as at March 31, 2023,
obtained in consideration for rendering
constraction services, represent the right to
collect toll revenue during the concession
period in respect of Build-Operate-Transfer
("BOW") or Design-Build-Finance-Operate-

‘Transfer ("DBFOT"} projects undertaken by

the company. Toll collection rights are
capitalized as intangible assets upon
completion of the project at the cumulative

construction costs plus the present value of subsidiaries and  performed the

obligation towards negative grants and following procedures:

additional concession fee payable to National

I-llghw‘a.ys A._utl.lo.nty of India ("NHAI")/State () Conducted discussions  with

authorities, if any. c o
“ompany personnel to identify
factors, if any, that should be taken

The Group has carried out detailed into account in the analysis.

evaluations considering various factors and

concluded that the carrying value of the toll Gi)  Compared the actual revenues and

collection rights are good and recoverable.

Due to the multitude of factors and
assumptions involved in determining the
forecasted revenues/cash flows and discount
rate in the projection peried, Significant
judgments are required to estimate the
recoverable values. Any adverse changes to.
these assumptions could result into reduction
in the fair value determined resulting in a
potential impaiiment to be recognised.

a) Evaluated
implementation of the relevant controls
and the operating effectiveness of such
internal
includes the completeness and accuracy

of

reasonableness
considered in determining the future
projections
considered in preparing the impairment
calculations.

b)

out

valuation specialist) pertaining to such

(iii)

Obtained the
(prepared by Management or as carried

subsidiaries during the year as to

the design and

controls which inter-alia
considered,

assumpltions

data
of

the input

and the assumptions

investment valuations

by Management's external

cash flows pgenerated by the
the projections and estimates
considered in the previous year,

Evaluated the appropriateness of
key assumptions considered,
including discount rate, growth
rate, ete. considering the historical
accuracy of the Company's
estimates in the prior periods,
consultations with internal
specialists and comparison of the
assumptions with public data
wherever available.
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S.No

Key Audit Matters ]

Auditor's response

Component Aunditors have mentioned the following Key Audit Matters in their Audit

Reports of the Components:

3.1

In Connection with Subsidiary Company -

(IRCL)

L&T Interstate Road Corridor Limited

outflows. This results in high degree of

Accuracy of recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclesures of revenues
and other rélated balances in terms of Ind
AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” ~ Auditors of IRCL identified
this as a Key Audit Matter.

The application of the revenue accounting
standard IND AS 115 involves certain key
judgements relating to  identification of
distinct performance obligations,
determination of transaction price of the
identified performance obligations, the
appropriateness of the basis used to measure
revenue recognised over a  period.
Additionally, the  standard  contains
disclosures  which involves collation of
information. in respect of disaggregated
revenue and periods over which the remaining
performance obligations will be satisfied
subsequent to the halance sheet date.

Amount of consideration receivable over
concession period treated as financial assef is
derived by estimating cash inflows and

subjectivity.

The determination of transaction price of
identified performance obligation as well as
estimation of future cash inflows and outflows
involves significant management judgement
and hence considered as a key audit matter.

The Audit Response to this Key Audit
Matter has been mentioned by the auditors
of IRCL as follows:

a) Tested company’s design and operating
effectiveness of internal control and
carried out substantive testing in respect
of company’s performance obligation in
terms of concession agreement,

b) Read, analysed, werified disfinct
performance obligation in Concession
Agreement,

c) Considered terms of Concession
Agreement to determine transaction
price used lo compute revenue.

d) Analysed procedure for reasonableness
of revenue disclosed.

In respect of carrying value of amount
receivable under Service Concession
Arrangements

a) Reviewed the basis on which financial
model prepared to work out the carrying
value of financial asset at amortised cost
less  impairment  allowance  in
accordance with Ind AS 109. Reviewed
the working of cash outflows on account
of Operation & Maintenance obligation
along with budget prepared by the
management for the same.

b) Performed analytical procedures and
test of details in respect of cost incurred
and to be incurred during the tenure of
concession agreement.

¢} Verified the disclosures made in
financial statements in accordance with
requirement of IND AS 115 “Revenue
From Contracts with customers”
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_S.No . Key Audit Matters ' ] - Auditor’s respoiise
" 3.2 | In Connection with Subsidiary Company — Ahmedabad Maliya Tollway Limited

(AMTL)
a) Risk of Improper revenue | The Audit Response to this Key Audit
recognition — The Auditors of | Matter has been mentioned by the auditors
AMTL has identified this as a Key | of AMTL as follows:

Audit Matter 2) Understatement of toll revenue and
misappropriation of cash at tolls is
b) Impairment of Toll Collection checked by obtained the ledger dump of
rights/intangible toll collection for the entire period and

reconciled the same with the system
generated revenue reports of the toll
actually collected.

[dentified variations in toll collections
and obtained and analyzed reasons for
the variations,

b) Examined the basis used by the
management in support of the estimates
of future discounted cash flows based
on the report for projected traffic data
and compared the same with the
recoverability of intangible assets
recorded in the books.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Parent Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Parent Company’s Annual Report, but
does not include the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance ¢onclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so. consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements

The Parent Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of
these consolidated Ind AS financial statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act,
2013 that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial
performance including other comprehensive income and consolidated cash flows of the Group
including its Associates in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specnhed under section 133 of the Act. The réspective Board
\ of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates are responsible for
} maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
{ safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies: makngudgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
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financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
by the Directors of the Parent Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group and of its associates are responsible for assessing the ability of
the Group and of its associate to continue as a poing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of it’s associates are
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its associates.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when itexists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if; individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Ind AS financial statements..

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
-omissions, misrepresentations, or the averride of internal control.

b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design. audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls..

¢) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management in Consolidated Financial
Statlements.

d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associates
and to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated
Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its associates to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements represent the under lying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

f)  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group and its associates to express an opinion on the
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements, We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the
other entities included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, which have been
audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision, performance and opinion in respect of the audits carried out by them. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion,

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent Company and such other
entities included in the Consolidated [nd AS financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not-be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

a) We did not audit the Ind AS financial statements of 13 subsidiaries, whose Ind AS financial
statements reflect total assets of Rs, 9,291.77 Crores as at March 31, 2023, total revenue from
operations of Rs, 1,476.45 Crores and net cash inflows amounting to Rs 96.68 Crores for the year
ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. These Ind AS
financial statements and certain other adjustments carried out in the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements in respect of these subsidiaries referred to in Note 10(ii) of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us
by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated ind AS financial statements, in so far as
it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report
in terms of subsection (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiaries and associate is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

We did not audit the Ind AS financial statements of one subsidiary Company, whose Ind AS
financial statements reflect total assets of Rs, 100.07 Crores as at March 31, 2023, total revenue
from operations of Nil and net cash inflows amounting to Rs 100.07 Crores for the period ended
on that date, as considered in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.
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¢)  The Consolidated Ind AS financial statements also include the Parent company’s share of net
profit of Rs. 3.79 crores for the year ended March 31, 2023, in respect of one associate Company,
whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These financial statements are certified
by the management and have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in 50 far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of this associate, is based solely on such unaudited financial statements, In our
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the Management, this
financial information is not materia! to the Group.

d)  The consolidated Ind AS financial statements also include the Group's share of net profit of Rs,
3.92 Crores for the year ended March 31, 2023, as considered in the consolidated Ind AS financial
stalements, in respect of an associate, whose financial statements have not been audited by us.
These financial statements are certified by the management and have been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this associate, is based solely on such
unaudited financial statements. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us by the Management, this financial information is not material to the Group.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our report on other legal and
regulatory legal requirements, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance
on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial information certified by the
Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the
other auditors on the financial statements of subsidiaries and associate, as noted in the ‘Other Matters’
paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating 1o preparation of the
aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from
our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and. Loss (including
other comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements.

d)} In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent Company
as on March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Parent Company and
the reports of the statutory auditors of subsidiary companies and associate company
incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Parent, its subsidiaries included in the group
and its associate companies incorporated in India are disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
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f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group
and its associates, mcorporated in India and the operatmg effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate report in “Annexure A” which is based on the auditors’ report of the parent,
subsidiary companies, associate companies incorporated in India.

2)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Group to their directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act read with schedule V to the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given 10 us:

(i) The Consolidated Ind AS financial statements has disclosed the impact of peniding litigations
on its financial position of Group and its associates in its Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements,

(ii) Provision has been made in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, as required under
the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses on long term
contracts and the group-did not have any derivative contracts,

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to thie Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Group and associate companies.

(iv) (a) The respective Managements of the company and its subsidiaries and associates which
are incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the
Companies Act, has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Company or any of the subsidiaries and associates to or in any other
person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company or any of such subsidiaries and associates (*Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Uitimate
Beneficiaries:

(b) The respective Managements of the company and its subsidiaries and associates which
are incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the
Companies Act, has represented. that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
{which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company or-any of such subsidiaries and associates from any person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company or any of such subsidiaries and associates shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide
any guarantee, security or the {ike on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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(c) Based on the audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us and the auditors of the subsidiaries and associate which
are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

(v} The Group has not déclared or paid any dividend during the year.

(vi) Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of
account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility is applicable to the Group with effect from April I, 2023, and accordingly,
reporting under Rule 1i(g) of Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

For Brahmayya & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 0005115

Place: Chennai

Date: April 27,2023
' L. Ravi Sankar

Partner

Membership No. 025929

UDIN No.23025929BGYJXF9213
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“Annexure - A” to the Auditors’ Report

Referred to in Paragraph 1(f) under Report on Other Légal and Regulatory Requirements section
of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with reference to aforesaid
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies, Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

tn conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Group as of and for
the year ended March 31, 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of L&T Infrastructure Development Projects Limited (hereinafier referred to as “the Parent Company™)
and its subsidiary companies and its associate companies which are companies incorporated in india, as
of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent company, its subsidiary companies, its associate
companies which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal contral over financial reparting criteria established by
the respective Companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and érrors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Parent, its subsidiary companies and its associate companies, which are companies incorporated in
India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAl and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established .and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our-audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors of the subsidiary companies and associate companies, which are companies incorporated in
India in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriale to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting of the Parent, its subsidiary companies and its associate companies, which are

companies incorporated in India.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial controf over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections ol any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate:

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based
on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below,
the Parcnt, its subsidiary companies and associate companies, which are companies incorporated in
india, have, in all material respects. an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2023, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established
by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute

of Chartered Accountants of India.
In respect of One subsidiary company, the statutory auditors have reported as follows:

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal financial controls with
reference to Ffinancial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. However, we have
identified certain violations in the Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs’) in collection of toll at the
Toll Plaza, which need to be complied with.
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'We have considered the material weakness identified and reported above in determining the nature,
timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the 31st, March 2023 standalone financial
statements of the Company, and the material weakness does not affect our opinion on the standalone

financial statements of the Company

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to 13 subsidiary companies,
which are companies incorporated in India, is based solely on the corresponding reports of the auditors
of such companies incorporated in India. In case of one subsidiary company and two associate
companies, the audit has not been done and, accordingly, our reporting under Section 143(3Xi) of the
Act does not cover such subsidiary and associates. However, the size of the subsidiary company and
associate companies in the context of the Group is not material.

Qur opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

For Brahmayya & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.000511S

7 Place: Chennai

Date: April 27, 2023
L. Ravi Sankar

Partner
Membership No, 025929
UDIN No.23025929BGYIXEFS213
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L&T Infrastructure Deve!cpmen! Projects Limited
Consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31,2023

< erore
Particulars Note As at . As at
No. 31 March 2023 31 Dlarch 2022
ASSETS
(1) Financial Assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 2 159.77 67.37
{b) Bank balances other than (a) above 3 1,066.95 1,164.41
(c) Receivables
{T) Trade receivables 4 35.26 17.73
(I} Other receivables 5 230.18 2,084.08
(6) Investments 6 655.56 1,187.81
(e} Other financial assets 7 4.86 3.4
2} Non-financial Assets
(a) Current tax assets (Nef) 8 3747 48.96
{b) Investment property 11 2.06 2.10
{c) Property, plant and equipment 9 1222 20.06
(d} Intangibie assets under development 10 0.19 51.23
(e} Goodwill 12 28.48 28.48
(f) Other intangible assets 10 3,742.87 6,169.32
(2) Other non-financial asscts 13 72.32 40,32
8,047.89 10,383.01
Assets classified as held-for-sale 2,100.01 -
TOTAL ASSETS 16,147.90 10,885.01
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
(1) Financial Liabilities
(a) Trade payables. 14
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 5.20 5.02
(i) total outstanding dues'of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 51.98 66.39
enterprises i )
(b} Dcbt securities L5 221.15 1,775.52
(¢} Bomowings {olher than debt securities) 16 5,946.75 6.327.63
(d) Other financial liabilities 18 3714.70 436.10
{2) Non-financial Liabilities
(a) Provisions 19 327.85 415.85
(b) Deferred tax Habilities (Net) 44 5.07 5.80
{¢) Other non-financial liabilities 20 50.53 2994
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 2 629.72 629.33
(b} Other equity 22 996.03 1,109.48
Non-confrolling interests 85.80 83.75
8,694.78 10,885.81
Liabilities held-for-sale 1,453.12 -
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 10,147.90 10,885.01
Contingent liabilities 23
Commilments 24
Refer notes forming part of the conselidated Ind AS financial statements ite75

As per our report attacheéd
For Brahmayya & Co.,
Charte efl Accountants.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

QJWL( = 32

R. Shanka Dip Kishore Sen
Chairman Managing Director
(DIN: 60019798) (DIN; 03554707)
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

T

Pramod Sushila Kapoor Rayvi Masabattufa

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
MMembership no - A20084
Place: Chennai

Date : April 27, 2023

Membership No. 025929

Place; Chennai
Date : Apdl 27,2023

Place: Chennai
Date ; April 27, 2023



L&T lafrastructure Davelopment Projects Limited
Consolidated Profit & loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

{erore

. Note Period ended Period ended
Particulars No. | a1 March 2023 31 Mireh 2022
1 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
(2} Income frem financing aetivity
[nterest income 5 36.54 372.12
Rental intome _ 0.44 834
Met gain/(loss) on fair value changes 0.69 L7
Sale of services 16.67 2344
(b) Revenue from service concession arrangements (nel) 26 1,181.62 1.633.30
() Other operating intome: 27 7532 17,32
‘Total revenue from aperations 131128 L713.19
Cther income 28 49.68 73.37
To_l:d Income i360.96 1,788 56
I EXFENSES
Finance costs 29 801.78 8931.52
Fees and eommission cxprmses.
() Cost of materials consumed - &o3
(b) Change in faventory of work-in-progress
(i} Sub-conuacting charges 1424 773
(i) Financing charges 030 1240
(iti) Oiher canstrretion and related operating expenses 30 240,72 Hi71
Emp!oyeg benefils expense 31 3428 50.33
Depreciation and amortization expense 9-12 458.40 JS046
Othee expenses 32 52:13 3484
Tetal Expénses 1,621.85 1.844.99
Tl Loss beforaexceptional items aod tax. (- 11 {260.89) {36.43}
IV Exceptional stems (nst}- 39 4244 73.39
V' Profitf(loss) Before 1ax (L1 + 1V} {218.48} 1896
VI Tax expense )
Current tax 3399 s
MAT credit entitlement 44 {1.14) -
Deferred tax. {0.79) 0.42
3212 584
VII  Net Profit/(loss) afier tax from continuing operations {V - V1) 250.60) {16.88}
Share of profit of associates 7.72 BlLi3
VIR Prafit/(foss) for tke year from continuing operations {242.88) 6425
Disconfinged Dperations )
IX  Profit for the period from discontinued operations 17.67 -
X Taxexpense of discontinued operations’ 43 - -
XI  Profit frou discontinued operations (fier tax) (1X -X) 67 -
XII Profit/(loss) for the period (V1L + X1) (165.21) 6425
Other comprehensive income’ .
() Items that will not be reclassified 10 profis or Yoss
a) Remeasurement of net defined benefit plans (net of 1x) - {@23)
b} Fair value of investments thraugh other comprehensive income 53.89 100.9¢
(if} Income fax redating to iterns that will not be reclassified to profit and loss - &36
XII} Other compirthensive incame 58.89 109.24
XTIV Total tom prehensive incomei(loss) for the periad X1 + X1II) (186.32) 17349
XV Profit/(Joss) for the periad atiributable to:
~Qnners of the company {167.28) M76
- Non-controliing interests za7 Joq9
-Other comprehensive income for the period 2ttributable lo:
- Ovmers of the company 5389 16224,
- Noo—controlling interests. - -
Total comprebensive iacome for the period atiribulable ta: .
<+ Omnners of the company {108.39) 134,00
- Non-contrelfing interests 207 30,49




L&T Infrastructnre Development Projects Limited
Consolidated Profit & fots for the year ended March 31, 2023

XVI Earnings per equity share (face vafue of ¥ 10 each} 43

Continuing eperations
(a) Equity shares

(1) Basic {2.66) a.39

(2) Diluted (2.66) 0.3

(b} Special equity shares
(1) Basic . -
{?) Diluted - .

Discontinned operalions
{a) Equity shares

{1} Basic 4.03 194

(2) Dilcted 403 194

(b} Special equity shares
(1) Basic - -
{2) Diluted - .

Refer notes forming part of the consolidaied Ind AS financial siatements 11075

As per ow repart attached For aad an behall of the Board of Directors

R._Shankua;m—.m/ Dig Kishore Sea d

Chaimian Mamaging Director
{DEN: 00019798) {DIN: 03554707}
Place: Mambai Placez Mumbei
Membership No. 025929 (b).J .
E '
Pl Chennai Pramad Sushila Kapoor Ravi Masabattala
Date : Apdl 27, 2023 Chief Financial Officer Company Scorclary
Mzabership no - A2608$
Place: Cheanai Place: Chennab
Date - Apal 27, 2023 Daate - Apnl 27,2023




L&T Infrastructure Development Profects Limited

Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31,2023 & crore
SNo Particulars Xear ended ~ Year ended
31 Afarch 2023 3T March 2022

A |Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(Lass) fiean contlinuitg operations (242.88) 61.25
Adjustments for:
Tax expenses 6.93 35.84
Exceptional items 19.89- £73.39)
Share of associates (77 (31.13)
Depreciation & amortisation expense 43223 580.46
Tncome not to be considered (19.42) -
|Liabilities uo Jonger required written back (4.41) {0.27)
{Gain)/Toss on fair value measurement (241} (2.87)
{Gain)/loss on sale of investments {13.12) {13.69)
Inferest income (23.09) (37.58)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment {0.22) 0.23
Dividend recaived (8.85) -
Unclainted credit balances (1.35)
Finance costs 846.19 ¥93.52
Operating profit/{loss) before adjustments for operating assets / liabilities 97479 1,363.39
{Increase)decrease in Trade receivables (327) 179.18
{Increase)decrease in Other financial assets 32423 126,53
(Mmerease} decrease in non-financial assets {7147
(Increase)/decrease Tn Other non=financial assets 0.93 (11.83}
Increase/{decrease) in Trade payables 382 (3.30)
Increase/{dectease) in-Other current liabilities 339 -
Inerease/{decrease) in Other financial iabilities 16.44 {23.63)
Increase/(dacrease)-in mon-financial liabilities 124
Increase/(decrease) in Other non-finarcial liabilities 1276 10.06
Increase/(decrease) in provisions (31.38) {263.89)
Cash generated from/(used) in operations L,18L.48 1,376.29
Direct taxes paid (net of refinds) (23.61) (19.37)
Net Cash generated from/{used) in operating activities 1,153.87 1,356,92

B. |Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and additions to intangible assets (incl. CWIP) (28.39) (4.8
Proceeds from disposal of property,plant-and equipments and intangible assets L18 LO92.13
Dividend/Distribution received from wssociate 3607 -
Inferest received 23.04 37.38
Sale/{purchase) of current investments (net) {108.20) 4#36.51)
Proceeds on distribution of unit capital by Infrastructure investment trust 322.50 220
Changes in other bank balances (22710 364.22
Proceads From disposal of assets held for sale (net) - 1236.23)
Settlerent on account of crysiallized claims 4.91) {8.33)
Net cash generated from/f{used) in investing activities 21419 1,024.06

C | Cash Aows from financing activities
Proceeds from/{repayment of) borrowings (net) (647.46) (2,213.56)
Discharge of deferred payment liabilities -{200.06) (11.33)
Interest paid (430.t3) {643.73)
Net Cash geaerated fromf{used) in financing activities (1,277.43) (2,870.82)
Net increase/(deciease} in cash and cash equivalents 92.40. (489.84)
Opening cash znd cash equivalents 67.37 557.21
Closing cash and cash-equivalents 159.77 67.37

Notes: ) )
1}  Cash flow statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method' as-set out in the Ind AS 7 - Statement of Cash Flows as-per Companies {Indian

Accounting Standard) Rules 2¢15.
2)  Also refer notes forming past of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the year endéed 31 March 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

As per our report attached
For Brahmayya & Co.,
Chartered Accountants

@5@;

R. Sbankar Dip.K.Sen
Chairman Managing Director
{DIN: 00019798) (DIN:03554707)
L. Ravi Sankar Place: Mumbai Place : Mumbal
Pariner ;
Membership No. 625929 (—LV’A
N
Pramod Sushila Kapoor Ravi Masabattula
Chief Financial OFicer Company Secrelary
Membership no - A20084

Place: Chennai
Bate: April 27,2023

Place: Chennai
Diate: April 27, 2023

Place: Chennal
Date: April 27, 2023



L&ET Infrastructure Development Projecis Limited
Consalidated Sfat t of Chaoges in Fquity for the year ended March 31, 2023

A. Equity share capital

Az at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Part . 5
articulars ‘\‘;f:::of Terore | Number of shares T crore
Issued, subscribed and paid up equity share capita] ar'the heginning of the year] 62,95,21,764 629.52 62,95.21764 620,52
Add: Shares issued during the year 2,600,000 0.26 - -
Less: Shares bonght back during the year . - - -
Isswed, subscribed and paid up equity share capital of the end of the year £297,21,764 429.72 $2,95,21.764 629,52
B. Other equity
¥ crore
Reserves and surplus
. Other
Siztutory| Securities "‘ﬁﬁlﬁ’m R]:;be:l;:n Geareal Retainad prehensive Tatal
‘Reserve | Premium M il resecve Earaings. income
reserve reseTIE :
Balmce as on @1 Apnl 2021 08.33 99745 1,i37.00 37801 1521 (1,636.14) (2Z.75} 06711
Profif for the'year ended 31 March 2022 - - - - - 24.76 2176
OCrher comprekensive income for the year - - - - - - 109.24 109.24
Toalal Comprehensive Income for the year 28.33 99745 1,137.640 378.61 1521 {1.611.38) 86.49 1,105.01
Othier compreheasive income ~ remeasutentents ofnet defned 0.28) 028
benefis plans [Refer Note 22¢] - . 5 - - @ -2 -
Transier to/{from)rom debsntare redempticn resenve - - - (13960) 3.32 130,78 < -
Settlement oo aceount of crystallized claims - - - - - {8.53} - (3.53)
Trzasfer of gain ca sale of FVTOCT equity instrument - . - - - 8.58 (8.58) -
Minority intérest in subsidiary company Aot apportioned earfier - - - - - 1690 . 1650
Balante as 4n 31 March 2022 98.33 997,43 1,131.400 2384 2403 (1,463.93) 7819 | 1,100.4%
Profi for the year endad 31 March 2022 - - - - - {167.28) - {167.28)
Orher comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 38.39 58.39
Total Comprehensive lncome for the year 48.33 53745 1,137.00 23841 24,03 (1,631.21) 137.08 1,021.0%
Issue of Bonus shares - - 0.15) - - - - (0.15)
Transfer tof{fionx) debenture redemption reserve - - - - - {50.74) - (50.74)
Transfer to/{from) general reserve - - - - - - R -
Transfer to/{from) vetained camnings - - | - 50.14 - - - 30,74
Trzasfer 1o reserve ws $5-1C | 226 - - - - {2.36) - -
Additions/{delctions) during the year - - - - - - . -
Settlement on accounl of crystallized elaims - - - - - {4.91) - +.91)
Balance 2y on 31 March 2023 10059 99145 1,136,835 289.15 2403 {1,689.12} 137.08- 995.03
For and on behalf of the Board of Dizectors
) RN [
As per cur report attached R. Shankar Dip.K Sen .
& Chalmtan Managing Director
{DIN: 00019798) (DRV:03554707)
Place: Murmsbai Place : Mumbai
Pramod Smh#a Kapocar Ravi dMasabattula
2 Chief Finpncial officer Company Secretary
Membership No. 025929 dlembership no - A20084
Place: Chenaai Flace: Chennai
Place: Chaymar Datz: April 27, 2023 Date: April 27, 2023

Date: April 27, 2023



L&T Infrastructure Development Projects Limited
Netes forming part of the Consolidated Ind AS Financia! Statemenis for the year ended March 31, 2023
1 Siﬁ:iﬁcznt Accounting Polictes
This mote provides a list of the'significant acceunting policies adopted I the preparation of these financial statements. These policies have been consistently
applied {o ail the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
A Basis of preparation
(1) Compliantce with Ind AS

The Group's financial statements comply in all material respects with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (the Act) read with Campanies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rufes, 2015 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act,

The financigl statenienis bave beea prepared in accondance with Division [ of Sckedule II1 of Companies Act, 2013 vide Notification No. GSR. 1022(E)
dated Qctober 11, 2018, issusd by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India for Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC).

These financial statemeats have been approved for issuz by the Boand of Directors at their meeting held on 27ih April 2023

(&) Busis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared ou a historical cost basis, except for certain financial staternents which are measured at fair value as explzined in
the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fiir velue of the consideration. given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an-asset or paid to transfer a lizbility in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

(e} Use af estiinates and fudgements

The preparation of the financial in. conformity with Ind AS requires the manag I 1o [rake e56 and assumptions considered in the
reported amonnis of asscts, fabilities (including, contingent liabilities), incore and expenses. The management believes that the sstimates ased in preparation
of the financial staternents are prudeat and reasonable. Actual resulis conld dilfer due fo thesc estimates and the diffixrences beiween the actual resulis and the
eatimates are recogised in the perieds In which the resulls are known / ¢ ialize. Estimates includg the uscful lives of property plant and eguipment and
intangible assels, allowance for doubtful debis/advances, future obligativns W respect of retitemgnt benefit plags, provisions for major maintenance
abligations, fair value measurement etc.

(d) Meusuremerit of fair values

A number of the accounting pelicics and distlosures require the measurement of fair values for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair
valus measneements are categotized iato Level I, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs o the fair value measurements are ghservable and the
significance of the inpats to the fir vakie measurement in its entirety, which arg described as follows;

= Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identicnl assets or liabilities thot entity can access at measurement date

« Level 2 inpirts ather than quoled prices iocladed in Level I, that are observable for the assat or liability, either directly {as prices) or indirectly {derived &om
prices); and

+ Level 3 inputs for the asset or Hability that are not based on ohservable market data {unobservable inputs).

B Presentafion of financial statements-
The Balnce Sheet, Statement of Profii and Less and the Statement of Changes in Equity are prepared and prescnied in the format prescribed in Schedule HI to
the Companiés Act. 2013 (“the Act™}. The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared and presented as per the requiremetits of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cagh
Flows”. The disclosure requirceents with respect to iems in the Bal Sheztand S of Profit and Loss, as préscribed in Schadule I to the Act, are
preseeled by way of notes forming pant of aceounts zlong with the ather notes required ta be disclosed under the notified Accounting Standards and the SEBE
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
Cuzrency of the primary economic environment in whick the Group operates is Indian Rupee (INR) in which the Group primatily generates and expenses
cash. Accordingly, the Management has assessed its' functional currency o be ladian Rupee (INR). Amouats in the Biancial starements are presented in
Indian Rupees Ciores since the management is of the viw that presenting the same will result in better qualilative presentetion of the financial statements.
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

C  Basis of consolidation

(i) The coasclidared financial statcments incorporate fhe fnancial statements of the Parent Company and ils subsidiaries. For this plirpose, an entify which is,
directly or izdirectly, controlled by the Parent Company is freatéd as subsidiary  The Parent Company together with its subsidiaries constitete the Group.
Control exists when the Parent Company, directly or indirectly, has power over the investee. is exposed to varable returns from its involvement with the
imestee and has the ahility 1o use its powver to affect its returms.

{ii} Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Parent Company, directly or indirectly, obfains.contro! over the subsidiary and ceases when the Parent
Company, directly or idirecly, loses control of the sabsidiary. Intome and cxpenscs.of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are incleded in
the consolidated Statement 6f Profit and Loss fiom the date the Parent Company, directly or indirectly, gains centrol until the date when the Parent Company,
direetly or indireetly, ceases to coatrol the sebsidiary:
(it} The consolidated fnancizl statements of the Groap' combines fi ial statcments of the Parcnt Company and its subsidiarics Linc-tniine l;y-adtﬁn_g
together the like flems of assels, liabifities, income and exp All intra-group aszets, liabilities, income, expenses and unrealized profilsfosses on intra-
group fransactions are climinated oa consolidation. The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been harmonized 1o ensure the consistency with the policies
adopted by the Parent Company. The corisolidated finan¢ial statements have been presented to the extent possible, in the same manner as Parent Company’s
standalone financial statements.

Profit or loss and each compooent of cther comprehensive income are attributed 10 the owners of the Parent Company and to the nen-controlling interests and
have been shown separately in the financial statements.

{iv) Noo-controlling, interest represents that part of the tatal comprehensive income and net assets of snbsidiaries aiwibutable to interests which are not owned,
directly or indirectly, by the Parent Company,

{v) The saingflosses in fespect of part divestment/difution of stake in subsidiary companics not resalting in cading of controd, are recognised directly in other
equity attributable to the owners of the Parent Company.

(vi} The gainsflosses in respect of divesment of stake resuliing in ceding of cantrol in subsidiacy companies are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Lose.
The investment representing the interast retained fa a focmer, subsidiary, if any, is mivally recognised at its fair valpe with the corresponding effect recognised
in the Statement of Probt and Loss as an the date the cantrol is cetded. Such retained i b Fy 2 .35 an associate or a joint veniure or a
fnancial asset.

{vii) Asithe intangible assets recognised uader service cottcession &rangements are acquired in exchange for infrastmcture construction/
upgrading services, gainsi{losses) on infra-group transaciions are treated as reabized and not elminated on consclidation.

(viif) Iov n fate cc y bas been accounted for, using equity method as per Ind AS 28 - Investments in Associates in Cc

1

@

1 &

E Yidated Financial
Staterncuts. Accardingly, the share of profit/ loss of the assaciale (the loss being restricted 1o the cost of investment) has been 2dded to / deducted from'the
cost of investment of the associate. The differeuce between the cost of investment in the associate and the shasg of net assels at the time of d@eguisifion of
shares in the associale is identified in the consofidated financial staterments as Goodwill or Capital reserve as (ke case may be.

{ix) Goodvwill en consolidation represents the excess of cost of acquisition at each point of time of making the fnvestment i the subsidiary over the Gioup’s
share i the net worth of 2 subsidiary. For this purpass, the Group’s shars of net worth is determined on the basis of the fatest fisaniial stalements, prior to the
acquisition, after making necessary adjustments fur material events between the date of such financial statemends and the date of respective zcquisition. Capital,
teserve oa consolidation represents excess of the Groap's share in the net worth of 2 subsidiary over the cost of acquisition at each point of fime of making the
investment in the subsidiary.

(Goodwill on consolidakion arising on zcqmisitions on or after the date of transition represents the excess offa) consideration paid for acquiring contrel and {b)
ecquisition date fair v=iue of previonsly hveld ownership interest, if' any, in a subsidiary aver the Greup's share in the fair value of the net aseets (incloding
idenfifizble intanpibles) of the subsidiary as an the date of acqaisition of control.

Goodwill oo consolidation is allocated to cash generating units or group of cash generating unils that are expectzd to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition.

Goodwill axising on consolidaticn is not amortised, however, it is tested for impatrment annually. fo 1ke event of cessation of operations of a subsidiary, the
unimpaired goodwill is written off fully,




L&T Infrastructure Development Projects Limited
MNotes forming part of the Cansolidated Ind AS Financiad Statements for the year ended MMareh 31, 2023

D  Revenue recopnition

E

Revenue is measured al the Bair value of the consideration received or reccivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are inclusive of duties and taxis and net of
discounts, Febates and other similar allowances.

The Group recognizes revenue swhen the amownt of reveaue ¢an be reliably measured, it is probable that the future econemic benefits would Bow to the eality
and specific criteria have been met for each of the activitizs described below. The Group bases its éstimates on historical results, taking Eato consideration the
type of customer, type of transaction and specifics of the amangement.

a)  Toll collections from the users of the infrasictuze facilisy constructed by. ke Croup under the Service Conression Arrangement ar¢ accountad for
based on actual collection. net of revenus sharc payablc under the Concession agreement wherever applicable. Revenue fiom sale of smart cards is
aceoanted on cash basis.

b) Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the econamie benefits will flow to the Group and the amaiunt of incamé can
be measimed reliably. Interest is accrued an fime proportion basts, by reference to the principle ouls!andmg at the effective inferasi rate.

<) License fecs for way-side amenifies are accounted on accrual basis,

d) Contraci revenue for fixed pricé ¢ontracts is rccopnised oaly to the extent of cost incurred that it is probable will be recoverable 6ill such time the
ouicome of the job caanot be ascertained relizbly. When the outceme of the contract is ascenained reliably, contract revenue is recognised at cost.of
wotk performed on the contract plus proportionaté margin, osing the percentage of completion metltod. The Group recognized revenue fo the éxtent of
performance abligations completed.

For the putposes of recognising revenus, contract revenus camprises the initial amount of reverue agreed in the contract, the varfations ia cootract
work, elaims and ingentive pagmients to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue and they are capable of being reliably measurcd.

For this p actual cost inchies cost of bind and developrmental sights tut-cxcludes borrowing cost. Expected boss, if any, on the. constmetion

setivity is recogaised as an expensz in the period in which it s foreseen, imrespective of the stage of completing of the contesct.

When it is probablc that total contract costs will exceed total contraet reveaue, the cxpected loss is gnised as an exp in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period in which such probabiliry occurs.

@) Fair valie gains on carrent investments carried at faic value are included in other income.
f) Dividend inconte is recognised when the right 1o receive the same is cstablished by the reporting date.
g) Other ifems of income are recognised as and when the right to receive arises,
laventaries
Inventorics.are stated at lower of cost and net realizsble value, Net realizable value represents the estimated seifing price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necossary to make ke sale. Praject svork-in-progress is-carried atcost net of incidental incoms.
Cash 2nd bank balances

Cash aud baak balances include cash and cash cquivakenis and other bank bakinces. Cash and cash equivalents include eash on hand, balances with banks and
highty liquid financial instrumsnts, which are ceadily convertible inte known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of changa in valuc and
baving original maturity of threa moaths or less from the date of purchase, Other bank balaneces includss fixed deposits with origical mxaturity of more than
three months from the date of puréhiase,

Cash flow statement

Cash flow statement is prepared segregating the cask flows fiom operating, ing and financing activities, Cash flow fom operating activities is reparted
using indirect method. Under the indisect method, the nctpruﬁtf('[o:s) is adjusted lhr the affects of:

(a) transactions of & non-cash nature;
(b} any deferrals or accruals of past or fishure operatiog cash receipts or payments and,
(c) all other itemns of income of expense associsted with investing or finanéing cash flows.

The cash flows from opemting, investing and Gnancing attivities of the Group are segregated based on the availabke information, Cash and cash equivalents
{including bank balances) are reflected as such'in the Cash. flow statement. Those cash and' cash equivalints which are not available for generat use as.on the
date of balance shest are also included ender this category with a specific disclosure,

Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

‘Dymestic Companies

Frechold land is caeried a5 histerical cost. Afl oiber {lkms of property. plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation end
cumulative impainment, Historical cost includes sxpendituze that is directly attributable to acquisition of the items.

Subséquent costs are iicluded in the asset's carrying amouat or recognised o5 a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that the fisrure economic
beacfits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be d reliably. Propertics in the course for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, kiss any recogniscd impairment loss. Cost inclades expenditire that is directly attributable and for qualifying asscts,
borrowing costs capitaliscd in accordance with the Group's acconnting palicy. Such properties are classified to the apprapriate catcgaries of propety, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended vse, Depreciation of these assets, on the same hasis as other properly assats. commences when the assels
are ready for their intendad nse.
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H

Depreciation is recogaised so as to wnile off the cost of assets (other than freckold land and assets-under construction) less their residual values over their
usefl lives using the straight-ine method. The estimated useful lives and residual values are revicwed at the cod of cach year, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on 2 prospective basis.

The estinrated nvefisl bves of the assets a5 per management evaluation dre as follows:

Category of Property, plant and equipment Estimmated usefol life
(in years}
Buildings meluding cwnership flals 50
Plant and equipment:
DG Sets 12
Air-condiioning and refiigeration equipment 12
Split ACand Window AC 4
Furnifore and Axtures 10
Vehicles:
Motor cars (other than those under the Company ownod car scheme) 7
Motor cyeles, scooters and other mopeds it
Tractors aadd other vehicles 3
Category of Property, plant and equipment Estirsated useful life
(in years)

Office equipmenti
Multifimetional devices; ot , switchss and projeciois 4
Other office equipment 5
Computsrs:
Servers and systems &

lapt clc., 3
Electrical instalk 10

An #tem of propetty, plant and eqaipment is derecognized upen disposal. Any gain or loss ariéingou the disposal of an item of propeny plant and
equipment is defermuined a¢ the difference between the sale proceeds and the canying zwown of the asset znd is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.
Depreciation charge for impaired assets is adjostéd in future periods in such 2 mannet that the revised carmyig amomt of the asset is allocated over its
remaining usefind life.

Amortication of intangible asseis

TFoll collection rights i respect of road projects are amortized over the period of coscessicn using the revenne based amortisation mathed prescribed under

Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, Under the revenue based method, amortisation is provided based on proportion of acial revenue eamed till the end

of the year to the total projected revenue fom the mlzngib!e asset expected (o be eamed over the concession period. Total prajected revenue is revizwed at the
end of cach financial year and is adjusted to veflect the changes in eartier estimata vis-a-vis the actual revenue camed H the end of the year so that the whole
of the cost of the intansible awsetis ised over the concession period,

For Wransition to Ied AS, the Group has availed the optioa to continue with the reveme based amortisation method prescribed under Schedule 1 to the
Compaaies Act, 2013 for toll collection fighls recopnised under service ¢ on arrzoge grised for the period <eding immediately before the
beginning of the first Ind AS reperting period as per the previous Indian GAAP,
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J

Intangpible assets

a) Rights under Service Concession Arrangements

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that feture sconamic benefits that are attributable'ta the asser will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the
asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets arz stated st origing) ¢os! net of tax/duty credits availed, iFany, less accumuiated anortisation and comutative
impaintnent.

ToH Projects (Right to charge users)

Toll collection rights obtained in consideration for rendering constiuction services, represent the sight fo collect tof) revenue during the concession period in
respect of Public-Private-Partnatship ("PPP"} project undertaken by the Groop. Toll collecfion rights are capitalized as intangible assats upon completion of the
projeet at thi cumulative construction costs plus ihe present value of obligation towards negative grants and additional conesssion fee payable to Natianal
Highways Authority of India {"NHAL")State autharities, if any. Till the completion of the project, the same is recognised under intangible assets under
development The revenus fom toll collection/cther income during the constraction period is reduced fom the canrying amount of intangible assets under
development.

The cost incurred for work beyond the original scape per ion t (zormally ref: as "change of scops”) is capitalized as imtangible assct

-under development as and when incumred. Reimbursement in respict of such amounts from NHAUSIate autherities dre reduced from the carmying zmount

intangible assets to the extent of 2ctual receipts.

Extension of concession period:by the authority in compensation of claims made are capitalised as part of toll eoltection rights at the time of admission of (ke
clafm or when there is'a contractual right to extension at the estimated amount ol claims admitted or computzd bascd on average collections whichever is more
evideni.

Any viability gap funding (VGFE} in the form of equity support itt connection with project construction is d 43 a receivable and is adjusted o the extent
of actual receipts.

Pre-operative cxpenses including administrative and other general overhead expenses that ase dircetly attributable to the development or acquisiticn of
intangible assels are Alocated and capitalized &s part of cost of the intangible assets.

Intangibic assets that mot ready for the intcaded use oo the date of the Balance Sheet arc disclosed as "Intangible asscts under development™,

b} Other intangible assets
Intazgible assets ate staled at original cost net of ta/dity credits dvailed, if eny, less accumplated amortization and cumolative impairment. Intangible assets
are recognized when it is prabable that the future ic benefits thatarc attributable to the assét will flow to the enferprise and the cost of the #sset can be
tnzasured reliably.
Intangible assets aro derecognized when no fislurs economic benefits are expected ffom use or disposal
Exeeptional items
On certain occasions, the size, type or incideace of an ftem of income or expense is such that its disclosure improves an understanding of the perfarmance of

L

the Group. Such income or expense is classified as an 2xceptional itam and accordingly disclosed in the financial stateiments,

ey

Forciga currency fr ions and tra
2). 'The Rancticnal currency of ihe Geoup in [ndian Rupee

b) Financial statemzots of overseas noa-integral operations are wansfated as under :
i) Assels and liabilifies at rate prevailing at the end of the year. Depreciation and amortisation is accounted 2( the same rate 21 which assets are
converted
H)  Revenucs and cxpenses at yearly average mies prevailing during the year
¢). Transactions in forcign cucrencies catered into by the Gronp are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. or af rates that
closely approximate the rate at ihe date of the transzction,
d) Exchange differences that arisc on setlement of monetary items or on reporting of monetary- items at each balance sheet date at the closing, rate are
tecognised as income or expense in the period in which they arise except
i) exchange differences on foreign currency borrawings relating 1o assctz under construction for future productive wse, which are incleded in the
cast of those assets when they are regarded as an adjastment fo interest costs in & foreign cusrency not transhted.

(if) exchange differences on transactions entered into in ofder to hedge cenain foreign currency risks; and

(iti) exchange differences on monstary items receivable fom or payable to a foreign operation for whick settlement is neither planned not likely to
ceeut (therefore formieg part of the net investment in foreign operation), which are recognised initiafly in othier comprehensive income ard
reclassified from equity t profit or [oss on repayment of the monstary ftems,
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¢} Exchange differcnecs arising on settfement / restzterneat of short-term forsign cunency ¥ assets-and Ligbilities of the Group are recognised as
income or expense in the' Statemenl of Profit and Loss.

f) Financial statements of foreign operations are tramedated into Indian Rupees as follaws:
(%) asszts and lishilities for each balance sheet proscnted arc translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;
(i) incame and expenses for cach income staternent are transkied at average exchange rates; and
Aiv) all resulling exchange differences are rec d in olher camprehensive income and sccumulated in equity as forgign cumrency translation reserve
{FCTR) and the same is subsaquenily reclassified 1o profi or 1os3 on disposal of a fareign eperation.

£) Exchange différence on long-temn- loreign curtency monetary Hems: The exchange diffirences arising oo sciifement £ restaremnent of loog-term foreign
carrency mmonstary items are capitalized as part of the deprociable fxed assets to which the monetary fiem relales and depreciated over the tomuning
wseful Bfe of such asseis.

h)  Premium / discount on forward exchange coabracts, which are not intended for rading or speculstion perposes, are amiorfized over the period of the
contracts if such contracts relate to ronstary itenss as at the Balance Sheet date. Any profit or loss arising on cancellatfoa or renewal of such a farward
exchange contract is recognised as income of as expense in the period in which such cancellation or renewal i3 made,

M  Governmeat granis

Goverament grants are recoznised whan there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the condisions atzcked to them and (he graots will be
réceived. Governmend grants whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or olherwise acquite capital assets are preseaied by
deducting them from the camying value of the assets. Govemment granls in thé patré of promoters’ contribation like investment swbsidy, where ne
repayment is ordinarily expected in respect thereof, are treated as capital reserve,

Employee benefits
Empluyes benefits inchade provident fand, super ica fund, employee stale § ee scheme, gratuity fund, compensated absences, fong servive awards
znd post-employment medical benefits.
¢} Short term employee beaefits
All employee benefits filling due wholly within twebve months of rendering the service ae classified as shoet term employee benefits. The benefits like
salyries; wages, short fenn compensated absconees cle. and the expected cost of banus, ex-gratia are recoznised in the period in which the employee
renders the retaded seniice. :
“The undiscountzd amount of short-term cmplayce benefils expected. to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by cmployees are recognised
during the year when the employees render the service, These benefits include perfonmance incentive and compensated absences which are expected to
occar within twelve moaths after the end ofthe period in which the employes randers the refated service.
Tha cost of shart-term compensated absences is 2ccounted as mnder
(a) in case of accumulited compensated absenoes, when employess render the services that increase therr aatitlement of falwre compensated absences;
amd .
{b) i case of non-accanmulaling compensatad absences, when the zbsences aocur.

(i) Post empluyment benefits

(a) Dafined contribotion plans:
The Group's State govemed provident fund linked with emploves pension scheme ase defined contribution pians. The contribartion paid payable under
the scheme is recognised during the period in which the erployee renders the related service.

(b} Defined benefit plans:
The employees' ratuity fund schents and the provident fund scheme managed by the trust of the halding company ase the Group's-defined benefit
plans. The present value of the obligativs under such defined benefit plans is defermined based on actuarial valuation wsing the Projectad wmit eredit
method, which tecognires each peviod of service as giving rise to addittonz] wnit of employee benefit entitlement and measmres cach noit separately to
bnild ap the final abligation.
The obligation &s measured = the present value of the estimated fature cash flows, The discount rate used for determining the presend valse of the
oblization under defined benehit plans, is based ou the market yield on govemment securitics of & maturity peried cquivalent (o the weighted average
muaturity profils of sthe related obligations af the batancs sheet date.
R ement, comprisizg ial pains and lostes, the retarn an plan assets {excluding net interest) and any change in the cffect of asset ceifng (1F
agplicably) are reeoamised in other comprehensive income and is refiected immediately in retained eamnings and is not reclassified to profitor loss.

The interest element in the actuarial valuation of defined benefit plans, which comprises the implicit interest cost and the impact of changes in discount
ate, is classified as employee benelit expenses in the statément of profit and loss.

In case of funded pians, the fair valua of the plan assets is reduced from the gross obligation uader (ke defined benefit plans ko rezognize the obligation
on & net basis.

Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of any defined benefit plaa are recognised whien the curtaifment or settdement occurs, Past senvice cost
is recognised as expense at the eadier of the plan amcud or curizbrent and when the Compaty mecognizes related restruchuing costs or
termination benefits.

(Ei) Ottier loag term employee benefils:
The present vakoz of 1bz obligation under louz term employes benefit plans such as compensaled absences and fizbility under retention pay scheme is

detamimied based on actuarial valuation using the Projected unit credit methed.

The obligation s measured at the preseut value of the cstirnated ffure cash flows. The discoust ratc ased for delerminieg the present value of the
obligation undvr defined beusfit plans, is based on the market yicld on goverament securities of @ matunty period _rquiwfent o the weshted average
nexaturify profils of ik related obligations at the Balance Shest date.

Remeasurements, comprising actuarial gains znd fosses, the return on plan sssets {excluding net interest ) and any change in the effect of asset cejling
(whezever applicable) 2r¢ recogmized imnediately in profit or lass.
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Gains or losses on the curfailment or settlement of any long-tenm employee benefit plan are recognized when the curtailsitent or settlement occiirs. Past
service, cost is recognized as expense at the carticr of the plan amérdment er curtailment and whei the Group recegnizes relited restructuring costs or
termination benefits,

{iv) Termination benchits
Termination bencfits such as comperisation under voluitary retiremest cum pension scheme (if any) are recognised as expense and a liability is
recognized at the earlier of wien the Group cas no longer withdraw the offer of the tenmination benefit and when the entity recognizes any related
FESTIITIENA Y COSTS.

Q  Borrowing costs

Bormrowing costs include interest caleulated nsing the effective i tethod, isation of anciflary costs incwred and éxchange differences arising from

foreign currency borrowings lo'the extent they are reparded as an adjustment to the interest cost. Bommowing costs, allocated to and utilized for acquisitien,

construction or production of qualifying assets, perlaining to the poied fom commencement of activities refating to construction / development of the

qualifying asset up: to the dato of capitalization of such assct are added to the cast of the assets. A-qualifying asset i5 an asset that. necessarily require a

substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use for sale, All other borrowing, cosis are recognized in profit or loss in the year in which they are

incarred.

P Segment reporting

Operating segments are those components of the busisess whaose operating results ate regularly feviewed by the chief operating decision making bedy in the

Company to make decisions for perforimance assessment and resource allocation

The repocting of segment information is ihe same as provided o the management for the purpose of the periormance assessment and resouece allocation fo the

segments

Segment accounting policies are in line with the accounting policies ofthe Group. Segment revedue, segment expenses, segment assel; and segment liabilifies

have beea identified to sczments on the basis oF their relationship to the operating. wetivities of the segmenl. The identification of aperating segments and

reporting of amennts is consistent with performance assessment and resource allocation by the managernent.

Inter-seament revenue is sccounted on the basls of ransactions which are primarily determined based on market / fair vahe factors.

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities ivhich relata to the Oroup ns a whale and are not allacable to segmenis on reasonable basis have been included noder

‘inallocated revenue /. expenses £ assats / liabifities,

Q Leases
The Company assesses whether 2 condract containg a Jease, af tncepition of a cotract. A tosiract is, or contains, & lease if the coniract conveys the right to
conirol the usa of an idestifisd asset for a period of tine in excliasge For considartion. To assuss whether a contract conveys the right ta control the use of an
identified asset, the. Company asscsses whether:(i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset(ii} the Company has snbstantially nll of the cconomic
benefits fiom use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the usc of the assct.

At the dae of commiencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a nght-ofuse assel{*“ROU} and a cortesponding Vease kiability for all lease arrangements
in which it is u lessee, except for leases with a ferm of twelve months or less {shoreterm leasesy and low value leases. For these short term and low vahie
leases, the Company recognizes the Jease payments as an operating expense on a smaight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease anangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease hefore the end of the lease texm. ROU dssets and lease liabilities includes these
options when it [s reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of use assets are initially recognized at cosy, which comprises the initial of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments maads at or priot
to the commencement date of the bease plus any inftial direct costs less any Iease incentives. They are subsequendy measured at-cost kss accumutated’
depreciation and impa losses.

Right-oftuse assats are depreciated fom the commencement datc on a-straight line basis over the shorter of the leass term and usefuf life of the underlying
asset. Right of use assets are-evaluated for recoverability wh evenis or changes in circurnstaness icdicate that their camrying amounts may oot be
recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount {i.z.the Wgher of the fair value less cost 1o sell and the value-in-use} is détermined.
on an individeal asset basis unless the asset does not generate cashflows that arc largely independeut of those from other assets. Tn such cases, the recoverabla
amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present valzg of the futare Iease payments. The Yease payments are discounied nsing the interest
tatc implicit in the lease or, il not readily determrinable, using the increiental borowing rates in the country of doruicile of these leases. Lease Habilities are

rerneasured with a corresponding adjustment {o the related right of wse asser if the Comy h 3 if whether it will exsreis? an extension or
a tesmination option. Tease ligkility and ROU asset bave been separatcly presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payinents have beeno classified. as financing
cash flaws.

R Earnings per shave’

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted eamings per shase is computed by dividing the profit/ (Ioss) for the year as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or iicome
(et of zny atributable kaxes) refatiog o the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weightad average number of equity shares considered for deriving basie
earnings per share and ihe weighted average number of equity shares whith- conld bave been issued on the conversion of all dikative potential cquity shares.
Potential cquity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to ‘equity shares would decrease the uct profit per share from continuing ordirary
aperations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deeméd ta be converted as at the beginning of the period, ualess they havo been issucd at a later date. The
dilutive potential equity shares are adjested for the proceeds receivable had the sheres been actually issucd at fir valuc {i.c. average market value of the
outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shates are determined independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially
dilutivé equity shares zre adjusted for shave splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, as-appropriste.
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Iocome faxes
The income fax expense or credit for the year is the ax payable on cwrend years taxahle income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by chaages

in deferred ta¢-assets and Liabilities atribuiable to temporany difftrences and (o vaused tax losses. The current tacome tax charge s calculated on the basis of
tax [aws enacted or snbstantively enzcted at the end ofthe reperting peried. Manazement periodically evaluates, positions takean in fax rehums with respect to
situahions-in which appbcable tax regulation is subject ta inteipretation and provisions are gstablished where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected o
be paid ta the tax autherities.

Misigmom Aleroate Tax {MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives fifure economiic heaefits in the form of adjnstment to fitture income tax
Trablify, is considered as an asset if there is consincing eviderice that the entity will pay normal icome tax. Accardingly, MAT is recognised as an asset when
it is Bighly probable that fulure economic bensfit associated with it will flow 1o the eatity.

Deferred income tax'is provided in full, oo temporary differcnces arising between the tax bases of assets and lisbililies and thefr carrying amounts in the
financial siatements. However defarred income fax is nol accounted if it arises from the initial secognition of @a asset or lisbility that at the fime of the
transaction affects neither the zccounting profit nor taxable profit {tax hoss). Deferred income 1ax is derermined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expested to apply when the related deferred income tax assepTizbility is reatised of setiled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible femporary difftrences and unused tax losses oaly if it is probable that fahure taxabla amonnats Wwilk be
availablz to wiilize thoss temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and defemed tax Habilities are offset, when the entity has a lepatly enforeeable fight 1o of%et cumrent tax assets and Habifities and whea the
deferred tax balances related to the same anthority.

Carrent and deferred tax 15 récognised in profi or loss, except to the extent that it selates to items rzcopnised in other comprebensive incomz or. directly in
equily wherein the related tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or direclly in equity.

Inipairment of assets

The canying values of asscts f cash gencrating units at each balance sheet date are reviewed for impairment if any indication of impaimient exists. The
following infangible assets are tested for tmpainment each Bnancial year sven ifilere is no indicaticn that the asset is impaited:

{a) an intangible asset that ix not yet available for uze; and (b) an intangible ascet that is amortized with indefinite useful life.

If the carrying amount of the assets exceed the estimated recoverable anoumt, an impairmtent is n:mgms:d for such exeess amount The mmpatrment foss is
recognised as an exp in he § of Profit and Loss, unless the asset is carried at revatued amount, in which casc any impaimment loss of the revalued

asset is eated as a revaluation deerease fo the exient arevaluation reserve is available for that asset

The receverable amomt is the higher of the fair value Iass costs of disposal and ifs valoe in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated fithmwe cath Bows are
discoanted to their present valae using a preax discount rate that refects the current masket sssessments of the time value of morey and the risks specific to
the asset for which the estimated future cash flows bave not bren adjusted.

‘Whea there is indication that an impairment lass recognised for an asset: (other than a revalued asset) in carlier accounting periods no longer exists-or may
have decreased, such reversal of impainment loss is recogniszd in the Statement of Profit and Loss, to the extent the amount was pteviously charged to the
Statement of Profit and Less. In case of revaleed assels such reversal is not recognised

Provisions, cantingent liahilities and contingent assets
A provision is recegnised when the Group has a present ebligation (legal or coastructive) as a resnlt of past zvents and-it is probable that an outifow ef
rescorces will be required to serls the shlization in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made,
Tke amouat recognised as a provision is the best extimate of the consideration requiréd to settle the present oblization at the end of the reparting period, taking
into acoount the risks aad uncértsinties sumounding the oblgation. When 4 provision is measured nsing the cash flows estimated to seitle the proseat
ohligation, its camying amount is the present valuz of those cash Hows (when the effect of the timie value of money is material)
Whea sowe or alf of the economic beuefits required to setike a provision are expactad to be racoverad from a third party, a receivable is recogmised as an asset
ifil is virtually cortain that the reimbursement will be received and the amomt of the reczivablz can be measured refiably.
Coatingent Habilities are disclosed in nofes in case of a present oblization arising from gast events, whea it is not probable that an cutflow of resonrces will be
required 1o settle the obligation or a present obligation arising Mo past events, when no refiable estintale is possible . Contingent assels are diselosed in the
iinancial satements where an inflow of cconomic benefits ars prabahle.
Finanrizl Insbruments
Finznciaf assels and finsncial liabilitics ere recogmised when the Group becemes a party to the x 1 provisions of the st 15, Fa
finsncizl lizbilities are initially measured at fair valec. Transaction costs that are directly atfributablz to the acquisition or issuc of financial assets and financial
liabitities {other than Emaneil assets and financish fabilities at fair valos theough profit or lass).are added to or deducted froor the fair value of the finencial
assets er fmancial fizbilities, as appropsiate, oa inftal recogniticn. Transaction costs direclly atiributable to the acquisition of fimancizl assels or Anancial
liabilities at fair value through profit of joss are recoguised immediately in profitor loss.
a} Financial Asseis
Al recognised Gasncial assels are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair vahe, depending en the classificaticn of the
financial assats.
L Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balizces also inclide fixed deposits, margin money deposits. carmarked balances with banks and oiher bank balances which have
restrictions an repatriation. Shorl tevmn highly liquid Imvestments belng not free Fom more than insignificant tisk ef chanze are pot included a5
part of cash and cash equivalents. Beak overdrafis which are parl of the cash management procass is incloded as part of cash aad cash
equivalents.
i Financial assets at amortired cost
Financial assets are subscquently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method if these financial assets are hald within a
busingss whose objectiva is to hold these assets in arder to collévt contractual cath Hows and the coatractual terms of the financial assct give risc
on specified dates to cash Aows that e solely payments of piincipal and interest on the principal amoant outstanding.

] assets and
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Fmaneial assets at (air value through other comprehensive income (FYOCI)

Financial assets are measured at fair valoe through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose
cbjective is achieved by bath collecting contractual cash Apws and seing financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specificd. dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest an the principal 2mount cutstanding, The Group, ox an
‘instrument=wise basis, epts toconsider certain investment in equity instrumenis as measured at fir valne througly other comprekensive income,
These inv are disclosed separately in the Gnameial stag t

Financial assets at Inir value throngh profit or loss (FYTFL)

Tinancial assets are measmed at fr value through profit or loss unless it is measwred of andorfised cost.or ot fair value through other
_comprehensive izcours on initial recognition. E.g.. Investments in mutua) funds,

Lmpairment of finsocial assety

The Growp applics the expecied credit loss model far recognising impairiment foss. on fnancial assets measured at -amortised cost, debt
imstruments at FYTOCI, Jease receivables, rads receivahles and oter tontractual rights ta receive cash or pther fingncial asset and financial
guarantees aot designated as at FY'TPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of defiult occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the
difference between all contractual cash Bows that are dut to the Group in zcdord with tlie contractagr t and all the cash flows that the
Group expects 10 reegive (i..all cash shontfalls), discounted at the original effective inlerest rate. The Gronp éstimales cash flows by considering
all contractual terms of the fnancial instrument, through the expected life of the financial instrument.

The Gronp measures the loss allowance for a financial instrunient at an amount equal to the fé-time expected credit losses if the eredit risk on
that financial instroment has increase significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly, ihe Group measures
the foss allowance at an amount equal to 12.month expected credit Josses. E2-month expected credit losses are portion of the life-fime expected
credit losses and represent the life-time cash shortfally that will result if the default occurs within 12 months. afier the reporling date and thus, arc
not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months.
When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group uses the change in
the risk ‘of a defanlt occurring aver the expected life of the financial instrument instead af 2 change in the ansount of the expected credit loss. To
achieve that, the Group compares the risk of a defanlt oceurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on iaitial recognition and coosiders reasonsble and supportable information, that is available withont undue cost or effort, that is
indicative of significant incxeases in credit risk since initial recognition.
Derecognition of financial asset
A financial assel is primarily derecogaized when:
. the tights to receive cash flows from the asset have éxpired, or
- the Greap has transfemred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an oblization to pay the received cash flows in
full without material delay to a third party undzr a passethrough arrangement; and with a)the Group bas fansferred substzntially all the
tisks and rowards of the asset, or b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but-has transferred control of the asset.

Financial Liabifties
AH Binancia) Ballities are measured at smortised cost using the effective intecest method or al fair value through profit or loss.

i

Financial liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilitis are classified a5 2t FVTPL when the fnancial Gability is held for trading or It is designated as at FVTPL. A financial liability-
i3 classified as keld for trading ifi
- T has been incitrred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or
. On initinl recosnition it Is part of a portfalin of identificd financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actoal
pattem. of sort-term profit-tiking: or
. Itis a derivative that is zot designated and effective as a hedging instrement.
A financial Eability other than a financial lisbility held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon inirial recognition, ift

. Such designation eliminates or significantly teduces ar t or recognifien inconsistency that wonid othervise adse;
. The financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial Habilitics or both, which is ged and its peft is
cvaluztion cn a fair valug basis, in accordance with the Group's d od risk it or Hv strategy, dad information

about the grouping provided internally on that basis; or
. It forms part of a contact containing ore or more embedded derivatives, and Ind-AS 109 permits the entite combined contract to be

designaled as at FVTPL in sceordunce with Ind AS 109

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stared at Ezis valna, with any gains or losses arising on Remeasuremant fecognized in profit or foss.

Financial liabililies at amortized cost

Financial Habilities that are not-held-for-rading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortized cost at the end of subsequent

aceounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial Tabilitics thar are subsequendy measwred at amortized cost-are determined based on the

effeetive interest method.

Fimancial Habilities at amortized cost

Financial liability is derecognizzd whan the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
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Insurance claims
Insurance claims are accounted for og the basis of ckims admitted / expectad to be admitied and to the extent that the amount recoverable can be measired

relizbly ped it is reasonable to-expect ulifmate collactinn,

Goods and Service tax input eredit

Goods and Service tax wpat credit §s accounted for in the books in the period in which the vrdarlying service received is accounted apd when there is
reasonsble certainty 1n availing / utilizing the credits.

Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of producls / activities afthe Grozp and the normal time between acquisiticn of assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the
Grogp bas dalermizied its operating cycde a5 12 months for the purpose of ¢lassification of ils asscts and LiabiliGes as cwrrent aad non—current.

Claion
Claims against the Groap nof acknowledged as dzhts are disclosed under contingent Liabilidies. Claims made by the Group are recognised as and when the
same is approved by the respective amborities with whem the claim is lodged.

Commitments
Commitments are fature Habilities for contractual expenditure. Commitments are classifisd and diselosed a3 followes:
() Esimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital aécount and ot provided for
(i) Uncafled liability on shares and other investments parily paid
(i} Funding relsted comemitmend to sabsidiary. associatc and joint venture companies and
(i¥) Other non-cancellable commitments, if zay, to the extent they are considered material and refevant in the opinfon of management.

Other commitments related o sales/procurements made in the normal courss of business are not disclosed to avoid excessive details,

<< This space Is intentionally lzft blank >>>>>>>
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2 Fiaancial assets - Cash and cash equivalents

w

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Particulacs T crove T crore
Cash on hand 194 1.60
Balanre with baoks
in cument accounts 7625 446
in Trust retention and escrow accounts 77.06 5.53
Fixed deposits included interest thereon {maturity less than 3 mionths) 4.32 5378
159.27 67.37

Note :The Trust Retention and Escrow ("TRA") accounts carry a first charge to the extent of amounts payable as per the watcrfall
mechanismas defined in the Concession agreament/ Common lean agreemmeant.

Financial assets - Other bank balances

Particalirs

Asat 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

T crore R crore
Fixed depeosits incleding interest scerued thereon, <
. . = 1.30 3
[maturity more than 3 months] 8313 38.10
Cash and bank balances uol available for immediate use 21565 236,29
Margin nioney deposits including interest acerued thereon - 9.02
1,066.95 1,164.41

Financial asseis - Trade receivables

Particulars

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2822

T crore T crore
Receivables considered good - Unsecured 37.04 1951
Less : Allawance for expected credit loss {1.78) {1.78}
3526 17.73

Finaxgcial assets - Other receivables

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Particnlars’
T crore erare

Finangial assets measured at amortized cost

Lease receivable 7110 1,614.22
Other receivablas (Refer Note 5(3) below) 15931 453.85
WHAFGSRDC Claitx receivable 49.03 71.27
Sub-Total {A} 285.44 2,139.34
Less : Allawance for itnpraimieni (B) 5526 5526
Total (C=A+B) 23018 . 2,081.08

Note 5{a} ;

During the current year, the Company exccuted the setlement agreement with NHAL on February 03, 2023 for Rs.136 r. The
setlement amannt of Rs.133.28 or after tax deduction of Rs. 2.72 ¢r has been deposited by NHAT in the Escrow account on March 29,
2023; Post receipt of one time setffement amount from NHAI thie balance receivable fiom NHAI in the-books of the Company
amtounting to Ks. 238.18 cr has been written off and accounted as exceptonal item (Refer note 39) in the books of accounts dunng té

year.

During the previous year, other receivable includes an amount-of ¥ 33255 crore being the net compensation receivable from National
Highways Authority of India (NHAI} on account of termination of the concession agreements of one of subsidiary L&T Chennai Tada
Tolhvay Limited respectively, The amounis due to lenders in respect of the subsidiary is disclosed in Note 16 - Borrowings.
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6 Financial assets - Investments

Particnlars

Asat 31 March 2023
T trore

As at 31 March 2032
T crore

a} Measured at fair value through profit or loss
Mutual Funds

b} Measured at cost {unquoted investments}
Equity insmamenis
Associates
Fully paid equity shares of associate comnpany
Addf(daduct) :
Accumulated share in prefit(foss) at the begineing of the year

Addi{deduct):
Sha_:e n profit!(foss) during the year
Dividend received

Others
SICAL Iror ore Tenminals Limited [Refar Nate 18(a)}
Indian Highway Management Company Limited
L& T Halel Shamlaji Tellway Eimited - Equity Shares
L&T Halol Shamlaji Tollway Limited - Preference Shares
Investment in debentures {AMTE)

<} Méasured at fair vatue through OCI

Infrastracture [nvesment Trust (InvlT)}

Sub Totfal (A)

Investments in frdia
Investments outside India
Sub Total (B)

Less ; Alfowance for impairment {C)
Total (B=A-C)

413.34

43.65

1.0
70

172
- 5242

1430
- 0.56

602.12

4365

{21.60)

2205

$113
- 103.18

1430
0.56
389.52
130.50

46321
1,70835

1,7083%

1,708.3%
(320.58)
1,157.81

7 Financialassets - Others

Particolars

As at 31 March 2023
T crore

Asat 3I March 2022
T crore

Security deposits
Advance (o Others
Cantractual retention money

265
0.49

314

Non finaocial asseis - Corrent tax zssets

-]

Particulars

Asal 31 dMarch 2023
Terore

Asat 31 March 2022
¥ crore

Advance Tax ( Net of provisinns)

37

31T

48.96

43.96

13 Qiher non-financial assets

Partieulars

Asat 31 March2023.
T crore

As at 31 March 2022
% crore

Advances given
Suppliers
Employess

Statutory Dues

‘GBT receivable
VAT tecoverable

Sales tax deposit

Prepaid expenses

Gihers

1136
0.03

681
399
0.0
1242

3rAs

7.70
0.l

347
437
062
1313
1152
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L&T Infrastructure Development Projects Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Staterents for the year ended March 31, 2023

14 Trade Payables

Asat 3[ Alarch 2023

As at 31 March 2022

*The inferest rate for the above debéntures vary from 3.60 % p.a 10 10.56% pa.

Particalars
T erore T crore
Due to telated parties -
Due to Helding company 1.1t 320
Due to fellow subsidiaries 0.08 033
Due to others 50.79 62.86
Doe to Micro and small enterprises 5.20 5.02
57.18 141
15 Debt Secarities
3 2022
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March.20
¥ crore F.crore
Measured at amortised cost
Secured - redeemable non-convertible fived rate debentures 22115 1,775.52
ZZL15 1,775.52
Debt secorities inside India 221.15 177552
Debt securitics ontside Tndia, - I S
22018 1,775.52
iNotes = Details of Redeemahls non-convertible debentures
Asat 31 Asaf 31
Particulars March 2023 | March 2022 Terms of repayment
% crote T crore
Secared Debentures
Redeenizble in 21 unequat
annual instalments from 25 Apdl]
Kudgi Transmission Limited NA 1,491.26 [ 2019 t0 25 April 2040. During
FY 2022.23, the same is
disclosed as held forsale
Redeemable at each in 18
) . .. emedqual installment from April
L&T Interstate Road Corridor Limited 46.15 100.18 2015 fo October 2023 af
specified amounts.
Ahmedabad Matiya Toeltway Limited 175.00 184.07 | Repayable on 25th August 2030
Tolal ‘221.13 1,77532 -
Total debt secarities 22L.15 1,775.52
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16 Berrowings (Other than debt securities)

Particulars Asdt 31 Marek 2023 VAs at 31 Mareh 2022
2 crore T crore X crore T crore
Measured af amortised cost
Secured [vans
Tewa foaus.
From banks 2481.83 3,352.62
Feomn financial instintions 595.13 335.44
Unsecwed toans
Deferred payment liabilities (Refer Note 37) 2,868 39 2,63817
Loans from others . 1.40 1.40
Total {A) 594675 6,327.63
Borvowings in India 394675 6,327.63
Borrowings outside India - -
5914575 6,327.63

Notes 1
17(1 Details of term toans from hanks and financiza! institutions:

Asat3 Asat3i
Particulars Maych 2023 | March 2022 Teris of repayment
T crore Lerore
. - ) P «n | Répayable in 168 unequal monthly instalments
L&T Deccan Tollways Limited 953.10 99850 fioan April 2019 to 31 March 2051
! - - Repayable in 120 unequal monthly
L&T Sambalpur Rourkela Taoll . . § . ;
T Sambalpur Raurkela Tollway Limited L 79734 Vinstalments from _April 2019 to 30 April 2039,
. - Repayable in 132 monthly unequal instalments
5 - > - .
Ahmedabad-Maliya Tollway Limited 732104 813.10 from April 2019 to March 2030 at specificd
Repayable in 19 unequal monthily instalments
L&T Rajkot Vadinar Tollway Limited S 341.04 438.64 firom April 2023 to December 2027 at specificd
amounts.
. . L Repayable in 78 unequal msonthly instalments
L&T Samakhiali Gandhidbam Tollway Limited 219.90 341,87 from April 2019 to July 2025
L&T Chennai Tada Tollway Limited* 76.03 29242 | Refer Note [7(ii)
Total 307695 3.688.06

S During the year, company has entered in fo a refinance facility agreement with "Asseem Infrastructure Finance Limited” on 28th March 2023,
‘Consequent to the same, the company has obtained term loan for 2273 cr.

if) Secwrity #, interest rate ete.:

a) Todian rupee term loan fram banks and fnancial institations and redeemable non-convertible debentures are secured by a pari passu charge
inter 3¢ lenders over :

i) afl immovable properties wherever applicable both preseat and future, including ail real estate Hahts;

(ii) all tangible movable assets, including movable plant and rachinery, equipment, machinesy spares, toels and accessories, current assets and
2ll ather movable assets(except project assets), both present and future;

(i} all rights, title, imtecest, beachts, claims and demands(excluding project assets), whatsoever of the borrawer in dny project docimeats,
contracts and liceases to and all assets of the project;

{iv) all rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands in respect of the accounts, that firay be opened and all puarantees/performancs bonds
given, in terms of the project documents; and, '

{v) all amounis owing to, received and receivable by the Group;

b) The interest rate for the above loans from banks and financial institutions vary from 8.30% p.a. to 13.30% p.a.

<) Tevm lvans are repayable over monthly/quarterly instalments over the remaining period.

#Other than projects assets which are not assigned as security te lenders
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18 Other finaocial liabilities

Particxlars Asat 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2022
T erore T crore

GSROC revenus share payable 155.95 231.59
Liability for capital goods 12.36 18.60
Arbittation award received [Refer Note 56] 22.36 9236
Retention nroney payable 26.88 2718,
Due to related parties - -
Advance received against sale of shares [Refer Note 18(a)) 14.10 1430
Security deposits received 060 0.53
Others ) 225 5129
Others { Arbitration) - 0.23

374.70 436.10
Note 18(z) :

Advance received against sele of shares represents advance of 2 1430 erore received from Sical Logisties Limited (SLL) against sale of
1,43,00,000 equity shares of T 10 each in Sical Iron Ore Terminals Limited (STOTL) at cost to SLL vide Agreament for Share Sale and Purchase
dated 17 December 2008, The sle is subject.fo the condition that it can be completed only after thiee years from the dale of vommencement of
commzrcial operation by SIQTL as per clause 18.2.2 (i) (d) of the License agreement datedt 23 September 2006 berween SIOTL and Ennore Port
Limited (EPL). SIOTL has oot been able to commence commercial operation as on 31 March 2022 dua to the ban of export of iron vre from the
State of Karnataka  SIOTL has sought necessary approvals from EPL and Government of India for handling alternate conmiodities The Company
has requested SIOTL to appreach EPL for approval of the transfer. As per NCLT order dated 1st March 2022, SIOTT. has been admitted under

IBC (insolvency and bankruptéy code) proceedings.

19 Provisions

2
Parficulars . As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022,
T crore ¥ crore
Provision for employee benefis 4.17 47286
Provision for major maintenance reserve {Refer note 45} 292.02 3382
Provision for expenses 31.66 73.37
327.85 41585
28 Other nor financial labilities
S
Particalars As at 31 Moarch 2023 At at 31 March 2022
T crore T crore
1549

Stattory liabilities
Others 3504
50.53




L&T Infrastructure Development Projects Limited _ _
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21 Equity share capital
() Authorised, issued, subscribed and paid up

(I){a) Authorised:
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 Asat 31 March 2022
Y No. of shares ¥ crore No. of shares T crore
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each £0,00,00.000 800.00 80,00,00,000 800.00
Special equity shares of % 10 each 10,000 0.01 10,000 0.01
S;x;:pu[sonly Convertible Preference Shares of ¥ 10 2,00,00,00,000 2000 i )
2,80,00,10,000 2,800.01 80,00,10,000 8060.01

{I)X(b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid up:

Particulars As at 31 Marchk 2023 Asat 31 March 2022
No. of shares T crore MNo. of shares T crore
Equity shares of ¥ 10 cach 62,95,11,764 62951  62,95,11,764 629.51
Special equity shares of € 10 each 10,000 0.01 10,000 0,01
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of ¥ 10 2,00,000 0.20 . )
each
62,97,21,764 629,72 62,95,21,764 629.52

(1) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
No. of shares T crore No. of shares % crore

Equity shares of 7 10 each fully paid up

At the beginning of the year 62.95.11,764 629.52 62,95,11,764 629.52
Issued duting the year as fully paid up - - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 62,95,11,764 629.52 62,95,11,764 629.52

Special equity shares of T 10 each fully paid up

At the bepinning of the year 10,000 0.01 10,000 0.01
Issued during the year-as fully paid up - - - -
Cutstanding at the end of the year 16,000 0.01 10,000 0.01

CCPS of ¥ 16 each fully paid up
At the beginning of the year
Issued during the year as fully paid up 2,00.000.00 0.20 - -
Quistanding at the end of the year 2,00,600.00 0.20 - -

(III) Terms / rights / restrictions attached to equify shares:
Equity Shares of T 10 cach

The Company has not reserved any shares for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares/disinvestment.

Each holder is entitled to-one vote per equity share. Dividends are paid in Indian Rupees. Dividend proposed by the Board of Directors, if
any, is.subject to the approval of the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, except in the case of interim dividend. The shares
issued carry equal rights to dividend declared by the Company and no restrictions are attached to any specific sharcholder..
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Special Equify shares of ¥ 10 each
1. The Special Equity Shares carry specific incremental rights ("Director Voting Rights™) with respect to the election, appointment and/or

temoval of directors of the Company. These Director Voting Rights are triggered only under specific conditions.

2. The Special Equity Shares camry no right to receive any dividend or other disttibutions of the Company, or othenise carry any
cconomic rights. However, upon the oceurrence of the voluntary er involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, the
holder of Special Equity Shares is entitled to receive a maximum of ¥ 10 per Special Equity Share.

3. The Special Equity Shares have no right to receive bonus shares or offers for rights shares.

Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of 2 10 cach
‘The company has issned during-current year 4 series of Compulsorily Convestible Preferrence Shares (CCPS) related to the outsatanding

contractual disputes for which consideration has not been considered tnder share purchase agreement. The details are as follows:

Series Bonus/Rights Underlying pay out _
Series 1 Bonus issue AMTL u*igger event (targel traffic)
Series 2 Bonus issue SGTL triger event (target traffic)
Series 3 Bonus issue SGTL trigger event (Reduction in concession period)
Series 4 Rights issue TIL trigger event (settlement of dispute with Authority)

{IV} Shares held by holding company/ ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries/associates:

Particul As at 31 March 2023 Asat 31 March 2022
a
curars No. of shares % No. of shares Ya
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each
Larsen & Toubro Limited, the Holding Company
(including shares held along with its nominees) 32,10,49,196 3160 32,10,49,196 51.00
Special equity shares of ¥ 10 each
Larsen & Toubro Limited, the Holding-Company 10,000 100.00 10,000.00 1¢6.00
CCPS of T10 each
Larsen & Toubro Limited, the Holding Company 1,13,500 57.00

(V) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

Particulars As at 31 March 2023_ As at 31 March 2022
No. of shares Ye No. of shares Yo

Equify shares of T 10 each
Larsen & Toubro Limited, the Holding Company 32,10,49,196 5100 32,10,49,196 51.00
{including shares held along with ils nominees)
CPPIB India Private Foldings Inc 30,84,62,568 49.00 30,84,62,568 49.00
Special equify shares of ¥ 10 each :
Larsen & Toubro Limited, the Holding Company 10,000 100.00 10,000.00 100.00.
CCPS of T10 each
Larsen & Toubro Limited, the Holding Company 1,I3.500 57.00 . -

CPPIB India Private Holdings Inc 86,500 43.00 - -
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year-ended March 31, 2023

(VI) Shareholding of Promoters:

As at March 31, 2023
o .

Shares held by Promoters at the end of Year % Cl:::it:;ur_mg
Promoter Namé Type No of Shares % of Total Shares
Larsen & Toubro Limited Equity Shares 32,10,49,096 51.00 -
Larsen & Toubro Limited Special Equity Shares 10,000 100.00 -
Larsen & Toubro Limited

CCPS 1,13,500 57.00 57.00

As at March 31, 2022
Shares held by Pramoters at the end of Year
Promoter Name Type No of Shares % of Total Shares
Larsen & Toubro Limited Equity Shares 32,10,45,096 51.00 -
Larsen & Toubro Limited Special Equity

Shares 10,000 1006.00 -

{VII} Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period
of five years immediately preceding the reporting date are disclosed as under:

{a)During the year ended March 31, 2023, four series of Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares were issued to the Promeoters,
Larsen & Toubro Limited and CPPIB India Private Holdings Inc. CCPS (Series | to Series 3) were issued as bonus shares and Series 4 as
rights issue.

«{(b) For the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company has bought back 217 tully paid up Compulsorily Converiible Preference Shares
Series 1 (CCPS) of ¥ 1,06,00,000 each of nominal value at a premium of 35,42,345 per CCPS for an aggregate value of T 337.27 erores.
Capital rederaption reserve to the extent of the nominal value of preference shares was created during the year.

{c) For the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company has bought back 920 fully paid up Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares
Series 1 {CCPS) of ¥ 1,00,00,000 each of nominal value at a premium of 21,73,913 per CCPS for an aggregate value of ¥ 1,120 crores.
Capital redemption reserve to t_he extent of the nominal value of preference shares was ereated during the year.

(d) For the year ended March 31, 2020, the balance CCPS of Z 863.00 crores was converted to equity shares of the Company,

(VIIT) Calls unpaid: NIL; Forfeited shares: NIL.
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22 Qiher Equity

. Asat 31 March 2023 As al 31 March 2022
Particalars ) .
¥ crore ¥ crore Tcrare ¥ crore
Capital redemption reserve
As per last balance sheet 1,137.60 1,137.00
Additions{(deletions) during the year {0.13) -
1,136.85 1,137.00
Securities premium secount
As per last balance sheet $97.45 997.45
‘Additiens/(deletions) during the yéar - -
997 .43 997.45
Debenture Redemption reserve
As per last balance sheet 23841 378.01
Less: Transfer to General reserve ( I39.60)
Add : Transferred from refained earnings 50.74 -
283,15 23841
Reserve ws 43 IC of the RBI Act, 1934
As per last balance sheet 9833 98.33
Add : Transferred from retained earnings 226 -
- wese 98.33

General reserve

As per last balance sheet 24.03 1521
Add - Transferred from Debentoe redemption reserve 8.52
24.03 2463
SurplusADeficit) in the statement of profivloss
As per last balance sheet (1,463.93) (1,636.14}
Add/(Less) :
Realised gains on sale of equify instrument carried through
FvQoCi 258
Balance vn account of demerger -
Transfer from/{to} debenture redemption reserve (50.7d) 130.73
Transfer to Reserve ufs 45 IC of the RBI Act, 1934 (2.26)
Setilement on account of crystaliized claims €91 (8.53)
Minority interest in subsidiary company not apportioned
earlier (Refer note 52) - 16.90
Profit’(Loss) for the year (167.28) o 24.48 _
(1,689.12) {1,463.93)
Other comprehensive income
As per last balance sheet 7819 (22.75)
Add/(Less) for the year 58.99 109.52
Less: Realised gains oa sale of equity instrument carried
throngh FVOCT (8:58)
137.08 78.19
596.03 1,109.43
Note:

a} During the year, an amount of T 50.74.(previous year: NI} has been transfecred to the Debenture Redemption reserve {DRR) out of
fetained earings and an amount of NI (previous year: T 139.60 Crore } has heen fransferred from DRR to retained camings fo the extent
of debenhmes redeemed during the previous year,

b} Considering the profit after tax for the year ended March 3, 2023 a sum of Rs 2.26 ¢r has been transferred to to the statutory reserve as
required under Section 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India (RBI) Act, 1934.and for year ended March 31, 2022, no amounts were reguired to
be fransferred as the company has not reported any profits for that period.

¢) During the current year, CCPS series (1 -3) were issued as boaus shares out of the Capital Redemption Reserve for Rs. 8.15 crotes (PY

Nil). Refer Note 21 for details of the issue
¢) Inaccordance with Notification G.5 R. 404(E), dated April 6, 2016, remeasurement of defined benefit plans is recognized as part

of retained earnings.
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23 Contingeat liakilities

Asat Asmt
Particulars 31 Muareh 2023 31 March 2022
T erore Z orore

{a} Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debt [Refer Motes below] 65.56 13923
(b) Income tax liability (inciuding penalty) that may arise i respect of which the Group is in

appeal. 20.81 26.73
(¢) Sevice tax liability (including penalty) that may. arise in respect of which the Group is in

appeal. 1.62 244
(d) Group's share in contingent liabilities of subsidiaries 398.55 396.25.

Notes :

(i) Future cash-outflows in respect of the above matters are determinable ealy on receipt of judgerments/decisions pending at various Forums/authorities.

24 Commitments

(i) Commitiments quantifiable
(a} Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account {net of advances) and not provided for as at 31 March 2022 is ¥ (.02 crore
(previous year ;. ¥ 30.67¢crore).
(i) Cotumitments not quantifiable

(i) The group has given, inter alia, the following commiiments in respect of its investments;

(a) To the term lenders of L&T Deccan Toihways Limited (LTDTL) to meet shorifall in major maintenance and Debt Service Reserve (DSR) Account and to
maintain minimum year to year Debt Service Coverage Ratie of 1.2 times in a manner satisfactory to.Senjor Debt Tranche A Lenders (Facility amounting to
Rs. 1,080.92 crore) in line with base case fevenue projections. The Company has also given an undertaking fo Senior Debt Tranche B Lendérs (Facility
amounting to Rs. 13442 crore) for servicing the obligation in the event of failyre of repayment by LTDTL.

(b) The Company has given an undertaking to the debenture trustee of L&T Interstate Road Corridor: Limited (LTIRCLY to make paymend of the Termination
Shortfall amount du to Concessionaire event of defailt in the event that LFIRCL fails to make payment of the same within 5 business days from the due date
of deposit of the Tennination Payments by NHAI into the Escrow Account and also to make payment of the Operation & Maintenance(O&M) EXpenses
shortfall amounts caused due to increase in D&M Expenses beyond the limits set out in ‘Base Case O&M Expenses Schedule and resulting in shorifall in
amounts-availabe for debt servicing and/or DSR Amonnt and/os- the Major Maititenance Reserve, without ufilizing the surplus amounts within a period of 30
{thirty} Business days from the date of demand therefore issved by the Debenture Trustes,

(c} The Company has given a commitment to the debenture frustees of Ahmedabad Maliya Tolhway Limited {AMTL) vide a Sponsor-Support Agreement dated
August 28, 2017 wherein the Company has undertaken that in the event of shorfage of funds for coupon payment and repayment of the debentures to the
debenture trustees, the Company shall fund such shortfall. Also the Company has undertaken to fund the rail over bridge expenses of AMTL..

(i) The Company, on salk of the subsidiarics to the Indinfravit Tiust have in the purchase agrepments listed certain ¢laim which dre raised against the company
and certain claims which are raised by the Company against the respective authorities. The amount of claim has not been disclosed since they are not
determinable as at March 31, 2023,

(iii) The Company. has provided sponser undertaking to the lenders of TLET Rajkot Vadinar Tollivay Limited (LT RVEL) a5 2 part of refinancing the project loan
under terms and condition of the oan to suppont any deviation in the base case business plan considered in finalising the term loan.

(i) Management's assesyment
The amounts shown under contingent liabilities and commitnents represent the best possible ¢estimate arrived ot on the basis of the available information.
Further, various govemment authorities/other stakeholders raise issues/clarifications in the nommal course of business and the Management has provided its
responses in respéct of the same and no formal demands/ctaims have been raised in respect of the same other than these disclosed above. The obligations and
possible reimbursements in respect-of the above are depeadent on the oulcome of the various discussions/proceedings that are ongoing and, therefore, carmnot
be predicted accurately except those disclosed above. The Group does nat expect any financial exposure in respect of these as at 31 March 2023,
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25 Income ftom finaacing acGvify - Interest income
Period ended Peridd ended
Partiewars 31 March2023 3] March 2022
¥ crore I crore
Enterest jucome
On financial a3sets measured at Bir value throegh OCT -
Investment iy Indinfraxit Trust 2017 2284
On financial assats classified at fafr value through profit orloss
Bank deposita 167 1428
Net gain/ (loss) on fnzancial ingtroments at fair value through profif or foss
Oa tading partfolio
Tnvestments in muhzal fund 0.69 i17
3113 3529
26 Revenue from senvice concession agreements
Period ended Period ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2622
T crore X crore
Toll collection and related activily [Net of revenus share payable of
T26.74 cr (previous year - €90.33)] 1.141.62 1371.58
Censtruction and project related activity 1842 1L16
Annuity Income 2218 251.06
1,131.62 1,633.80.
Other operating facome
Farticuls Period ended Period ended
arficntars 31 Sarch 2023 31 March 2022
I crore T crore
License fee from wayside smenitics and athers (RE: 1.62
Claims for compensation/ concession extension with NHAI [Refer Note 27a] 5747 7.03
Miscelfancous tncome 16,67 8.67
7532 1732

28

Note 27(a):
Chaims for comp J fon ext with NHAT represenls, compensation receivable for loss of revenue under the concession
sgreements entered into with Maticaal Highways Authority of India (NHAT) by the Graup, by way of extension of the concession sgreement by
certain numbér of days based ca the actual toss incurred due to non-coliectionpartial collection af toll raverme during the previous period of
force majeure, ted for fo accerdance with the acc ing policy of the Group.
Other income
X Feriod ended Period ended
Particulars 31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
T erore Z crore
Interest Income
From Banks 23.95 3518
From others 1.50 240
Net gain/ {loss) on finencial instnesents at fair value Brough profit or loss 045 i1.70
Gam{loss) on sale of investments 17.81 13.69
Gatn{Joss} on sale of Gxed assets 0.7 {0.25).
Lisbilitle sfprovisions no longer required written back 440 027
Miscellaneons income 2.40 2238
' 49,568 73.37
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29 Finance Cosis

30

H

32

. Period ended Period ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
Tcrore Lerove
On financial ligbilities measured at amortised cost
Tnterest on borrowings 25873 Jnzz
Interest on debit securitics 3.0 15840
Onbier bormowing casts 499.63 36090
301.73 883.52
Other construction and related operating expenses
N Feriod ended TFeriod ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
¥ crore 2 crore
Power and fizel 14.33 13.05
Engineering, professional, technical and consultancy fees 245 685
Provisien for major maintenance reserve 2519 8299
General repairs and maintenanca 107.18 121.26
Repairs 1o plam and machinery 707 789
‘Repairs to buildings [.74 033
Vehiele runiting and maintenance 380 5.76
Rent, rates and taxes 197 § o1
Miscellaneous expenscs 13,95 6.91
24072 243,71
Employee benefits expense
, Perlod ended Period ended
Particulars 3F March 2023 31 March 2022
T crore T crore
Salaries and wages 4732 43.07
Contribution 1o and provision for:
Provident fund 2nd pension scheme [Refer Note 35] [61 177
Gratuity [Refer Note 35} 0.95 092
Stalf welfare expoascs 440 4,57
5428 50.33
Other expenses
i Period ended Period cuded
Farticulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
2 crore T crore
Renr, Taxes and eneray cofis 473 343
Repairs and maintenance 1433 12.01
Communication Costs 1.53 192
Printing and Stationery 943 0.35
Advertisement and publicity 045 BAT
Dircclar's foes, aliowances and expenses 027 0.25
Statutory Auditors' fees and expenses 142 1.56
Other Auditors’ fees and ‘expenses (0.02) 0.06
Legal and Professional charges 523 11.62
Travelling and Conveyarice 110 5.28
. Bank charges 38 474
Coeporate social responsibility expense 512 2.50
Other expenses 4.38 142
52.13 54.81
Note : Stautory Aaditors' fees and expenses includes the following :
" Perivd ended Period ended
Pacticuars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Tcrore 2 crore
As Auditer 0,40 027
For Taxation matters 011 602
For other services 0.88 0.18
Reimk nent of expenses Q.03 001
TOTAL 1.42 048
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33 Coaperate Information
LET Infrastuctare Developexent Brejects Limited "LET TDPL") & o public compony domiciled 15 India The Compaay hus applicd Bor Deregistration 23 Core Investment Comzpazy with Reserve Baak of lodiz
vide lbenappll:auoﬂ ded Febraary 04,203, The same kas been approved by RBI vide iy ltter Ref: CHN.DOS. RSG N0 SE2E9/13-27-5339/2022-23 duted 31 \hrh 023, Acﬂx-hng{p ke snmsel‘lh:mpnr
of o

Erve bean idered as i d CIC = the e have been msfatsinad for FY 2022-33 14T IDPL ix ales fvelizd in the borisess of deveh ard
jrofects nrder the P\lhlL Private Famaership ("PPF7) muse through its subsidianies The mbsdisies suiet inta concestion agreqonerts widh Nuioral Brgkwirs Aethocity of Iy (NHAIY) / State amboritics for
e el P and of ik ;wpﬁ: ader Dzsm-B\uld—Fan:-Tmfﬂ(DBﬂ)TWmld-Opm =Transfer (EUI}'BuHDpum-D:nN:um {BOOM) mode with
H AdSdoand Inrormxionpnmm lu Schcddemlo e Companies AL 23
Rwﬁmrj" Stare i profit er ks Sharcin «!_arrcwpﬂbemive Shartin 'l'e}a! soagatiendie
e nogene:
9 - Ceuntry of AsYagl As%ol
[ 3.7% Name of ibe ety Encorporaiion Ao Asvae todubiased eomalidated
Ameznt Amoest Amemt Asgoumil
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L&T Infrastructure Development Projecis Limited _
Notes forming part 6f the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

33 Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 19 “Employee Benefits”

(i) Defined contribution plan;

a)

b)
<}

Thke Group's provident fund are the defined contribution plans. The Group is requited to contuibute a spevificd percentage of payroH costs to the
recognised provident fund and Life Insurance Corporation of India respectively to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect ta
these plans is to make the specified contributions.

An amount of T 1.61 crore (previous year : ¥ 1,77 crore) being contribution fivade to recognised provident fund is recognised as expense and included
under Employee benefit expense [Note-31] in the Statement of Profit and loss.

Fentures of its dofincd beaefit plans:

Gratuity:

The Group operates gratuity plan throngh LIC's Group Gratuity scheme where every smployee is entitled to the berefit equivalent 1o fifteen days salary
last drawm for each completed year of service. The saree 1s payable on termination of service or retirement swhichever is eatlier. The bencfit vests afier
five yaars of continuous serviec. )

Trust managed provident fuad plan:

The Company mondges provident fund plan ihrough the holding Company's provident fund st for its employess whick is permitted under the
Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, The plan envisages contribution by employer and employees and guarantees inferest at the rate
potified by the provident fund awthority. The contribution by emplayer and employee together with intérest arc payable at the timeé:of separation from
serviee or retirement whichever is earlier, The benefit under this plan vests anmediately on readering of service.

The berefit is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The key features arg as under;

Features of the defined benefit plan Remarky

Beénafit offered 13 /26> Salary * Duration of Service

Salary definition: Basic Salary including Dearncys Allowance (i€ any)

Benafir ceiling Benefit ceiling of Rs, 20,00,000 was not applied

Vesting conditions 5 years of continuous service { Not applicable in case of death / disability )
Benehit eligibility Upon Death or Resignation / Withdrawal or Retirement

Retirement age 58 years

“The Group is responsible for governance of the plan.

Risk to the Plan

Folowing are the risk to which the plan exposes the entity ;
Actuearial Risk:
It s the risk that benefits will cost thore thar expected. This can arisz due to one of the-followiag reasorns:
Ailverse $alary Growth Expericace- Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary escalation will result into an increase in cbligation at a rate
that is higher than expected.
Variability in mortality sates: If 2ctual mertality rates are higher than assunied mortatity eate assumption than the gratuity benefits will be paid caglier
than expeeted. Sitce there isne condition of vesting en the death benefit, the acceleration of cash fow will lead 10 an actuarial Joss or gain depending
on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and discourit iate.
Variabiility in withdraveal rates: If actual withdrawal ratés are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption than the gratuity benefits will be paid
earlier than expecicd. The impact of this will depend on whether the beefits are vested as at the resignation date.
Iovestment Risk:
For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of asscts ceriified by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments
backing the liability. Fn such cases, the present value of the assets is independent of the fisture discount rate. This can result in wide fluctuations in the
net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in the discount rate dusing the inter-valuation period.
Liquidity Risk:
Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in bicrarchy, accomulate significant level of benefits. If some of such employees resign
fretire from the company there can be strain on the cash flows.
Market Risk:
Market isk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets. Qne actuarial assimption that has a
material effect is the discount rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money, An'increase in-discount rate leads to decreass in Defined Banefit
Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assimption depends an the yiclds on the corporate / government bonds and hence the valuation of
liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date.
Legislative Risk:
Legistative risk is the risk of increase in the plan lisbilities or reduction in the plan assets duc ta change in the legislation / regalation. The govemment
may amend the Payment of Gratuity Act thus requiring the companics ta pay higher benefits to the employees, This will directly affect the preseat value
of the Defined Benefit Obligation end the same will have to bé recugnized immsediately in the year when any such amendment is effactive.




L&T Tn

frastroctare Dévelopment Projects Limited

Notes forming part of the Consclidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023

d) The amomis recognised in Balanca Sheet are as follows:
Particulars Gratuliy Plan Trust Manzged provident fund plan
Asat Asat Asat Azat
35 March 2023 | 31 March2022 | 31 March2823 | 31 Macch 2022
Prizsent value of defined bensfit abligation
= Wholly funded 592 6.19 2372 2663
- Wholly nnfimded 0.38 0.38 - -
630 6.57 1872 26.63
Less - Fair valuc of plan assets 5.64 5.66 29.30 28.66
Amgunt to be recognised as liability oz {assel) 0.66 0.91 (107) 20
Amounts reffected in the Balance Sheet
Lishilities 075 091 ¢&on 2.0
Assets [0.09} - - -
Net Liability / {asset) 0.66 0.91 .07 {1.02)
¢) The améwnts recognised in the Statement of Profit 2nd loss are as follows:
Grafuity Plan .
Parficutars Trust Managed provident fimd plan
Asat Asat Asat Asat
31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2023 | 31 March 3022
Current servics cost 064 0.70 092 094
Interest on Defined benefit obligation 0.23 0.25 222 165
Expected tum on plan assals (0.22) {0.18)) {2.20) (1.65)
Acrheanial Eosses/{(Gains) 0.17 209 0.60 {0.7%
Actarial Losses/{(Gains) not recogmised - - (0.60) 079
Tatal 0.32 036 0,92 094
1 Amotmt ineluded in “Employee Benefit expenses™ 071 0.85 0.92 094
1l Amomnt recognised in * Finance Costs" - -
Amount included as part of "Other Comprehensive Income” 0.11
Total 0.71 0.36 892 0.94
f) Remeaswement recognized in other comprebensive income
- Gratiity Plan Trust Magaged provident fund plan
Particulars 2022 202122 2022-23 w2122
Components of actuarial gain/losses on obligaticns
‘Dz to change in fnancial assumptions {0.19) {0.18) - -
Due to change in demographic assumption - 028 - -
k Dz to expericnce adjusiments 033 - -
Retum oo plan as5¢ts exclading amounts included in inferest iniome 0.08 0.02 ) ~
0.22 0.14 - -
g
The changes in the present value of definzd benefit obligation repeesenting reconciliation of opening and closing balances thereof are as follaws:
Particulars. Gratuity Plan [ Trust Managed providect fund plan
2022-13 2031-22 202223 2021-22
Opening defined benefit obligation 6.47 6.11 26,64 2213
Current service cost 0.63 0.70 0.92 0.96
Interest cost 041 0.40 .22 1.86
Actiarial losses/{(gains) 013 012 - -
Due fa'change in demographic assumplion (0.01)
Dua o experience adjostments 009
Conuibution by plan paticipants - - 232 182
Benefits paid (1.23) (113} (533) ©.72)
Liabilities assumed on transfer of employees - - 146 0.59
Adjustateat for earlier years ) - -
Closing balance of the present value of defined benefit obligetion 647 5.28 1372 26.63




L&T Infrastructure Develnpment Projects Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for theé yéar edded March 31, 2023

b} The changes in the fair value of plan assets representing reconciliatica of opening and closing balances thereaf are as follows:

Particulars .Gramity Plan Trust Managed providens fund _plan
2022-13 2021-21 2022-23 2021-22

Opening balance of fair value of plan ussets 5.85 513 28.66 uan
Expected return on plan assets 0.21 0.16 212 1.86
 Actuarial Losscs (0.03) - 0.12) 0.12)
Interest Income 016 0.13 - 0.96
Return oo plan asscts excluding amounts included interest income (0.04)
Contribution by cmployer 0,99 L6 096 -
Contribution by plan participants - D 282 1.38
Beacfits paid (1509 (L20) (5.33) 072)
Transfer inf{out) B - 0,59 0.59
Closing balance of fair value of plan assess 5.61 6.80 19.80 28.66

i) The major components of plan assels 35 a percentage of tofal plan assets are as folfows:

Particalars Gratuity Plan Trust Managed provident fund plan
202213 2021-22 20622-13 2021-22.
QGovemment of India securities - - [L35% 17.47%
State Government securities - - 34.01% 27.81%
Special deposit schames - - 2.9%% 3.29%
Public Sectar unit bonds - - 6.44% 10.38%
Corporate bonds - - 3221% 30.50%
Insurer managed funds 100.00% 100.00% 13.00% 927%
Others - - 0.06% 1.28%
Total 100.00% 100,80% 100,00% 100.60%
i) Principal actuarial assamptions at the Balance Sheet date;
: Gratuity Plan
Particalars 101323 Zon122
Discoumt rate 7.40% 6.90%
Expected retora on plin asset 7.40% 6.90%
Salagy prowth rate 6,00% 6.00%
Attrition rate 3%-15% 3%-15%
Mortality rates Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2006-08) Table Mortality. (2006-08) Table

k) Aquanttative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at 31 March 2023

Asat 31 March 2023 Asat 31 March 2022

Particul
Aarfcuiars Change Obligation ‘Change Obligation
— . H).5% 471 +.5% 6.37
D X
(i) Discaunt Rate 0.5% 5.02 £.5% 637
- 10.5% 5.02 +0.5% 6.77
(i) Salary Growth Rate 0.5% 4.71 -0:5% 637

Compensated Absences

The sigmificant assumptions considered by the independent actuary in carrving out the actuarial valuzstioa of long term compensated absences are given

befaw:
Particulars 2023-23 2021-22
Assumptions
Discount Rate 1.20% 7.00%
Futioe: Sakery Increase 6.00%% 5.00%
Attrition: Rate 6.00% 6.00%
Age Band
25 and below £5.00% 15.003%
261235 12.009% 12.00%
36 e 45 9,00% 9.00%
461055 6.00% 5.,00%
56 and above 3.00% 3.00%
Ratention Pay
_The significant ussumplions considered by the independent actuary in carrying out the actuzrial valuation of retention pay are piven below:
Particulars 2021-23 2021-22
Disconm Rate Not applicable 7.15%
Mortality rates Indian Assured Lives Indiny Assured Lives
Mortality (2005-08) Table Morality (2066-03) Table

36 Disclosure pursuant te Ind AS 23 "Borrowing Costs”

Borrowing cost capitalised during the year 2 il erore under Intangible assets under developmeat.




L&T !n_ﬁ'asrrntture Development Projects Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended Aarch 31, 2023

37 Deferred payment linbility of € 2868 39 crore (previous yeae: ¥ 2638.17¢ceors) roprasents:
a} Negalive grant of ¥ 2868.39 crore (previcus year: € 263817 crore) payable to National Highways Authority of Fidia GNHAI), in terms of the Concassion
agreetnsnt eniered into with NHAL [Also Refer Note 47]

33 The Company had received 3 notice dated Apnl 20, 2015 from Mabarashitra Airport Development Company Limited (MADC), as per which MADC had
instructed to hand over ihc possession of 50.85 acres of vacant land tsken on nidety nire years lease af Nagpur, within a period of 13 days, as 1the Company
has nol commenced commercial activities by Jung 20, 2013, Accordingly, the book value of premivm paid to MADC as st March 31, 2022 of T Nil (F Nil
crore as at March 3£, 2021) was shown as recoverable. The Company bad zpprozched MADC for cithar transfer of and to any interested party or to mekca
total exit from 1ts ellotted land by claiming refimd. During the previous year, the company received T 13,73 crores from MADC aod balance of T 0.47 crores
was provided for during the current finanetal year.

39 Exceptional items discl

d in the Consolid:

d statement o £ profit and loss represeats the following :

Particulars 202223 2821-22
Provision for diminution in value of other investments - (60.67)
Loss oa account of NHAI settlement wrt CTTL {5173} -
Gain from GSRDC Settlement claim for two projecs 2114 -
Reversal of Major muaintenance provision of cenlain eparabing subsidiaries 136.06
Total 2.4 7539

40 Disclosare porsnant to Tod AS 115 “Revente from Cantracts with Costomers®

The disclosure provided balow pertains to the construction contracts relaicd to Change of scope wesks in fom sebsidianes of the group. The incoms
and expenses have been netted off and disclosed in Note 26 - Other operating revemns.

Mavement of contract balances during the year

Particulars 2022-23 202132
T crome 2 crore
Qpening contract value 45.52 56.68
Add/{Less): Ravenue secognised during ths year {(18.42) {11.16)
Addi(Less) Advarce received during the year {net of adjustments)
[Add/(1 £ss) : Impainment of contract ass -
(a) Foreseeabile loss on contract assets [net of reversals] -
{b) ECL on conmracr assats [n2r of reversals] d
Closing contract value 27.10 43.52
Likely conyersien in revesue
Remaini N
g perfo o obliga Total 1 year 1-2 years 245 yxars > 3 yoars.
Trans‘asuon price al.located‘m L}:e- 2110 2710 _ _ _
remaining performance obligation
41 Disclosures parsnant to IndAS 40 “tnvestment Property™
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
2 crere 2 core
Rental income derived from investment property 0.08 005

Fair vahc of investment property; 2 5,54 crore as at 31 March 2023 (¥ 5.27 crore as a1 31 March 2022) . The fair valucs of all the investment propeties

have been determined with the help of independent valuers and

markel trends as considered appropriate

nent’s

ment. Valt

is based on govemment rates, market research and



L&T Infrastructure Development Projects Limited
Notes forming-part of the Censolidated Ind AS Finaneial Statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2022

42 Disclosure of related parties / refated party trausactions pursuant to dud AS 24 “Relzted Party Disclosures™

(i) Name of Related Parties and Nature of Relationships

i

Year Ended 31 March 3023

Year Eaded 31 March 2022

Nature of Relati if

Larsen & Toubro Limited

Promater, Entity having joim Larsen & Toubro Lunite&-i - - -
coatral over the p = CPP Investment Board Singaporcan Holdings 1 Pie. Linvited CPP log t Board Singaporean Heldings | Pre. Limited
N CPPIB India Private Hofdings Inc. CPPIB India Private Holdings Inc.

Fellow subsidiaries LTI Mindtree Limited (Formerly Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited) Larsea & Toubro Infotech Limited

L& T Hydrocarbon Engineering Limited L&T Hydrocarbon Enginearing Limited

L&T Shipbuilding Limited L&T Shiphuilding Limited

L&T Infrastruciure Engineering Limited L&T Tnfrastructure Engineering Limited

LE&T Finance Limited L&T Finance Limited

Associates

Titernational Seaports Haldia {Privaic)Limited

International Seaports Haldia (Private)Limited

LTIDPL INDVIT Services Limited [ReferNote 46)

LTIDLPL INDVIT Sarvices Limited [Refer Note 46]

Key Managerial Personsiel

AMr. R Shankar Raman, Chairman and Non-exccntive director

M. R Shankar Raman, Chairman and Non-executive dircctor

Mr. Sudhakar Rao, Independent Director

My, Sudhakar Rao, Independent Divector

Ms. Vijayalakshmi Rajaram lyer, Independent Dircctor

Ms. Vijayalakshmi Rajaram [yer, Independent Director

Mr. DA Veera Raghavan, Independunt Ditector

Mr. Dr.A Veera Raghavan, Independent Director

[Pushkar Vijay Futkami, Nou-executive Dircctor

Pushkar Vijay Kulkami, Non-executive: Director

M. Sachin Johri, Chicf Excoutive (wel December 17, 2021)

My, Dip K.Sen, Managiag Director (w.e.fMay 05, 2021}

Mr. Bip.K.Sen, Non-executive Director

Mr. Dip.K.Sen, Managing Director (w.e.f May D5, 2021)

Post employment bencfit plao

Larsen & Toubro Officers & Supervisory Staff Provident Fund

Larsen & Toubra Officers & Supsrvisory Staff Provident Fund

Details of transactions with related parties: (incleding taxes wherever applicable)

Nature of RelationshipMName/Nature of ransaction 2022-23 2621-22
i. Hulding Company
Larsez & Toubro Limited
Purchase of goods and services .46 730
Reimbursement of expenses from 014 017
Reimbursement of expenses to - 50.06
Investment related reccivables 61.48 6143
Rent paid 541 511
ii. Fellow Subsidiarics
LTiMtndues Limited
Asailment of services 2.76 224
iii, Larsen & Toubro Officers and Supervisery Staff
Provident Fund
Towards emplayer conribution 09 093
iv. CPP ENVESTMENT BOARD PRIVATE HOLDINGS (4)
INC.
Sale of Indinfravit uniis 522.58 564.00
iv, Kéy management persoancl
Indepandent/Non-executive directors ¢.23 0.21
v. Asseciate Comnprany
Intemational Seaports Haldia (Private) Limited
Dividenid received 2835 4.92




LET Infrashucture Develonment Projects Limited

.Nolés forming past of the Consolidated Ind’ AS Financizl Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

iii) Amount due to aad due from related parties (et} :

As at 31 March 2023

As at 3 March 2022

Parficolars
Due 1o Due from

e to

Due fram

1. Holdiog company
Latsen & Tovbro Limited 019 6058
ii. Fellow subsidiaries
LTI Mindtree Limited 0.08 }
Earsen & Tovbro Officers &
Supenvisory Staff Provident
Fund

Q.26 -

249

0.33

0.23

60,76

(iv} No amounts bave been wrilten off writtzn back during the current year and previous year fn respect of relited partics.

43 Disclesure pursuass to Ind AS 33 "Earnings per share™

A. Equity Shares

Particulars

282313

2021-22

Coutinging Gperations
Basic earnings per equity share
(Loss) Frohit after tax as per accounds (2 crore)
Weighted average mumber of equity shares outstanding

(167.25)
62,95,11.761

.76
62,95,11,764

A
B
Basic EPS () AB

{2.66)

039

Diluted earnings per equity share )
(LossY Profitafier tax as per accounts {2 crore) A
Weighted average number of equity sbares oulstanding

Add ; Weighted average number of potential equity c
shares on account of CCPS

Weighted average number of shares outstanding for.
diluted EPS

(167.28)
62,95,11,761

2,00,000
6297,10,764

23.76
62,9511, 764

62.95,£1,761

Diluted EPS (7) AD

(2.65)

0.39

18,08

10.60°

| Face value per share (@)

3) The Company bas 10,600 Special Equity Shares of ¥ 10 cach outstanding which do not have any right to receive dividend or other distributions of the Company or otherwise carry any

svonomic nghts. Consequenily, eamings per share is not applicable to such Special Equity Shares.

b) Basic and diluted EPS for the Special Equity Shares of 710 each does not arise as the shares do not have any right to recefve dividend or other distributions of the Group or otberwise camry
any economic rights, except to the extent of ¥ 10 per share in the event of liquidation or dissofution of the Group.




L&T lafrastructure Development Projects Limited
Notes forming pat of e Consolidated Ind AS Financizl Statememts

44 Disclosure pursuant ta Ind AS 12~ "Tncome taxes™

for the year ended March 31, 2023

a} The major components of income tax expenses for period ended -

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Forote % crore
Current Incomre tax
Cuwrent Income fax charge 3399 3542
Deferred Tax
Relating to-origination and reversal of temporery difference 0.73) 0.42
MAT credit entillement {118y -
Income tax reporied in the statement of profit and loss 312 3584
b} Reconeiliztion of trx expense and the accouniing profit multiplied by Indéa’s domestic tax mte for 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 :
Particalars 2021-23 2071-22
R croie 2 crore
Atcounting profit before tax from continuing operarions {218.48) 18.96
Al India's statutory income 19X rate [75.61) 6:56
Other deductible; exempt and non deductible expenses 107.73 2928
Income tax charge for previous periods - -
Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 3212 3584
Encome tax expenses reported in the siatement of profit and loss 3212 35.84
<) Major components of Deferred tax Babilities and assets
Recognized in
. As at Recornized in other Asat
Particalars 01 April2022 | profitand loss | comprehensive Others 31 March 2023
] income
Property, Plant and equipment and intangble assets (3.90) - - {8.950)
Financial Assets at FYTOCI 001 - - - ®.01)
Oty defeared tax items 311 0,73 - 3.84
Net Deferred Tax Assefs/ { Liabilities) {5.803 0.73 = - {5.07)
Recogmized in
. . As'at Recognized in other As at
Particulars 01 April2021 | profitandloss | comprehensive Ottiers 31 March 2622
income
Property, Plant and cqnipment and intangible assets* {9.22) - B 0.32 (3.50)
Financial Asscts at FVTOCH (8.57) - 856 - 0.81)
Othei deferred tax items 3.85 {1.20) - 0.46 3.1
Net Deferred Tax Assels/ { Lizbiliges) (13.93) (1.20) 856 .78 (5.80)
Deferred tax assets in respect of 1ax Tosscs and unabscrbed depreciztion in the case of some of the subsidiaries are recognised only ta the extent of deferred tax

liabilitics.

The Group has availed tax holiday /s S0-TA of the Incame-tax Act, 1961 for some of its subsidaries. Deferred tax assetsliabilitics i such cases are not

recognised to the extent they reverse within the tax holiday period.
d) Items for which no deferred tax asset is récognised in the balance sheet as 4t 31 March 2023

TUnusad tax losses on which no defemed taxes are rec din balance sheet

As at As at
Particalars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Terore 2 crore
a} Tax losses (Long term Capital loss on which no deferred tax asset is created)

AY2017-18 606.24 60624
AY 2018-19 5476 54.76
AY 2019-20 67.49 6719
AY 3020-21 1432 14.32
AY 2022-33 2398 | -




L&T Infrastructure Development Projecis Limited
Notes forming past of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023

Unrecognised deductible temporary differences for which no deferred tay assat is recognised in the balance sheet

Asat Asal
Particalars 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
T crore T erore
a) Temporary diffacoces between tangible and intangible assets -
b) Unabsorbed depreciation losses -
¢} Towards provision for diminution in value of investments 20.56 540.58
45 Ditclosures as per Ind AS 37 - “"Provisions, Continzent Liabilities and Contingent assets ™
a) Movement in provision :
Balance as at Ad_m:nd :’;lnvmen d Unwinding of Balance as at
01 Aprii zpzz | Provii0adoring) nsedireverse interest 31 Mareh 2023
the year doring the year
Tcrote T orme Terors Ferors Tcrore
Provision for periodic major mai nee 33322 85.19 {166,03) 3464 292.02
Balance acat A_d :imodn:l P;::F[“ 4 Unwinding of Balanee asat
Particulars 01 April2pyy | ProvieeRdunug ssedireverse ‘interest 31 March 2023
the vear during the year
% erore % crore % crore Z crore T crore
Provision for periedi e 530.97 107.24 {337.53) 37.5 3.2

b} Penodic major mainlenance represenls provision made for resurfzcing obligotions. in accordance with the termns of concession agreemeal wilk
NHAVGSROCAYWT and i3 expested to be setilednlised over a period nfone to seven years:

<<<<<<< This space is infemtionally left blank >>>>>>>



L&T Infrastruciure Develepment Projects Limited
Notes forming pant of the Consolidated Ind AS Fitancial Siatements for the year ended March 31, 2023

46 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 112 "Disclosure of inferest in other entities"

(a) Change in Group’s control in 2 sabsidiary (without changes is owaership interests)

On account of transfer on entity to Infrastructure Investment Trust :

LTIDPL Indvit Services Limited is a 100% subsidiary of the Company. Pursuant to InvIT process, LTIDPL Indv[T Services Limited has been appomted as the [nvestment
Manager of the InvIT trust. The Management of the Company has assessed the aspects of control as provided in Ind AS 110 and concluded that the Compaty together with
its Affirmative Voling Rights and its ability to approve/reject aperating budgets through unanimity, exercises significant influence over LTIDPL INDVIT Services Limited
and herice considered as an associate and use equity method of accounting as prescribed in Ind AS 28 - Inveslment in associates and joint ventures: The investment in the
associate has been recognised at the net asset value of the subsidiary on the date of Ioss of coatrol. Accordingly, the necessary adjustments have been made in "Other
equity”.

{b} Change in Group's cwnership interest in a subsidiary

O account of dilafion :

During the previous year, investments in L&'U Halol Shamalji Tollway Limited (LTHSTL) were completely provided for Rs. 520.02 er based on the management
agaessmeant. During the current year, the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Proceedings attained finality vide the order of NCLT, Special Bench — }i, Chennai Dated 2&th
August 2022 wherein the resolution glan of M/s. Kalyan Toll Infrastructure Limit was approved and taken over by them. Pursuant to this, the provisions carried in beoks
of the standalone financal statements of IDPL were written back and correspondingly the investments were completely written off’ during the year in the standalone
financial statements

Disclosure of subsidiaries haviug material non-controlling interest:

Interests of Non-controlling intercsts

L&T Transporiation

Name of the subsidiary Infrastructure Tollway PNG Tollway Limited
Limnited

Principal place of business India India
Proportion of ownership held by non tontrolling interest 26,24% 26.00%
Profit/(Loss) allacated to noh-contrelling interests during the year 11.53 {0.03)
Accumulated nion contrelling interests at the end of the year 106.28 (35.77)
Dividends paid by subsidiary to the non-controlling inferests: Nil Nil

Summarized Statement of Profit and Loss

L&T Transportiation PNG Tollway Limited

Infrastructure Tollway
Particulars s e
Limited
2022-23 20421-22. 2022-23 2021-22
Revenue frem operations 59.7¢ 4635 - -
Profit/(Loss) for the Year 4393 28.89 {0.11) 16721
Other Comprehensive Income om 0.0 -
Total Comprehensive Income 4394 2890 | 0.11) 167.21
Profitf(1oss) allocated to non-controlling Interest [1.53 758 {0.03) 4347
Dividend to Non Controlling Interest - -
Summarized balance sheet
L&T Transpeitation
Infrastructure Tallway PNG Toliway Limited.
Particulars Limited
Asat 3l Asat3i Asat 31 As at 31

March 2023 | March 2022 | March 2023 | March 2022
Current assets {a} 336.12 286.09 0.69 0,79
Current Liabilities (b) 222 8.60 .00 0.00
Net Current assets (¢)=(a)-(b) 327.90 27749 0.69 0.79
Noo=Current assats {d) 192.07 195.71 0.09 0.09
Non-Current Liabilities (e) ; 51.16 43.33 - -
Net Non Current assets () = (d)-{e} 14091 147.33 0.09 0.09
Net assets (g)={c}(f) 46381 424.37 0.78 0.38
Accumulated Non Controlling Interest 106.28 94,75 {73.77) (75.75}

Summarized cash flow statement

L&T Traosportation PNG Toellway Limited

Particulirs Infrastructure Tollway
2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22
Cash flow frem Operating activities ' 33.64 44.20 (0.11) (0.12}
Cash flow from lnvesting activities {31.03) (40,90} Q10 0.06
Cash flow frant Fisancing activities (2.13) (2.03) - -
et Increase/{decrease) in cash and cash 048 125 ©o1) (0.06)

equivalents
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47 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 107 “Financial instruments: Bisclosure”

Capital Management
For the purpose of the Group's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable ta the equity holders of the

parent. The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is 10 maximize the shareholder value.

Financial Risk Managemeat

The Group’s activities expose it to variety of finantial risks : market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's focus-is to foresee the unpredictability of
financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The Board of Diseclors of the parent company has overall
tesponsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framework. The Board of Directars of the parent company have established
a risk management policy to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and centrols, and to moritor risks and adherence 10
fimits. Risk management systems are reviewed periodically to reflect changes in miarket conditions and the Group’s aetivities. The Board of Directors overses
compliance with the Group's risk management policies and provedures, and reviews the risk managentent framework.

Market risk
The market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk

comprises three types of risk: foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.

Foreign Currency Risk _

Foreign currency risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a finazcial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in forefgn-exchange rte. The
Group is not. exposed to fereign curtency risk asit bas no borrowing or no material payables in foreign currency.

Inlerest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk thal fair valoe or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in markel interest tates. The inlerest

risk arises to the Group mainly from term loans from banks, financial linbifities and deferred payment lizbilifies with variable rates. The Group measures sk
through sensitivily analysis. Currently, lending is from debentures for which the interest rates are fixed.
The Group's exposurs to inferest rate risk due to variable interest rate bormowings is as folfows:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Senior debt from banks and financial insfitations 3.07696 3.688.06

Sensitivify analysis based on average outstanding secured bormewings
Impact on profit! loss after tax -

2032-23 2021-22
Increase or decrease in interest rafe by 25 basis points 8446 11.85
Note: Profit will increase in case of decrease in inferest rate and vice versa
Price risk
Price rigk is the risk that the fair value or fitre cash flows of a financial instrument will fluciate because of changes in market prices (sther than those arsing
from inferest rate risk or enrrency risk).
The Group is expased to price risk due to invastmentsin mutual funds and the same are fair valued through profit or Toss,
The Group measures risk throngh seasitivity analysis.
“The Group's risk management policy is to mitigate the risk by investments in diversified mufual funds.

The Company's exposure to price risk due to investments in mutual fund and units of InvIT is as follows;

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Investmments in Mutual Funds 413.84 602,12
Investment in Indinfravit Trust - 463.21

Sensitivity Analysis

- Impact on profit/ less after tax
Particulars 2022.23 2021-12
Incrense or decrease in MAV by 1% 414 6.02
Note - [n case of decrease in NAV profit will reduce and vicé versa
Impact on other
comprehensive income before
tax
2022-23 2021-22

Increase or decrease in NAV by 1% - 468
Note - fn case of decrease in NAV profit OCT reduce and vice versa.




L&T Infrastructure Development Projects Limited

-Motes forming part of the Consolidated Ind AS Financizl Statcments for the year ended March 31, 2023
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to 3 financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation.. The parent -
company of the gfoup is primarily an investtiient company and returns is by way of rétumn on investment. The Group thtough its subsidiaties provides toll
operation and mainténance services to the road projects where the Group has invested at a mutually agreed fee. The Group sees no credit risk in that
transaction. The Group has reccivables from few governmental agencies which are either under a dispute or is pending settlement.
Eigquidity risk
Liquidity risk i3 the risk that the compary will encounter difficulty in mecting abligations associated with financial liabilities that are scttled by delivering cash
a1 another Rnancial asscls.
The Group is exposed 1o liquidity risk due to. borrowings and wade and other payables. The Group measures risk by forecasting cash flows. The Group’s
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far.as possible, that it wiil always have snfficient liquidity to meet its Kabilities when due without incutring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to. the Group's reputation, The Group ensures that it has sufficient fund to meet expecied operational expénses, servicing
of financial obligations. The group manages liquidity risk by mainmining adequate reserves by continuously monitaring forecast and actial cash flows, and by
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The following are the contractual maturities of finzacial liabilites :

As at 31 March 2023 upto I year 1 -2 years 2-Syears > 5 years Tatal m::!g
Non-Derivative financial [iability
Debt Securities 45,15 175.00 221.15 22115
Term loans 478.69 29339 1,307.15 997.73 3,075.96 3,076,968
Deferred payment Labilities 130.52 85.47 261.13 1.691.27 2,368.39 2,868.39
Unsccured loan from others 1.40 - . - 1.40 140
Trade Payabies 5718 - - - 57.18 57.18
GSRDC Revenue share payable 102.20 26.58 - 2717 15595 155.95

As af 31 March 2022 upto 1 year 1-2years 2-Syers > 5 years Total (::::;::tg
Non-Derivative finaneial liabitity
Debit Securities 354.05 1206.84 175.00 1,125.63 1,775.52 1,775.52
Term Loans 734.36 476.89 983.37 [,493.45 '3,688.06 3,688.06
Deferred payment liabilities 71.29 137.09 330.35 1,399.44 263817 2.633.17
Unsecured loan from others 1.40 - - - 1.40 1.40
“Trede Payables 7141 - - 7141 TLAL

GSRDC Revenue share payable 115.09 26,58 89.92 - 231.59 231.59
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48 Disclosare pursuant to Tnd AS 113 "Fair Value Measorement'

a) Category-wise classification of applicable Fisancial Instruments

As at 31 March 2023

Asat 31 Narch 2022

Farticulars FVTPL Fvroct =0T gy pyrocy  Amerized
cost cost
Financial Assety
Investment in mutual funds 413.84 - - 602.12 - -
Investments m infrastructuse tnssts - - - - 46821 -
Investments in other companics 14.86 - - 14.86 - -
Cash and cash equivalents and bank balances - - 1,226.72 - - 1,231.78
“Trade receivables - - 3526 - - 1773
Other receivables - - 23504 - - 208722
428.70 = 1,497.02 616.93 468.21 3,336.73
Financial liability
Debt Securities - - 22015 - - 1,775.52
T:n_n [._oan from banks and Financial i} ) 3.076.96 _ . 3,683.06
Instititions
Deferred payment liabilities - - 2,868.39 - - 2,638.17
Termt loans from others - - 140 - - 140
Trade payables - - 57.18 - - 7141
Other payables - - 37470 - - 436.10
- - £.599.78 - - 8,610.66

) Fair valoe of Financial asset and liabilities at amortized cost

As at 31 March 2023 As zt 31 March 2022

Partical i i
A Carrying  pievatee S92 pvaree
_amount amount
Financial Assels _
Cash and cash equivalents and bank balances 1,226.72 1,226.72 1,231.78 1,231,78
Tiade receivables 3526 3536 1773 17.713
Oiher receivables 235.04 23504 208722 208722
1.497.02 1497.02 3.336.73 3336.73
Finaneial lialility
Deb! Securities 221.15 22115 1771552 1.775.52
Term loan fyom banks and fnancial
institutions .3‘,076.96_ 307696 3,683.06 3,63806
Deferred payment liabilities 2,868.39 256839 263817 2,638.17
‘Term loans fiom others 140 140 140 1.40
Trade payables 57.18 57.18 FL4E 7141
Orther payables 37470 374.70 436.10 436.10
_ 658978 659978 861066  8.610.66

The ¢antying value of loan to rélated parties approximate fair value as the instruments are at prevailing market rate.
The canrying value of term loans and debeahres approximate fair value as the instnuneits are at prevailing markel rate.

<} Fair value hierarchy of finan¢ial asset aud finaneial Iiabilities

As at 31 March 2023

Financial asset measured at FYTPL, Note Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total
Investments in Mutusl Funds & 413.834 - - 413.34
Finaneial assels measured at FYTOCT Nole Levell Eevel 2 Leveld Toatal

Investment in units of infrastructure trust [ -




L&T Infrastructure Developuient Projeets Limited

Nates forming part of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Financial asset measured at FVIPL Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Tnvestments in Mutval Furds 6 602.12 - - 602.12
Financial assets measured at FVIOCI Note Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Totzl
Intvestment in upits of infrastructure trust & 46321 B - 468.21
d) Valuation technique and inputs used to determine fair value
Particulars Valuation Method Inpats

Financial Assets

Investments in mutual funds Masket Approach Net asset Value

Investments in ifiastrechoe trusts Market Approach Net asset Value
Financial Liabilities

Debt Securitics Income Appraach Effective rate of borrowing

Term loans from bartks Income Approach Eftective rate of borrewing

Gther firancial lizbilities Income Approach Effective rate of botrowing

€) Assets pledged as security
Particulars Note No As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Finaaclal Asset

Cash and cash equivalents 2 7790 62.37

Bark balances 3 8455 1164.41

Trade receivables q 31.97 17.73

Other recedvables 5 0.00 208408

Investments 6 £24.64 602.12

Other Financial assets 7 15.36 314

Praperty, plant and egquipnsent 9 1523.16 20.06

Other non-financial assets 13 0.00 19.33

TOTAL 1,861.57 3,978.24




L&T Ialexstruchure Berelopment Projecty Limited

Noles forming part of the Consobdatad Ind AS Finaneial S5 for the year ended March 31, 2023
43 {a) Ageins of Trade Payable as af March 31, 2013 T oce
SrNo Particulury Unbilled Daes | NotvetBae | 25 | vy | 2 3veer | Dortthan Tital
1Year i 3 Years
1__|MSME - 316 0.1 - - hd 330
2 JOthars 0.02 3526 36 431 o435 L2 30.79
3 [fiii) Related parties - Ei2 - - - Lig
4 |Dispused Dues - MSME - . _ - - - =
5 |Disputed Dues - Ofiers - - - - . - -
6 |Ik':pmad Duas - Relaiad parties = - - . - A -
Told .02 HA15603 564 431 05 1.19 SLi%
Aszeing of Frade Payabley at at March 31, 2022 T crore
St Na|Parficatary . |vobiledDoes [Norverbee | HES L gvean [rosvess | Memtwa Tolal
: 1 Vear 3Yurs
I_|MSME - 2% 073 - -~ - 3.02
2 |Onhars - A 1649 32t 1.33 314 6324
3. fuiii) Relyted parties - 046 an - - 239 315
3 |Dispuged roas ~ MSME - - - - - - -
4 |Dispoted Dues - Odhers - - - - - < ~
6 {Dismded Dues - Ralifad porses - - - . _ - -
Tetad - 4333 17.93 3 135 53 TL4L
() Ageins of Trade Recetwabied as at Iist Masch 23  core
; . . . Less thaa & Meaths— Mere (han
SrNo Partirgiars Unbilled Does | Net Yei Dne & Mantls 1 Year I-2¥ears 2-3Yeans 3 Vears Teizl
1 pUndspmed Trade Receivablac = Considared Goods - 13.14 211 - - - - 3538
2 |Ued d Trade Receivables —~ Which have siprificans incress in, cradl risk - - - - - - - -
3 U of Trade Receivables — Cradit bupaired - - - - - - - -
__4 _|Dispated Trade Reveivables — Considared Goods - - - . - - - -
5 mpuied Trade Recelvables - Which havesignificant incressa in cradit sk - - - - - - - -
6 |Ditpeted Tradz Receivablas — Credit M 2d - - - - - - - -
1 Tota? - 1LL4 221 - - - - 3525
Aveiny of Trade Receivables as at 3ist March 22 T erore
- . Less than & Months — More than
S z\nl Particulars Unbified Boes | Not Yt Due & Marlss 1Year 1=2ZYears | 2=3Yean 3 Vears Talal
I |Unfispetad Trads Recetvalles — Considered Goody - 115 1.1% 033 - - - .13
2 |Codsputad Trade Recervatles ~ Which bave sipniffcant bicreose in credit sk - - - - - - = -
3__{Und&spaiad Tade Recaivzhles - Credin lzpaiced - - - - - - - -
4 |Disprarad Trade Réedivabl Considered Goods - - - = - = - -
3 |big TFrade Receivables ~ Which have signifivant increasz in credit ddsk - - - - - - - -
6 |Dirpoted Trade Rocaivables — Credit Inypamred - - - - - - - -
Tetal - 116 101X 6J% = = - 1775
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The Group i canying tofl eotlection tights (net of amortisalion/impairment) aggregating  3,847.52 Crores in four operating subsidiaries of the Company, engaged in infrastructure projects whose net
worth is filly erodedundersoing restructuring due to continmous losses, for a pc-nud of morc than 5 years, as at 31 March 2023. The Group assesses the recoverability of such infrastructure investments
on an annual basis, considering the probable beneficial rsuit.s arising. from various initistives being undestakeri with rezard to refinancing of loans taken, submission of ¢laims or pursuing with
appropriate authorities on relevant pending claims, sa that the financial viability of the projects can be improved The Group has revisited the projections made in the previous year by considering the
results of such initiatives during the vear as well as the status of discussions with relevant authorities to determine the expected cash flow for the remaming coneession period of these projects.

For the purpose of determining the recoverable value of its investments, the Company has considered significant estimmates and judgements which inter-alia includes the discounted cash Bows determmned
based on the traffic projections, probable recovery of arbitration claitns, impact die to force majire events and discount rates calealated based on'the cost of equity for the applicable investment, adjusted
for the proposed restructuring/réfinancing. All of these estimates and judgements have inherent uncertainties and the actual results may differ fiom thaf estimated as ut the dste of the Balanco sheet.
Considering the gestation periodd roquised for break even for such-infrastruchure investments, restructuring/refinancing arrangements earried out/proposed and expeécted improved cash fows in it's future
business projections, ng additional impairmént/ adjustmen? to the camying value'of the said toll colleetion rights 15 considered nécessary by the management as a8-31 March 2023,

During the year ended 31 Masch 2022 , Vadoadara Bharuch Tollways Limited, a subsisdiary, has entered into an settlement agreement with NHAL As per the farms of settlement agreement, cotnpany has
been grapted with 90 days extension period against Covid ¢laim and 3.14 days against Force Majeure - Nationawide Transporters' Strike 2018. This eatended peried is nened ofi againse company's
linbility towards Terminal Major Maintenaeo, COS receivable fom NHAL ARer settling of all these claims, net extension in concession period is up to 17th March 2022, Honce the Company has
collected toll and performed operations il [ 7th March 2022,

Thz effect of the above mentivned seiilement agreement is taken in the books of sccounts as st 31st March 2022 by reversing the Opening provision of Major Mainteaance and current yéar provision for
Major Maintenace, '

As per NCLT order dated :09 January 2023, Watrak Infrastructure Private Limited has been demerged from Infrastructure Business of L&T Investment Managers Services Limited (L1SL.) and agcordingly
the financials of the company have been consolidaeed with E&T IDPL a5 a100% wholly owned subsidiary. Pursuant.to the scheme of demerger, 2,23,82,900 Equity shares were alioled to the Company at
the face value of Rs. 107= each,

In FY 2017-18, impaimient zcconnted in one 6F the sibsidiaries of the Group, PNG Tollways Limited, towards the carying value of net receivable was not attributed to the sxinority shareholder in that
yoar iny proportion to their holding. Thersafter, in FY 21.22, 26% of the same amounting to Rs. 16,90 Crore attributable ko the minority sharekolder has been adjusted in propottion ko thesr equity
Eoldings. {Refer ote 22)

One of the subsidianies, L&T Transportation Infrastucture Limited, which had been awarded a Build-Operate-Transfer (BOT) praject for construction of a bypess toll road and 2 bridge over the River
Noyyal in Coimbatore District of Tamil Nadu State, under the Concession Agreement dated 83 October 1997, had received a termination notice from the Ministry of Road Transport and Highways
{MoRTH), Government of [ndia. The around of termination was Government of India’s subsequent intention to go-for four-laning of the existing two lare mad. The subsidiary had oblained injunction
from the Daihi High Court against the seid termination notice of the Govertment and is accordingly continuing fo callect.foll. The tolling rights of the subsidiary dre protected under the afiresaid
CONRCESSION Agreement,

The subsidiary had also filed an application apting for arbitration for resotution of disputes-and an Arbitral Tritnmal had been constituted as provided in the corcession agreement. The Arbitral Tribunal
had pmnclunccd the award an 12 December 2014 in Favour of the Cocipany. The Tvibunal had also awarded, interafia, compensation to be paid to the Compauy for lots of tevenne at Athupalam Bridge
and suil ion of the cor on period,

MoRTH had challenged fhe award on-12 March 2015 seeking stay of the aforesaid tribunal award béfore the Hon'ble Dethi High Court, The case was transfarred to Commescial Appellate Court of the
Dethi High Conit during the previous year. Duing the grevious financial years, she Ministry of Road Transport and Highways had faken initiatives to revive the Infrastructurs sector through NITE Asyog.

“The proposals approved included transfar of arbitration cases existing under the old act, to the amended act and also to provide refief 1o the concessicnaires in the for of interim payment of 75% of the

Arbitral award in cases whers the tribunal had granted the award, which were challenged by the implememtation agencies. The matier was last listed on February 02, 2019 and the same lad been
adjowmed to April 12,2019 for final arguments an section 34 application Thiring the previaus year ended March 31, 2020, the Honourable High Court of New Diethi had dismissed the application filed by
MORTH and prunownced the arbitration award in favour. of the Company as per the order dated October 11, 2019, Accordingly, the arbitration claims had been considercd in the financials of the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2020 as given below:

a) Loss of reveaue claim anounting to T 77.09 crores and Inferest income of T 104.68 crores accountad as reverue from operations snd other income respectively. As per the arbiration order dited .
December 12, 2014, the cost of one renewal course amaunting to 2'10.00 crores bad been considered under gperating expense apprapriately. The 75% of the total award amounting to T 117.28 crores was
received from MORTH on Novewber 06, 2017 The balance award amount of T 54.49 crores is shown as receivable from MORTH.) b} MoRTH had approved the fee revision on January 08, 2018.and
the same had been impleménted from January 22, 2018, The Company bad collected T 25.29 crores on account of toll sevision all Outober 11, 201% and wag held in a sepatate escrow account and not
considered as income. However, based on the 2bove Honourable High Court Delhi order the said amiount was considered as income during the year ended March 31, 2020

Hovwever, MoRTH has challenged the Award before the Division Bencly of the High Court of Delhi. First hearing in the matter was hsld on March 03, 2020 and MoRTH was directed by the High Court of

Delhi io deposit the bafance 25% of the award amount before the Registry of the Delhi High Court within 4 weeks and has afsp directed to complete the pleadings with respect to condonation of defay and

issuaniee of stay order. The Company had filed s replics an ihe two applications and MoRTH has deposited the balance 25% of the award amounting to 2 32.09 crore before the High Cowrt of Delhi. The

mattes was listed on Marck 19, 2021 for completion of pleadings but on the request of MoRTH fimther time had been granted to fike their rejoinder. Now the matter is listed on July 20, 202) for fiusther

hearings, . .

Ir the meanwhil, the Campany has filed an 2pplication to release the amount deposited by MoRTH i, € 39,09 crare and the same is pending for further hearing before the High Court of Dethi.

The Howorable H1J1 Court af Delhi vida its ander dared Apsil 15, 2021 directed that the amaunt deposited by MoRTH shall be teleased to the Company against fumnishing of an unconditional bank
fiorn a nationalised bank for the entire amount. The Contpany has submitted the bank guamantee and received the amount of Rs.39.09 Cr from the Honorable High Com of Dethi on August 13,

2021. The Company has filed the jence bundle on September 03, 2021 and the matter listed on September 07, 2021 was not taken up for hearing on that day. Next date of the listing of the matter

was on l4th April 2021, The main section 37 - application filed by MoRTH i Tisted on 20th July 2021, for argumants after completion of pleadings.

Stay order was granted by Delhi HC on the termination notice to BOT issued by MoRTH in 2021, continues to be in force and the discussion with CCIE are ongoing and the efforts are being made to

setile the matter by nesotiation.

The company hag entered inio a share purchase agreement to sell 160% equity shares of Kudgi Transmission Limited (KTL), a whally owsed subsidiacy of the company on 16th Dee 2022, The said.

transacticn is subject to requisite appivals. Accordingly, as required by INDAS 105 Non cisrent assets held for sale and discontinued operations, the assets and liabilties of KTL has been presented in

the finemcial statement as Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations”

The details of pysataliahilities classified as held for sale are as under: Zerore
Particulars Asat Mar31,2023 As at Mar 31, 2022

Assets:

Cash and ¢ash equivalents 401.05 -
Investments 167.89 -
Other financial assets 1,577.91 -
Current tax asseis (Net} 193 -
Propesty, plant and equipment 7.84 -
Other non-financial assets i34 -
Assets classified as held-far-sate 2,100.01 -
Trade payables ‘228 -
Tiebt secuxities 1:333.60 -
‘Giher financial liabilities 115.68 -
Gther non-financial liabilities 1.56 -

Liabilities classified as held-for-sale 1,453:12 -
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Notes forming part ¢ the Consotidated Ind AS Finzncial for the y2er eaded Math 31, 2003
T suasnary of Boactal performence of discoctiouad operstions is as eoder:
Period ended FPeriod ended
Mar3ILJOB Mar 38,2012
Revenue from Operations 19514 236,36
Ciirer ipcoow 210 15.93
Tatal iaceme 21035 2149
Finance casts 125.10 12370
Opersting expenzes 1313 1401
Employce benefits expanca 158 a7
Depeeciation and amesization expense a3l o452
-Other expenses 326 3.6
Total Expeoses 14318 19743
1747 9505

s
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‘ProfitLoss alter tax from diseontinned operations

Consequant to Termination of the Project dee to Authority Exent of Default, the Company had defaudied in repayment of interest and principal dna 1o the lenders since Seplember
2013, The lenders had imucd reeall nolices fo the Company for immediale scitlomcent of the oulstanding dues. During the F.¥. 2015-19, the [ead bank had filed a recovery petition
beloce the Debt Recavery Tribumad, Chenmai for recovery of their dies. The Avmumnents in the matter was comp'eted on March 18, 2019, On April 15, 2019, the Debt Recovery
Tribunal, Chennef vide its order ra. O.A. No. 3720/2017 had 2llowed the lead bank to recover the debt-due alons with a simple interest (3 9% poa. Instead of compounding rare of
13.30% p.a., the interest rate as cluged by the hanks effective Febmuary 27, 2017, being the rocovery petition filed date. The ordstanding debts are to be paid by NHA] as per ihe
arbitration order.

During the F.Y. 2021-22, the lenders had filed an application befoce the Honarsble DRT-I sacking dicection to-issue recovery certifieste aguinst the Company For the purpose of
recovermy the debt due as on the date of filing the original spplieation. The Tolneal has passed zn order to issue recovery certificate in favor of the Jenders vide its arder dated Apeil
15, 2019, 2nd actodingly the Debt recovery certificate was issued on July 14, 2021 and a demand actice dated July 31, 2021 was fssued by the secovery offieer to deposit the sum
of T364.04 Cr witkin 15 days of receipt of the notics. The said demand notice wasseceived by the Company on August 49, 2021

[a the Joint Lenders Meeting beld on Januacy 23,'2023, the Company had cemmunicated an qoe fima seRlerment affeced by NHAT for R2.136 Cr, ard subsequently executed the
seiifement agreement with NHAI on Febouary 03, 2023 Bascd on the one time setfement sanction frém the lenders, dues of IDBF and PNB got stitled on March 50, 2025_ The
consent for ape time settlement from UBL is yet b be c20¢ived by the Company. Since, the seftfement to lenders camet excecd Rs. 136 Cr the outstanding term Jazn duz 1o BOB &
UBLis shown to the extent of their respective share out of one time settfement by NHAT The halsace cutstanding dics 10 lenders amounting to Rs.184.05 Cr post ore fime setdement
6fR1138 Cr has heent written back end accounted as exceptional item in ke bovks of account daing the year
Termination refated Achitrations

Due ta the autherity default, the Campany terminated the project with effect fram June 24, 2015 Due to insctica of the atthorily en terminatica cotice, the Company filed an
application undar Séction 2 of Asbitration acd Cenciliation Act bafore the Honorable High Cowt of Delhi. On the direction of the Cownt, Authority (NHAI) fook over tke Project on
Jane 23, 2016. Upon completion of the argunients from both the partics, the Honarsble Arbitral Tribunal pronounced the Majority Anard in favour of the Company and upheld the
Termination of the Concession Agreemient by the Company For the Acthority default

The Company had ffed the application urder Section 34 of the Arbimation 2nd Conciliation Ack for rectification of some &rturs in the Termination award. Pleadings in the matter was
completed and the exatter was listed on various dates for further proceedings.

Mezmwhile, the Comnsel of NHAL and the Cosrpany répeesenied that the negotiation is om-going for setilement and accarding!y the mutter has been adjoumed. Further, in view of the

setilemnent agre 3 d between (ke Company and NHAL, both the Comspany asd NHAIT fiked an application for withdtanal of the proceedings in the Court. Accordingly, the
Hanorable High Court of Delbi dsposed off (e arbitrati P fings of the Compamy and NHALca February 10, 2023 ard March 01, 2023 raspeclively.

Claims refated Achitration:
The Cormpany hiad raised mitinber &f disputestarmmments with the Authority (NHAT) which eould not be reselved wmicably etween them and the szne was referred to Arbitralion.
The Company had lodged a ¢laim in the Arbitration Tribunal Upon complétion of the arzuments from both the parties, the Arbital Tribunal has awarded the arbitration in favour of

- thé Compeny.

NHAI challenged both the Tenmination 2nd claims award before the High Court of Delhi on Aegast 17, 2020 under section M of the Arbitration 2nd Conciliation. In tha meantime,
INHAL had filed oce more application in the Section 34 matter with tespect to Temination rafated award whesio the NHAL conternded that toli collection amount deposited in the
estow ascount is sufficiert to take care of the awarded t beaati in Termination 2nd Claims related arbiteation. The matter vwas listed on varfous dates for Rether proceedings.

Meanwhile, the Comsel of NHAI and the Campany rep d that the fiatien i3 on-going for settlemert and accordingly the matter has heen adfouned. Fuxtbar, in view of the
settlement agreemint extcuted between the Company and WHAL both filed an application for withdrawe] of the preceedings in the Cowt. Accordingly, the Honorable High Court of

Deihi disposed off the arbiteation p dings of the Company and NHAI on Febeary 10, 2023 zzd March 01, 2023 respectively.

The Stendalone Finencisl Seatemtents of CTTL baove been prepared-considering the Below items and the same ave been appropdately presented in the comsolidated fimancial
statexents of the Company. The services ffom related parties are made ¢n ferms cquivalent to those that prevail in ann’s kength transactions. There have beea oo guacantees provided

ox received for any related party ceceivables or payabiss.,
During the year, i view of the settlernent with NHAY and lenders, Unsecured loan including interest and expenses payabie to Holding Company ameunting o Rs17.56 erores and
eutetanding belance payable to Ultimate Holding Company amounting to Re2.3%rorcs has been writien back. The wiitten back amount of Rs.19.95 erores'is secounted as

excepional item in the beoks of accomw during the year.

The exceptional items of standalone financial stalevaerts of CTTL disclose as under:

Particulars 202223 2821-12

T Crores T Crotes
Write off of receivables from NHA1 23818 -

Less: -
#) Weite back/Provision for write back of 12406 -
ouistznding Tevm Lozns including interest

b) Write back of related party dues 19.95 -
Total 317 B




L&T Infrastructare Develepment Projects Limited
Nofes forming pant of tha Consolifated Ind AS Financial Stsements for the year ended March 31, 2025

S5¢d) The Company is carrying net investments aggregating Rs. 354.07 erores {(As alMarch 31,2022 Rs. 790,47 croves) and has vatstanding net loans and advances ageregating Rs.
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503.22 croves (As at March 31, 2022 Rs. 293 41 crores} provided t4 certain op sub i of the Company n @ projects whose networth is filly.
craded/undergoing restructuring due 1o continuous losses, for a period of more than S years, a5 per the auditéd financial mfon-nahon of these-entities a3 at March 31, 2023,

Considening the g ion period required for bresk even for such infrastructure & , sty ing/rafli g arr; ts camied out/proposed and expected improved cash
flows in its f'uture business projectons, ne additiona! provision/ adjustment to the carrying value of the said imvestmeats is considered necessary by the Management as at March 31,
2023

For the puipusc of drieimining the recoverable value of its investments, the Contpany has considered the discounted cash flows from the mveslmznl, Llelcn'nmcd based or the taific
ions and with di rates calculated based on the cost of equity for the applicable i djusted for the propased ingfref 1

)

<

During the vear énded 3] Marh 2049, coc ofihe ssbsidiames; L&T Samakhiali Gandiidh Toll\\a,y Limited wea an ashitzation award against the Nationa! Highway Authority of Tndia {fNHAIT in 1he matrer
related liowy of certain additianal warks w.rt Hligation mder the The said works were bevond the defined scope of work and hence qualificd for change of scope’
RompEnsItion: By NHAI which was dispuled by NHALThe subsidiary went an arbitration and m:ceeded in their ofalm oo the said maner. The vakeaton of compensaton amotntiog to T 113,20 crare pnvable
mcludmgaltemwnpcmaumn[:mund R 25.60 tvors for ke period delay i sealement ks betat awirded By the hoporable arbitration tribunal

During the previous financial years, the Ministry of Road Transport 2nd Highways had taken fitistives o mevive the lafastreetre saefor throngh NITT Axveg. The propasals approved inchide trangzs.of
whitratites cages txistmg under the ol act, 32 the smended act and a!so so provide rekef to the concessionaires in the form of interim payment of 7% of tha Arbirod aveard in cascs where the tribunal !uldgnnh.d
the svvad; which were challenged by the tmpk ion acocics: Tk the subsidiary is elgible for.an interim corapensation of 75% of rbitration award syainst bak guarantee. The same was spproved
b\ NHAI in the Teaer dated 4 A;m'l 19 fura sumt of T GE37 crore inchuding 3 mmcsleompensalm &% 597 crore for perind delxy in settleent Arbitral Tribunal was canstituted on 24.70.2016 & Arbimal
Titibunzt has pronounced o enanmocos Awarit on 11112008 in fevour ef L&T SGTL, wherein the NFLAL has been directzd Yo pay an amount of £ 185.20 Crores to L&T SGTL. within 60 davs fowm 11.11.2018,
I case the NHAI fils [0 make the paveent of 7115.2¢ croves ta C&T SGTL within 60 deys NHAL has besn dicected ta pay twe funbier imierest @ 18% per anmm en T 115.20 enares Gom 11.11.2013 11l the datz.
of pivment thereof Subsequently WEHAT has challenged the Award under Secticn 34 of the Arbitration sod Conerlmtion Act, 1996 before the High Court of Deibi Honrever, in terms of the Miti Aavoe policy NHAM
hasreleased an amoun of E92.36 crores o0 272.082019 aguingt BG ghen fior 4 asieur, o[ 19237 Cr.

Matter i listed for arguments on- Admission, During the hearing of Lhe case @ 23032034, the Hoable nghCmochDu has dirccied tha NHAL and the Ccmp&m tea ke the written submission, The Mater
was adjourned o 11.05.2023.

During tbe year anded, 31 March 2022, oas of tfie subsiduries, LET Deccan Telhways Limited, a seftlemenr agreement was emered betw e the Company' and NHAY on March 26, 2621, the Company bae
received T 103,23 éoore (net of Law) cn Apal 19, 2021 S NFLAL The details of the amount received is gisen below

[ - Description. Amonnt in Crore

Setilement amount from NHAI 11442

(including COIVD [9 cham of Rs. 1034 core)} '

Detuetion against Negative Change af Scope {4.49}

Net receivable 16293

IDiduction of TDS (1.65)

Amouni received from NHAT 103.28

Ot of the above seitieatent amount from NHALE, lbe Company hos accounted T 10,34,25,000C wwards COVID ¢l2am receivable from NEHAT during the FY 2020-2). Farther, during (he curren) fuancial vear, the
Commpacy has obtaimed the zpproval from sharcholders and seidfed an amount of T 50,06,00 000/ to EFC (IJcT) tonvards scthement incloding Material Adverse Effect clains, The balance amount of 2

33 .68 41,628/~ hae beca raduced &am“’"lnungib!eascls“l]ser Toll Calfection rights™ as the scitfernent muoend froa NELAL is pettaining 1o coustrucsion period pre-operative cast. A dingly, the Comp jh'a
accounted ¥ 9,06,46,335/~under ciber income “lnch is towards reveryal of amonisaion oa 1he decapitlisation amounl,

Two of the subsidiaries entered mto with GSRDC have opplicd for ceviomue stisre deferment and have recehed approval foe the same. Accerdingly, the deltreed reveuus share will be
pavable alcng with dntezest 2t RBI baok rite phes 2/.m|zrmsu1’|h=suppkmmq agreemeat signed by the wspoctive’ subsidiaries wiash GSRDC.

Force Mijeuse (FM) Events during the year in Gravp CompaniizDus to Faners’ umrest thare was disropticn of tollieg from 25th Dhcember 2020 the same bies bean considersd 25 Ferce Magure (FM) evenl
i e foeal anthoritics/admintstration could not provida suppodt for enabling toll operations at Plaza W bave cotified NHAL vids fetter dated 50th Mareh 2021 shout dbe same 23 cvend of FM under provisions
of Coocessio Agreement. The FM event continued Gif 125 Docember 2025 and company has started coflecting toll from 13t December 2021, Company. has Bed innerim claims o NEAL vide various beucrs.
Intrim chim of Rs.6.73 Crs for the FM peviod #ill May 21 is récommended by TE Vide better dated 26 July 2021 2nd the samse is approved by NHAT sd prymens is slso reeeived. Company has also lodged ihe
chaiins For the remaizing FM period throagh vaious bttors and fingd lotier & sent on 258 Fob 2022 Accordinghe the Company hos received approval Fom Indépendent Engincer of NHAL vide fetrer dated 26ch
Feb 2022 for an extension of 350 days,

LET RVIL was awarded the contract fr Construction of Addisional Tvwo Lane for Rajkot-Jaznagar-Vadinar Road to make it Four Lanz Divided Camiageway Facility ander Viability Gap Foncding Schems of
CGovermment of India on Boild, Operarz and Transfer (BOT) Basis (Project Highway). Sob ly, a Cancession A {CA) wag enizred iutn berween RVIE and Cujarat State Roed Develogment
Capaatios Umited (GSROC) an 17,02.2008 for the s3me. Honwener, diying the commareizl DptmhmsGOGdndnolﬁuiﬁll its ebligation as agreed under the Statz Suppoet Agr {35A)ad skl

RYTL incared/suffered sovenue losoos aod otk losses. Since the Dispuls could nol be seuled. RV TL vide koster dated 04.01.2019 mquested GSRDC;'GOG for amicablz seifement in terms of Articls 93 of

558, RVTL Brucd for Acbitrtion notice dated 24.04.2019 1o GSERU/GHG along witk e description of chims and subsequently filed ths app i mder secticn L12) of Arbitration and Conciliation Ack
fox appointment of Arbitrator befoce the Gujarat High Cowt. b ndition 10 the sbave LET RVTL bas velud whbiaden for r:mhum of'its beng pending clains related disputé w ith GSRDC. A "Coacilinion
Cmnmﬂﬂ:cflndcpmdcmExpcm {CCEE) was formed fiox amicabk settlement. The peoposal v 3% agrodd betw e both the pasties o 31 March 2022, On 24h March, 2025 the company reeeived

appeonal from the eompetent autharity basod on the settlemant proposal for 3 seitlernent smount of Bs.13.99 Cr in the form of axtention. of concession period of 77 énvs and seitkment amonnt of K5.98.13 Cr
tawands various otber daims. The amoant of Rs.94. £+ Cr was 2ovead fo be adjusted against the L&T RVTE dues of Revemus sharz payeble.

The above seitlement has been accounted in the finacial staternents for the year ended 31st March, 2023 as exceptional item (Refer Note 39)

Ahmedshad - Maliys Tolhvay [imitad was avarded the conract foe Construction afexistng Two Lane for Ahmadalrad-Virm zam-Mabiva road 4o maks it Four Lane Divided Carriageway Facility under Viohility
Gap Funding Scbeme of Govemment of Indis i Bugld, Operate and Tronske (BOTY Basiy (Prejoct Highway), Subszquendy, a C fon Agréement {CA) nas entered into berween the Company aod Gujarad
State Road Developeent Cevporation Limited (GSRDC) axi September (7, 208 for the same Hovwever, during e commérrisl operations Govermment of Gujarat (GOG) did oot fulfill s obligation s agreed
under 1he: Stata Sepport A {S5\) and consequently, the Compeny incurced/suffered reveme Josses and otier losse Sioea e Dispute contd not be setiled, the Company vide lester dated Jaruary 04,
2019 requested GSRDCIGOG for amicable sehfement in tovms of Artick 93 of 38A. The Company issued for Arbiwation notics dated April 24. 2012 to GSRDC/GOG akong with the desiription of <latmy and
stbsequently Elad khe application under Stcton l!(Z} of Arbitration and Coscifiation Act for appolatment af Arbirator before the Hopourable High Coun of Gufarnin addinon o the lbo\'! the Compamn
imoked arbi Fixe: huioo of is koo pendiog Lnead divpuce with GSRDC, A "Cocciliatian Commitee of Independent Experts™ (CC[E)“u fovmed for st I The proposal
wizs agreed betwotu both (e patics oo March 31, 2022, Cu March 24, 2023 dhe Company secived 1 approval fom the competent suthority based on the setiletment progesal el GSRDCCSRYTLA0ZH2T
for 3 ot settlement amaunt of € 21,97 Crs in the fan of extension of concession period of 33 davs.

Tho Campany has boen swanded a seelkemean smoont of 22621 Crs towards varsons other. daims from GSROC winch have been adjusiod against o revinne share payable 10 GSRDC.

Funther, the Company bas agreed W poy 2n sdditivad crckssion fea of ¥ 142 Crs 10 GSRDC which hat boen intluded in tevenise share payable to GSRDC, With 15 scudcment 2l disputes with GSRDC ad
GolG bas becn séttied. The above sewtlement has been aceoustéd i the Frumeial statements for the year ended March 3%, 2023 ax exorptinnal itéms (Rafer Note 391




L&T Infrastrecture Development Projecix Limited
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L&T Devean Tollways limited operafes in the infrastructure business scetor which involves hngs capital imvestments, The Compeny’s networth has fully eroded primarily due 1o high depreciation,
high mlerest on term loan ard intevest on deferred premium Lisbility. However, the management expect that the Company’s revenue for the sibsequent financiaf years will be sufficient to mect the
expenditure and recoup the lasses incurred chereby strengthening the financial posifion of the Company. Accordingly, the fimaneial stat have been prepared on going coneem basts.

Penipat Elevated Coridor Limited operalgs in the infrastruchure business sccter which involves huge capital investments. The company’s net worth has been eroded, However, we expects that the
Company's revenne for the subsoquent financial years will be sufficicat o mect the expenditure and recoup ke Fosses incumred thereby strengthening the financial position of the Company. Further,
Lhere is a.continning support from the holding company and company will be able to discharge all its obligations in foreseeable fiture. Accordingly, the fimancial ststemeris kave been prepared on

going concern basis.
L&T Rajkot Vadinar Tollway Limited's acctamnlated Josses have excezded its Paid-up capital as 6n balance sheet date by ¥ 78.23 Cr. Ason that date the company’s current liabilities exceeded its

current assets by £ 442,40 Cr. The managensent ts that ki company has aot defaulted in its repayment obligations of loans a5 well as interest to lenders so far and have fanded by its group

15

company. fo sustain 1he eperations of the company. The mamagement succoeded in obtaining afl it past ¢laims setiled wnder varions issues with GSRDC (Refer note 60), The Company bas
completed its refinance of bortwolng duwring the year. Cansiguenily with extended repayment terms for loans, it is confident of meeting its .contractual obligations. Having regard to this, the

manzgernent believes that at present thére is vo Lhreat to going concern and have prepared Anancial statements on the basis that ike company is a going concen:

L&T Samnakfiiali Gendhidham Toltway: Limited op i the infrastructure business sector, it iz required to make huga capital nvestments The Campany’s nat worth faz bean ereded primarily duzs
to high-dzpreviation, high interest oa tenm Jozas and inferest on deferred premium Hability, However, the mangament cxpects that the Company's revenas for the subsequant financial years witl be
sufficient to meet the expenditure and secoup the Tosses inaared thereby strengthening the financial position of the Company. Further, theré is a contizuing support from the Holding Company and
the Company will be ablc to discharge all its obligations in foreseeablz. future. Accordingly, the Snancial statements have been prepared on going concern basis,

Guing concem assumption is not apprapriate for PNG Tollway Limited and LAT Chennai Tathways Eimited, heace the finzmciaf statements of those companfes have been drawn up accondingly.

The Board of Directors of the Company has reviewed the realizablz value of afl the financial assets and has confimmed that the value of sich assets in the ordinary course of business will aot be less’
than the value at which these are recognized in.the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. In addition, the Board has also confirmed, the camrying value of the non financial assets in the comsolidted
Ind AS financial stztements. The Beard, duly taking into accoust all the relevant disclosures mads, has, approved these consolidated Ind AS Euancial statements in ifs mecting beld on Aped 27, 2023,

Ne prociedings have been initisted or pending agaiost the Growp for holding benami property wedoy the Bevantt Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1938 (45 of 1988) and Rules mads thereundar.
The Group has not been declaced 2 wilful def2ulter by amy bank oc financial fustitution or govemment or any govemment authority.

The Group has po transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companizs Act, [936.

The Group has oot revalized any of its Propady, Plent and Equepment and Intangible Assets during the year.

The Group does 2ot have working capital bosrosings from banks or financial instimtions on the basis of security of cuscent assets during the year,

The Group bas complied with the mumber of layers prescribed uadwr clause (87) of Section 2 of the Compagies Act, 2013 read with Companiss (Restriction on mumber of Layers) Rules, 2057,

There'is no meome sunrendered or disclosed a3 income during the current of previons year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded fn the books of account.

Previous year's figures have been regmuped/Teciassified, wherever n2cassary, o confinm with the crrrent yem®s classificasion,

For and on bebalf of the Board of Directors

R. Shankar Raman / DipK.Sen -

Chairman Nanzging Direclor
(DIN: 000 19798) (DIN03554707)
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Datc: Apnil 27, 2023 .
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